
 
OHIO BOARD OF NURSING 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD July 30-31, 2015 
 
The regular meeting of the Ohio Board of Nursing (Board) was held on July 30-
31, 2015 at the Board office located at 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, Ohio 43215. The President, Vice-President, and Executive Director 
reviewed the agenda prior to the meeting. 
 
On Thursday, July 30, 2015 at 8:30 a.m., President Maryam Lyon called the 
Board meeting to order, welcomed nursing students, staff, and the gallery, and 
requested that Board Members introduce themselves. On Friday, July 31, 2015 
at 8:30 a.m., President Maryam Lyon called the Board meeting to order. Vice-
President Janet Arwood read the Board mission each day. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS 
Maryam Lyon, RN, President 
Janet Arwood, LPN, Vice-President 
Brenda Boggs, LPN 
Judith Church, RN  
Nancy Fellows, RN  
Lisa Klenke, RN 
Lauralee Krabill, RN  
J. Jane McFee, LPN  
Sandra Ranck, RN 
John Schmidt, RN (Absent Thursday and Friday) 
Patricia Sharpnack, RN 
Sheryl Warner, Consumer Member (Absent Thursday and Friday) 
 
Unless noted in these minutes as exhibits, all written reports submitted to the 
Board are maintained in the Board office according to the Board record retention 
schedule. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Board Meeting Overview 
On Thursday, the Executive Session was held at 10:00 a.m. and the public rules 
hearing was at 1:00 p.m. Beginning at 1:25 p.m. the following addressed the 
Board: Attorney James McGovern, Aisha Hampton, RN, and AAG Henry Appel; 
Attorney James McGovern, Melissa Abshire, LPN, and AAG Henry Appel; 
Attorney Elizabeth Collis, Tamara Knerr-Markko, RN, and AAG Henry Appel; 
Attorney Elizabeth Collis, Pamela Wend, LPN, and AAG Henry Appel; Attorney 
Elizabeth Collis, Megan Lilly, LPN, and AAG Henry Appel; and Attorney Todd 
Collis, Krysta Berkfield, RN, and AAG Henry Appel. On Friday, Open Forum was 
held at 10:20 a.m. 
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Approval of Minutes of the May 2015 Meeting 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board approve the minutes from the May 2015 Board meeting, as submitted.  
Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack 
abstaining. 
 
Executive Director Report 
Betsy Houchen highlighted the following from the Executive Director Report: 

• The Board welcomed new staff members: Cherish Berry, human 
resources; Alex King, compliance; Andrea Mers, licensure; and Chris 
Landwehr, a legal assistant working with the staff Hearing Examiners. 

• The Board congratulated Margo Pettis, the new Executive Assistant for 
the Board and Ashley Minney, who moved to a full-time position. 

• Board staff is proud to have contributed $738 for Operation Feed, enough 
money for 2,178 meals. 

• This year the Board celebrates its Centennial. The Governor’s 
Proclamation congratulating and honoring the Board was read. Historical 
information is included in the summer issue of Momentum, and the Board 
will be recognized by NCSBN. 

• Beginning in mid-June, the state elicensing system began experiencing 
issues causing substantial problems for licensees/certificate holders and 
the work of Board staff. Every year as the renewal volume increases 
toward the end of June, Board staff and licensees experience a system 
slow down, regardless of preparations made by the Board and DAS/IT. To 
resolve the issues encountered each year, Board staff recommended that 
the Board implement the new 3.0 elicense system by March of 2016; the 
Board has received assurances that the new system will effectively handle 
the large number of nursing renewals. DAS/IT plans to confirm in October 
or November whether they can implement elicense 3.0 by March of 2016 
for the Board. The following numbers provide a perspective of the volume 
of work during the peak season for licensure and renewal:  

o Incoming telephone calls from January-May averaged about 5,600 
per month; for June incoming calls were 13,000; total telephone 
calls from January-May averaged about 11,400 per month; for June 
there were 31,000 total calls. In addition, the Board receives 
thousands of emails regarding licensure and renewal. 

o The Board will renew licenses and certificates for 195,283 nurses 
during a four-month period, in addition to the work performed by 
licensure staff to process approximately 15,000 applications for 
initial licensure. 

o To date, about 170,000 individuals have renewed their RN licenses 
and 17,917 have renewed their COAs and/or CTPs. 

o Elicense slowdowns continue on almost a daily basis so for staff 
just to move to another screen, which should take a second, it 
takes 90 seconds, greatly impacting the efficiency of staff work and 
the ability to process large numbers of individuals needing licensed 
and renewed.  
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• The OAC Steering Committee met in June to review the progress of each 
Work Group and discuss applying for a second State Implementation Plan 
(SIP) grant. The grant will be similar to the first Ohio SIP grant by focusing 
on the same two recommendations: seamless education in order to 
increase the number of nurses with a BSN, and nursing workforce data 
analysis. The Board provided a letter of support and committed $3,000 for 
matching funds from the Board Special Issues Fund.  

• Tom Dilling continues to attend meetings of the Opiates and Other 
Controlled Substances Reforming Practices Committee (OOCS).  The 
Committee reviewed the draft document, “Ohio Guidelines for the 
Management of Acute Pain Outside of Emergency Departments.” In 
addition, the “Health Resource Toolkit for Addressing Opioid Abuse” was 
released in July to help Ohio communities fight heroin and the prescription 
drug epidemic.  

• The Interprofessional PCMH Curriculum and Scholarship meeting was 
held in June. Board member Patricia Sharpnack attended and reported to 
the Board about the meeting. 

• The National Practitioners Data Bank (NPDB) conducted their regularly 
scheduled audit for the purpose of monitoring states’ compliance with 
reporting disciplinary actions to the data bank.  NPDB rated the Board as 
“compliant” in every category of reporting.  

 
Legislative Report 
T. Dilling provided the legislative report. The House amended HB 64, the budget 
bill, to permit advanced pharmacology to be online instruction as part of the 
coursework required to obtain a CTP-E. This amendment was passed in the bill 
and will be effective on or about September 29, 2015. 
 
HB 216 proposes to make comprehensive changes to current APRN authority and 
regulatory processes. It is anticipated that there will be interested party meetings 
this summer and fall to address the many issues presented in the bill.  
 
SB 110, signed by the Governor on July 16, 2015, grants authority to delegate 
drug administration under specified circumstances to unlicensed persons. In 
addition, the Senate amended SB 55 into SB 110. SB 55 comprehensively 
amended the physician assistant law and contained language that added 
physician assistants to the list of providers named in statute who may direct the 
care of LPNs.  
 
Fiscal Report 
Kathy King, Fiscal Officer, presented the fiscal report.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
On Thursday, July 30, 2015: 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood that the Board go into Executive Session 
to discuss pending or imminent court action with legal counsel.  A roll call vote 
was taken. The Board entered Executive Session at 10:00 a.m. and reported out 
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of Executive Session at 10:25 a.m.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Administrative Rule Review – November Rules Hearing 
Holly Fischer presented the revisions to the proposed rules that the Board 
reviewed at the May Board meeting. The following revisions are based upon 
comments from the Board, the Committee on Prescriptive Governance, and the 
interested party meeting held in May 27, 2015. 
 
Chapter 4723-8, Advanced Practice Nurse Certification and Practice 
During the interested party meeting in May, the Ohio Association of Advanced 
Practice Nurses (OAAPN) requested changes to rules in Chapter 4723-8:  
 

Rule 8-04:  
• (C)(7)(a): Delete “A schedule for periodic” and insert “Biannual” 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 
 

•  (C)(7)(c): Delete “the” physician, insert “a” physician 
o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 

 
•  (C)(12)(b)(iv): Add “If the nurse is prescribing to minors” 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to add this language and 
suggested adding a cross-reference to define “minor.” 
 

• (C)(12)(c):  Delete “composed of physicians” insert “composed of at least 
one physician” 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 
 

•  (E):  Delete this new proposed requirement as it is perceived to be too 
onerous, and should be viewed as a best practice rather than a regulatory 
requirement 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to keep the proposed new 
requirement but to remove “at least.” The Board discussed that for 
compliance cases, the Board may need to review copies of the 
standard care arrangements. In addition, the requirement is a 
safeguard for APRNs, because if there is a complaint, copies of the 
standard care arrangements will be available. The time period of six 
years is consistent with other retention requirements for nurses. For 
example, six years is the length of time that nurses must retain 
evidence of CE. 

 
Rule 8-05: 
• (D)(1): Delete “composed of physicians” insert “composed of at least one 

physician” 
o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 

 
• (D)(2): Delete the last sentence. This language is viewed as too 

prescriptive. 
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o The Board agreed by general consensus to delete the sentence. 
 

• (F):  The requirement that a nurse be legally responsible for verifying the 
license status of each collaborating practitioner is viewed as too onerous. 
Both pros and cons for the nurse in conducting the verification were 
discussed at the interested party meeting. For example, if the physician’s 
credential is invalid APRN billing may be rejected by payors. On the other 
hand, the thought is the APRN should not be the “gatekeeper” of the 
physician’s credential. 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to keep this language that 
requires the APRN to verify the license status of collaborating 
practitioners. The Board does not believe the purpose is to make 
the APRN a gatekeeper. Rather, because the APRN is legally 
responsible to work in conjunction with a licensed practitioner, it is 
the responsibility of the APRN to assure collaborating physicians 
are properly credentialed. 

 
Chapter 4723-9, Prescriptive Authority 
H. Fischer reported that Rule 4723-9-01 would be revised to reflect the statutory 
change in HB 64 that permits advanced pharmacology to be online instruction as 
part of the coursework required to obtain a CTP-E. The Board will review this 
revision at the September Board meeting. 
 
During the interested party meeting in May, OAAPN requested the following 
changes to rules in Chapter 4723-9:  
 

• 9-04: Delete (E). The standard care arrangement review should be up to 
the parties, and even without the language Chapter 4723-8 quality 
requirements are still applicable to the standard care arrangement.  

o The Board agreed by general consensus to delete the language, as 
it is redundant. 
 

• 9-05: Delete (B)(3). The rationale is that the language requiring a 
“supervising physician” statement applies to out-of-state applicants, and 
some other jurisdictions do not require APRNs to have a “supervising 
physician.” The law (4723.482(D), ORC) does not require documentation 
from a supervising physician. 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to delete the language. 
 

• 9-08(C)(3)(a): Add the word “business” address. 
o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 

 
• 9-10: OAAPN suggested the following changes, which staff explained 

could also be presented to the Committee on Prescriptive Governance 
(CPG) at its next meeting in October 2015; staff noted that Section 
4723.50, ORC, requires the Board to consider CPG recommendations 
prior to adopting or revising rule language related to prescribing:   
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o (B) Add requirement that the CPG meet “twice” per year instead of 
“once”  

 The Board agreed by general consensus not to revise the 
language.  The CPG routinely meets 3 times a year. 
 

o (C): Delete this paragraph 
 The Board agreed by general consensus not to delete this 

paragraph. 
 

o (F):  This paragraph is revised based on the recommendation made 
by the CPG at its May 18, 2015 meeting.  The recommendation is 
made to allow prescribing of drugs approved by the FDA but not yet 
reviewed or approved by the Committee, if certain conditions are 
met.  

 The Board agreed by general consensus to this revised 
paragraph. 
 

o (F)(3): OAAPN suggested that instead of requiring that the 
collaborating physician agree in the standard care arrangement 
(SCA) that drugs approved by the FDA may be prescribed prior to 
CPG review/approval, (F)(3) be revised to reflect “blanket” 
language like this: “The standard care arrangement includes a 
provision that the physician agrees the nurse may prescribe drugs 
approved by the FDA but not yet reviewed by the committee on 
prescriptive governance, unless later disapproved by the committee 
on prescriptive governance.”   

 The Board agreed by general consensus to revise (F)(3) to 
reflect the blanket language proposed.  
 

o (G):  Delete this paragraph  
 The Board agreed by general consensus not to delete this 

paragraph. 
 

• 9-12(H):  OAAPN expressed that (H)(1) through (H)(5) are too prescriptive 
and should not be in a rule.  Alternatively, OAAPN requested that the last 
sentence in (H) be revised to state:  “Consultation may include and result 
in” rather than:  “Consultation should include and result in.” T. Dilling 
explained that the language is derived from sources including statewide 
policy groups established by the Governor’s office, the State Pharmacy 
and Medical boards, and a National Association of Boards of Pharmacy 
(NABP) consensus document, and legal consistency in applying OARRS 
requirements is viewed as necessary.  

o H. Fischer explained that since the interested party meeting in May, 
the Ohio State Medical Board proposed a new rule pertaining to 
OARRS. The Medical Board combined (C)(1) and (C)(2) to make 
review of all of the items mandatory, rather than some discretionary 
and others mandatory. The Medical Board also removed the “red 
flag” terminology. The Board agreed by general consensus to retain 
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the “red flag” language because it re-enforces the importance of 
reviewing OARRS. The Medical Board rule language does not 
make language similar to that in Rule 9-12 (H)(4) and (H)(5) 
mandatory.  

o The Board also agreed by general consensus to keep (H)(1), (2), 
and (3) mandatory and change (H)(4) and (5) to be optional. 

  
Chapter 4723-23, Dialysis Technicians 

• Rule 23-01(H): Definition of “home” is added to clarify that a home is a 
patient’s private residence and not a licensed facility. 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to include this definition. 
 
 Chapter 4723 -1 Board Organization and Records 

• Rule 4723-1-03(F): A sentence is added as recommended at the May 
Board meeting to clarify that the one-year validity of criminal records 
check information is not applicable to records checks required to be 
obtained according to the terms of Board orders or consent agreements. 

o The Board agreed by general consensus to this revision. 
 
Chapter 4723-7 (Licensure) 

• New Rule 4723-7-10, Volunteer’s Certificate 
o (A):  A definition of “expired” is added because the new statute 

(4723.26) implementing Volunteer’s Certificates refers to “expired” 
licenses, while the term used in Chapter 4723, OAC, is “lapsed.”  

 The Board agreed by general consensus. 
 

o (B)(3): As recommended at the May Board meeting, language is 
added specifying that 24 contact hours of CE, taken in the past two 
years, is required for initial certification. Two options were 
discussed: 

 Option 1:  As discussed at the May meeting, content areas 
of education would mirror those in Rule 4723-14-03(E)(2) 
(the hour requirements for nurses whose licenses have 
lapsed or been inactive for 2 years or more), except that 
instead of 8 general hours in areas relevant to the nurse’s 
practice, there are 4 general hours relevant to the nurse’s 
practice and 4 hours in professional boundaries.  

 
 Option 2: Following the May meeting, Board member Sandra 

Ranck provided input regarding proposed content areas as 
outlined in this option. 

 
The Board agreed by general consensus to include Option 2 with 
the following changes: 4 contact hours in patient assessment and 
wound care; 4 contact hours in medication administration and 
preventing medication errors, and 4 general contact hours that are 
relevant to the nurse’s practice. The Board stated Option 2 is 
preferable because it is more specific to the population with whom 
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volunteer nurses would be working. This CE requirement would 
only take effect if the nurse’s license lapsed and the nurse was 
returning to practice by applying for a volunteer certificate. For 
renewal of the volunteer certificate, the CE requirements would be 
the same as for RNs and LPNs renewing each year, which is 24 
hours of CE, with the content being same as for the initial 
volunteer’s certificate. 

 
o (E):  Language is added to require CE for renewal of Volunteer’s 

Certificates as discussed in 4723-14-03, below. At the May 
interested parties meeting, J. Milstead recommended that a 
criminal records check requirement be added as a certification 
requirement. Section 4723.26(D)(2), ORC, requires a criminal 
records check if the applicant has been retired for at least ten 
years. In comparison, note that Section 4723.24(D)(3), ORC, 
requires a criminal records check for licensees who have been 
lapsed/inactive for at least five years who seek to reinstate their 
nursing license. It appears that the legislature deliberately regulated 
this area and selected the ten-year timeframe for Volunteer’s 
Certificates. For renewal, Section 4723.26(F)(2), ORC requires that 
the individual comply with Section 4723.24.  Language is added in 
Rule 4723-7-10(E) cross-referencing the criminal records check 
requirement in Section 4723.24(D)(3), ORC, for those who have 
been lapsed/inactive for at least five years.   

 The Board agreed by general consensus to keep the 
requirement that is consistent with current requirements in 
the NPA. 
 

Chapter 14:  Continuing Education 
• Rule 14-03(K): Language is added as recommended at the May Board 

meeting to require persons holding a Volunteer’s Certificate to obtain CE 
for certificate renewal (including one hour of Ohio law/rules), and meet the 
same requirements as licensed nurses for reactivation and reinstatement.  
One hour in human trafficking may be used to satisfy the required CE 
renewal hours.  

o The Board agreed by general consensus to revise 14-03(K) to 
reflect the Option 2 content areas as modified (See above 
discussion). 

 
Youth Concussion Assessment and Clearance Rule 
Proposed new Rule 4723-8-11, Youth Concussion Assessment and Clearance, 
was filed on June 26, 2015 with JCARR. The Board heard testimony regarding 
the rule at the public rules hearing on Thursday July 30, 2015.  Prior to the rules 
hearing, the Board received comments from OAAPN (June 26, 2015), ONA (July 
6, 2015), and Jeri Milstead (July 26, 2015). 
 
Jeri Milstead, Sally Morgan, ONA, and Diann Nelson-Houser, OAAPN, provided 
testimony at the rules hearing. Those presenting testimony objected to language 
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in (B)(3) that requires the CNS/CNP to complete at least 2 hours of CE every two 
years in the detection of concussion, its clinical features, assessment techniques, 
and the principles of safe return to play protocols consistent with the Zurich 
Guidelines, and language in (C)(3), which indicates that the 2 hours are in 
addition to the 24 hours required every two years for RN license renewal.  
 

• After discussion, the Board agreed by general consensus to require CE 
each renewal period, but not specify the number of hours, and allow the 
youth concussion CE hours to be count as part of the 24 hours required 
for RN renewal. 

 
OAAPN and ONA also commented that rather than requiring that the CNS/CNP 
obtain education and training consistent with the Zurich Guidelines (i.e., 
Consensus statement on concussion in sport: the 4th International Conference on 
Concussion in Sport held in Zurich, November 2012), education and training be: 
“per current evidence-based practice.”  OAAPN supports this comment, in part, 
on the fact that the Zurich Guidelines will be three years old by November 2015.  
It was noted that the Zurich Guidelines indicate that the Guidelines are to be 
updated prior to December 1, 2016, and if so, Rule 4723-8-11 would be revised 
to reflect the updated version.   
 
In addition, as OAAPN points out, the Ohio Youth Sports Concussion & Head 
Injury Return to Play Guidelines Committee, Final Guidelines Report (March 
2015) provided that in addition to the Zurich Guidelines, education could be 
consistent with “nationally accepted standards and guidelines consistent with [the 
Zurich Guidelines]”.  However, to date, other “nationally accepted standards and 
guidelines” have not been provided. Were they to be identified and referenced in 
proposed Rule 4723-8-11, they would need to be incorporated by reference and 
filed with the Rule. Practically, waiting until such standards/guidelines are 
identified would require delay of implementation of this Rule beyond the desired 
September 2015 effective date. 
 

• After discussion, the Board agreed by general consensus to use the 
Zurich Guidelines, as recommended by the Ohio Department of Health 
(ODH), and review and revise the rule when the Zurich Guidelines are 
updated or other nationally accepted standards are identified. 

 
A revised rule filing will reflect the agreed upon revisions. It is anticipated that the 
rule will be effective by the September 17, 2015 date set forth in HB 487 (130th 
GA), which is when a CNS/CNP would be authorized, based on meeting 
minimum education requirements, to assess and clear a patient to return to 
practice or competition. 
 
Diann Nelson-Houser stated she believed OAAPN lacked involvement in the 
review process for this rule. T. Dilling explained that at the time of the legislation, 
the focus was primarily on granting chiropractors the authority to assess and 
clear a patient to return to play. The legislation mandated ODH to convene a 
Committee to establish guidelines that Boards and Commissions were to use to 
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adopt rules. T. Dilling notified the organizations through their lobbyist about the 
hearings that ODH scheduled regarding the guidelines. The proposed rule was 
discussed at Board meetings; included at the Board’s interested party meeting in 
May; filed with the Common Sense Initiative Office; made available through the 
Register of Ohio, as noted on the Board web site; and distributed as the subject 
of this public hearing. B. Houchen stated that the Board has been committed to 
including all interested parties in the rule making process. Board staff has 
convened interested party meetings every year for ten years and T. Dilling has a 
demonstrated track record of working and communicating with interested parities. 
The Board will continue to include and communicate with all interested parties. 
 
Nurse Education Grant Programs (NEGP) – Grant Awards 
Lisa Emrich reported that the Board was able to increase the number of programs 
funded for the 2015-2017 cycle. 
 
Post-licensure Nursing Education Programs 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board award Nurse Education Grant Program funds, in accordance with Chapter 
4723-25, OAC, and Section 4723.063, ORC, for the period beginning September 
1, 2015 to August 31, 2017, to the following post-licensure nursing education 
programs: The Ohio State University-$150,000; Xavier University Master of 
Science in Nursing Program-$194,809; Youngstown State University, BSN-
$182,984; Aultman College of Nursing and Health Sciences-$200,000; Ohio 
University School of Nursing-$200,000; Ashland University Dwight Schar College 
of Nursing and Health Sciences-$199,355. Motion adopted by majority vote of 
the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Pre-Licensure Registered Nurse Education Programs 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board award Nurse Education Grant Program funds, in accordance with Chapter 
4723-25, OAC, and Section 4723.063, ORC, for the period beginning September 
1, 2015 to August 31, 2017, to the following pre-licensure registered nurse 
education programs: Capital University, Department of Nursing-$199,930.14; 
James A. Rhodes State College-$172,000; Notre Dame College Bachelor of 
Science in Nursing Program-$193,392; Xavier University Bachelor of Science in 
Nursing Program-$198,127; Tri-Rivers Center for Adult Education School of 
Nursing-$96,649.96; Ashland University Dwight Schar College of Nursing and 
Health Sciences-$200,000; Baldwin Wallace University Accelerated Bachelor of 
Science in Nursing Program-$199,855; Marion Technical College Nursing 
Program-$200,000. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with 
Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Pre-Licensure Practical Nurse Education Programs 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Lisa Klenke, that the 
Board award Nurse Education Grant Program funds, in accordance with Chapter 
4723-25, OAC, and Section 4723.063, ORC, for the period beginning September 
1, 2015 to August 31, 2017, to the following pre-licensure practical nurse 
education programs: North Central State College Practical Nurse Program-
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$200,000; Tri-Rivers Career Center for Adult Education in Nursing-$199,909.90. 
Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack 
abstaining. 
 
APPROVALS 
Approval of New Programs 
Felbry School of Nursing Associate Degree of Applied Science in Nursing 
Program 
Action: It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board grant Conditional approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-08, OAC, to 
Felbry School of Nursing Associate Degree of Applied Science in Nursing 
Program.  It was further moved that the Program submit progress reports to the 
Board on or before November 20, 2015, March 17, 2016, September 15, 2016, 
April 14, 2017, and October 20, 2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of the 
Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Ohio Medical Career College One Plus One Associate Degree RN Program 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Judith Church, that the 
Board grant Conditional approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-08, OAC, to 
Ohio Medical Career College One Plus One Associate Degree RN Program.  It 
was further moved that the Program submit progress reports to the Board on or 
before November 17, 2015, March 17, 2016, September 15, 2016, and March 16, 
2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia 
Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Nursing Education Programs – Approval Status 
Chamberlain College of Nursing-Cleveland 
Action: It was moved by Judith Church, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that the 
Board grant Full approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-04, OAC, to 
Chamberlain College of Nursing-Cleveland for a period of five years effective 
July 30, 2015. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with 
Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Cuyahoga Community College, Associate Degree Nursing Program 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board grant Full approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-04, OAC, to Cuyahoga 
Community College, Associate Degree Nursing Program for a period of two years 
effective July 30, 2015.  It was further moved that the Program submit progress 
reports to the Board on or before September 30, 2015, January 18, 2016, 
September 30, 2016, and January 11, 2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of 
the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Collins Career Technical Center 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board grant Full approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-04, OAC, to Collins 
Career Technical Center for a period of five years effective July 30, 2015. Motion 
adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack 
abstaining. 
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Columbus School of Practical Nursing 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board place Columbus School of Practical Nursing on Provisional approval in 
accordance with Section 4723.06(A)(7), ORC, from July 30, 2015 to July 26, 
2017.  After fully considering the survey visit report and the Program response to 
the report, the Board determined that the Program failed to meet and maintain 
the requirements established in Rules 4723-5-11(A)(1); 4723-5-12 (A)(3); 4723-
5-14 (F)(7) and (F)(8); and 4723-5-21(D)(3), OAC.  It was further moved that the 
Program submit progress reports to the Board on or before September 21, 2015, 
December 10, 2015, March 16, 2016, July 20, 2016, and January 19, 2017. 
Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack 
abstaining. 
 
Associate Degree in Nursing-Fortis College, Cincinnati, OH 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board grant Full approval to Associate Degree in Nursing-Fortis College, 
Cincinnati, OH for a period of five years effective July 30, 2015. Motion adopted 
by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Knox County Career Center Licensed Practical Nursing Program 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Lisa Klenke, that the 
Board grant Full approval to Knox County Career Center Licensed Practical 
Nursing Program for a period of five years effective July 30, 2015. Motion 
adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack 
abstaining. 
 
Mount St. Joseph University MSN Program 
Action: It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that the Board 
place Mount St. Joseph University MSN Program on Provisional approval in 
accordance with Section 4723.06(A)(7), ORC, from July 30, 2015 to July 26, 
2017.  After fully considering the survey visit report and the Program response to 
the report, the Board determined that the Program failed to meet and maintain the 
requirements established in Rules 4723-5-09(B)(11); 4723-5-10(A)(4)(d); and 
4723-5-20(B), OAC. It was further moved that the Program submit progress 
reports to the Board on or before September 15, 2015, January 27, 2016, July 27, 
2016, and January 19, 2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board 
members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Mount Vernon Nazarene University School of Nursing and Health Sciences 
Nursing Department 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Judith Church, that the 
Board grant Full approval to Mount Vernon Nazarene University School of Nursing 
and Health Sciences Nursing Department for a period of five years effective July 
30, 2015.  It was further moved that the Program submit a progress report to the 
Board on or before September 30, 2015. Motion adopted by majority vote of the 
Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
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Wright State University-Miami Valley College of Nursing and Health, BSN 
Program 
Action: It was moved by Judith Church, seconded by Nancy Fellows, the Board 
grant Full approval to Wright State University-Miami Valley College of Nursing 
and Health, BSN Program for a period of five years effective July 30, 2015. It was 
further moved that the Program submit progress reports to the Board on or 
before September 30, 2015, and February 9, 2016. Motion adopted by majority 
vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
The University of Toledo College of Nursing Clinical Nurse Leader Program-MSN 
Program 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board grant Full approval to The University of Toledo College of Nursing Clinical 
Nurse Leader Program-MSN Program for a period of two years.  It was further 
moved that the Program submit progress reports to the Board on or before 
September 30, 2015, March 30, 2016, September 29, 2016 and January 26, 
2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia 
Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
The University of Toledo College of Nursing Bowling Green State University BSN 
Program 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyons, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board place The University of Toledo College of Nursing Bowling Green State 
University BSN Program on Provisional approval in accordance with Section 
4723.06(A)(7), ORC, from July 30, 2015 until July 26, 2017. After fully 
considering the survey visit report and the Program response to the report, the 
Board determined that the Program failed to meet and maintain the requirements 
established in Rules 4723-5-06(C); 4723-5-12(A)(5); and 4723-5-21(D)(1), OAC.  
It was further moved that the Program submit progress reports to the Board on or 
before September 30, 2015, March 30, 2016, September 29, 2016, and January 
26, 2017. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia 
Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
The University of Toledo College of Nursing BSN Program 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board place The University of Toledo College of Nursing BSN Program on 
Provisional approval in accordance with Section 4723.06(A)(7), ORC, from July 
30, 2015 until July 26, 2017. After fully considering the survey visit report and the 
Program response to the report, the Board determined that the Program failed to 
meet and maintain the requirements established in Rules 4723-5-06(C); 4723-5-
12(A)(5); and 4723-5-21(D)(1), OAC.  It was further moved that the Program 
submit progress reports to the Board on or before September 30, 2015, March 
30, 2016, September 29, 2016, and January 26, 2017. Motion adopted by 
majority vote of the Board members with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Youngstown State University, BSN Program 
Action:  It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board continue the Provisional approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-04, 
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OAC, of Youngstown State University, BSN Program until July 20, 2016.  It was 
further moved that the Program submit a progress report to the Board on or 
before January 11, 2016. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members 
with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
The School of Nursing at Cuyahoga Valley Career Center 
Action:  It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board grant Full approval, in accordance with Rule 4723-5-04, OAC, to The 
School of Nursing at Cuyahoga Valley Career Center for a period of five years 
effective July 30, 2015. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members 
with Patricia Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Nursing Education Program Requests 
Stark State College Associate Degree in Nursing Program 
Action: It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that the 
Board approve the curriculum revision submitted by Stark State Community 
College Associate Degree in Nursing Program in accordance with Rule 4723-5-
16, OAC. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board members with Patricia 
Sharpnack abstaining. 
 
Training Program Approvals 
Kingston Healthcare Medication Aide Training Program 
Action:  It was moved by Nancy Fellows, and seconded by Judith Church, that 
the Board reapprove, in accordance with Rule 4723-27-07, OAC, Kingston 
Healthcare Medication Aide Training Program for a period of two years effective 
July 30, 2015. Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board members. 
 
Cincinnati State Technical and Community College Community Health Worker 
Program 
Action:  It was moved be Judith Church, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board reapprove, in accordance with Rule 4723-26-14, OAC, Cincinnati State 
Technical and Community College Community Health Worker Program for a 
period of two years effective July 30, 2015. Motion adopted by unanimous vote of 
the Board members. 
 
Miami Valley Career Technology Center Dialysis Technician Training Program 
Action:  It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board reapprove, in accordance with Rule 4723-23-07, OAC, Miami Valley 
Career Technology Center Dialysis Technician Training Program for a period of 
two years effective July 30, 2015. Motion adopted by majority vote of the Board 
members, with Maryam Lyon objecting.  
 
Approvals of OBN Approvers of Continuing Education 
University of Cincinnati College of Nursing 
Action:  It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board reapprove University of Cincinnati College of Nursing, OBN-011-93, as 
an approver of continuing education through July 31, 2020 in accordance with 
Rule 4723-14-10, OAC. Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board 
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members. 
 
Licensed Practical Nurse Association of Ohio  
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board reapprove the Licensed Practical Nurse Association of Ohio, OBN-002-92, 
as an approver of continuing education through July 31, 2020 in accordance with 
Rule 4723-14-10, OAC.  Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board 
members. 
 
Ohio League for Nursing 
Action:  It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board reapprove the Ohio League for Nursing, OBN-006-92, as an approver of 
continuing education through July 31, 2020 in accordance with Rule 4723-14-10, 
OAC.  Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board members. 
 
Retroactive Approvals for Licensees and Certificate Holders 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board retroactively ratify, as submitted, the licenses and certificates, including 
temporary work permits, initially issued by the Board May 1, 2015 through June 
30, 2015 to the following: registered nurses; licensed practical nurses; certificates 
of authority to certified registered nurse anesthetists, certified nurse-midwives, 
certified nurse practitioners, and clinical nurse specialists; all certificates to 
prescribe (CTP and CTP-externship); Ohio certified dialysis technicians; dialysis 
technician interns; community health workers; and medication aides, taking into 
account those licenses and certificates subject to discipline, surrender or non-
renewal. Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board members. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:58 a.m. until 1:00 p.m.  
 
 
ADJUDICATION AND COMPLIANCE 
On Friday, July 31, 2015, Maryam Lyon requested that each voting Board 
member verify that they reviewed in depth all materials pertaining to these 
matters by saying "yes" or "no" and that any Board member who did not 
review the materials abstain from voting on the matters.  
 
Board Actions 
 
NOTICES OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board issue a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing for violations of Chapter 
4723., ORC for the following case(s): 
 
Miller, Wendy, P.N. 089764 (CASE #15-2667); Brown, Stephen, P.N. 096883 
(CASE #15-2643); Henry, Steven, P.N. 135283 (CASE #14-6203); Dusthimer, 
Amy, R.N. 364399 (CASE #15-0524); Santana, Alicia, P.N. 133009 (CASE #14-
4494); Allen, Nichole, P.N. 107108 (CASE #15-2965); Bole, Neil, R.N. 319985 
(CASE #15-1216); Williams, Genevieve, P.N. 072927 (CASE #15-1109); Fisher, 
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Peggy, R.N. 341275 (CASE #15-2593); Covington, Louis, R.N. 242799 (CASE 
#14-6652); Berrettoni, Paul, R.N. 325205 (CASE #15-1024); Bliss, Brandon, R.N. 
317369 (CASE #15-2002); Bodin, Tamiko, R.N. 374146 (CASE #15-1600); 
Gertz, Connie, R.N. 399858 (CASE #15-0769); Hawkins, Natalie, R.N. 347603 
(CASE #14-7479); Holley, Vickie, R.N. 239802 (CASE #15-1441); Napierkowski, 
Linda, R.N. 286961 (CASE #14-7510); Njuguna, Anne, P.N. 156780 (CASE #15-
1096); Richardson, Lora, P.N. Endorse (CASE #13-4392); Sailor, Tasha, R.N. 
343685 (CASE #14-7512); Simpkins, Deborah, R.N. 362749 (CASE #15-1875); 
Shrivers, Beth, R.N. 130708 (CASE #14-3183); Pries, Lynette, P.N. 127181 
(CASE #15-2448); Beall, Courtney, R.N. 250816 (CASE #15-2156); Mihalek, 
Shannon, R.N. 376721 (CASE #13-4317); Ensign, Kimberly, P.N. 093526 (CASE 
#13-2137); Jenkins, Alvinetta, R.N. 336115 (CASE #14-1977); Planck, Kristi, 
R.N. 256563 (CASE #14-5535); Sopko, Leah, R.N. 291868, NP 12361, CTP 
12361 (CASE #13-6875); Thomas, Jessica, R.N. 409425, P.N. 132406 (CASE 
#15-0082); Cooper, Portia, P.N. 087534 (CASE #15-2368); Linn, Janelle, P.N. 
137013 (CASE #15-0844); Sanders, Adriane, R.N. 370736 (CASE #13-6654); 
Smith, Amy, R.N. 335375 (CASE #13-0451); Bayes, Christine, R.N. 232802 
(CASE #15-2363); Fauvie, Ronald, R.N. 282654 (CASE #15-0158); Hoffman, 
Sara, R.N. 376355 (CASE #15-1955); Allen, Angela, R.N. 393913, P.N. 115234 
(CASE #15-1830); Graham, Tunishia, R.N. 314895 (CASE #15-2285); Doty, 
Cari, R.N. 316233 (CASE #14-6072); Hunter, Lacresha, P.N. 130299 (CASE 
#15-2926); Liggett, Kimberly, R.N. 364147 (CASE #15-0266); Viglianco, Chris, 
P.N. 116077 (CASE #14-4732); Shuster, Diana, P.N. 101392 (CASE #14-1891); 
Taylor, Tamara, R.N. 369843, P.N. 119639 (CASE #15-1505); Parr, Timothy, 
P.N. 149490 (CASE #14-3847); Hinton, Jennifer, R.N. 271347 (CASE #14-0737); 
Lewis, Elizabeth, P.N. 125188 (CASE #15-1784); Valdry, Sherie, P.N. 140698 
(CASE #14-5236); Bowman-Gibson, Sunshine, P.N. 155263 (CASE #15-0210); 
Smith, Lisa, R.N. 402369, NA 15927 (CASE #14-6287); Clay, Lashar, P.N. 
113927 (CASE #15-1370); Saikaly, Ssrelle, P.N. 139280 (CASE #15-0384); 
Joseph, Nicole, P.N. 151762 (CASE #14-3044); Bulger, Susan, P.N. 136531 
(CASE #13-2551); Cheeks, Demetrius, DT 03851 (CASE #15-1680); Lainhart, 
Nicole, P.N. 129208 (CASE #15-0880); Reese, Theresa, R.N. 331906 (CASE 
#15-1394); Brown, Monica, P.N. 095811 (CASE #14-4255); Lewis, Vertie, R.N. 
210703 (CASE #15-2459); Schwartz, James, P.N. 126660 (CASE #13-2585); 
Kouns, Allen, R.N. 258279 (CASE #15-2460); Bradshaw, Sheri, R.N. 343795 
(CASE #15-1956); Moore, Sharon, R.N. 283931 (CASE #15-2158); Thomas, 
Amanda, P.N. 119750 (CASE #15-2687); Cantrell, Lisa, P.N. 143394 (CASE 
#14-6344); King, Ann , R.N. 279547 (CASE #14-4066); Michaud, Kristi, R.N. 
303851 (CASE #14-4707); Atwood, Gina, R.N. 382535 (CASE #14-5805); Ray, 
Chelsea, R.N. 401304, P.N. 150571 (CASE #14-6548); DeBlase, Anthony, P.N. 
144250 (CASE #15-0780); Colvin, Calie, P.N. 141326 (CASE #15-1026); 
Yeager, Donald, R.N. 384575, P.N. 142437 (CASE #15-0336); Diemer, Tammi, 
R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-1923); Boehmer, Jami, P.N. 110096 (CASE #14-2143); 
DesRosiers, Henri, R.N. 153936, NA 04923 (CASE #14-0138); Getz, Debra, R.N. 
320542 (CASE #15-0620); Poe, Laura, R.N. 297151 (CASE #15-1081); Redfern, 
Carrie, P.N. 127266 (CASE #14-5928); Pickens, Margaret, R.N. 255533 (CASE 
#15-2233); Cognati, Kelly, P.N. 124122 (CASE #14-5310); Hairston, Henry, R.N. 
184575 (CASE #15-2599); Fraley, Melissa, R.N. 388049, P.N. 138310 (CASE 
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#15-2390); Henkel, Brianne, P.N. 115891 (CASE #14-6210); Thomas, Julie, R.N. 
273572 (CASE #15-1910); Reynolds, Samantha, P.N. 140529 (CASE #14-3306); 
Claxton, Brenda, P.N. 125758 (CASE #14-0892); Clawson, David, P.N. 092500 
(CASE #12-6993); Barnett, Marissa, R.N. 386359 (CASE #14-3807); Pieronek, 
Margaret, P.N. 116401 (CASE #14-4509); Smith, Ronnie, P.N. 134997 (CASE 
#15-3003); French, Angela, R.N. 368678 (CASE #13-5524); Baney, Bree, R.N. 
344868 (CASE #15-2171); Clift, Heather, R.N. 356642, P.N. 131432 (CASE #15-
2101); Stevens, Anne, R.N. 365478 (CASE #15-2505); Church, Kristee, R.N. 
260055, P.N. 079415 (CASE #14-6285); Hunt, Marsha, P.N. 147634 (CASE #14-
4233); Rogers, Brenda, P.N. 103164 (CASE #15-2367); Rose, Rod, R.N. 335781 
(CASE #14-1929). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Complete copies of the Notices of Opportunity for Hearing shall be maintained in 
the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board Meeting. 
 
 
IMMEDIATE SUSPENSIONS AND NOTICES OF OPPORTUNITY FOR 
HEARING 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board issue a Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing for 
violations of Chapter 4723., ORC for the following cases(s): 
 
Morrow, Angela, P.N. 122984 (CASE #15-2927); Kennedy, Heather, P.N. 
112860 (CASE #14-6286); Toma, Jordan, R.N. 396445 (CASE #15-3056); 
Birchnaugh, Emily, R.N. 330480 (CASE #14-3648); Roberts, Michael, R.N. 
382834 (CASE #14-6096); Blue, Rebekah, R.N. 389178 (CASE #14-1982); 
Zellefrow, Amy, R.N. 298977 (CASE #15-1115); Knaub, Amber, R.N. 289802 
(CASE #15-3889); Werner, Pamela, R.N. 311177 (CASE #14-5334); Perry, 
Kimberly, R.N. 367931 (CASE #15-4077); Kelley, Jennifer, R.N. 333768 (CASE 
#15-3059); Radeff, Kelly, R.N. 228816 (CASE #15-3055); Santos, Deborah, R.N. 
310102, P.N. 083484 (CASE #14-2461); Bova, Carolyn, P.N. 139675 (CASE 
#15-3615); Spildener, Victoria, R.N. 371349 (CASE #15-3058); Pitts, Jacob, R.N. 
348154 (CASE #15-3609); Andrews, Chelsea, R.N. 353238 (CASE #15-3815); 
Love, Amy, P.N. 120784 (CASE #14-1015); Gebhardt, Andrea, R.N. 387829, 
P.N. 137976 (CASE #14-6422); Canestraro, Bryan, P.N. 152562 (CASE #15-
0183); Mills, Melissa, R.N. 332468 (CASE #15-2159); Vargyas, Dawn, P.N. 
091118 (CASE #15-4391); Fulks, Stephanie, P.N. 130686 (CASE #15-3165); 
Akbar, Fatimah, P.N. 142085 (CASE #14-4577); Traine, Sandra, R.N. 292225 
(CASE #13-7307); Martin, Roxanne, P.N. 137780 (CASE #15-2007). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining.  
 
Complete copies of the Immediate Suspensions and Notices of Opportunity for 
Hearing shall be maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board Meeting. 
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AUTOMATIC SUSPENSIONS AND NOTICES OF OPPORTUNITY FOR 
HEARING 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board issue a Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing for 
violations of Chapter 4723., ORC for the following case(s): 
 
Nolta, Jr, Everett, R.N. 398596, P.N. 143688 (CASE #15-1471); Bastardo, Angel, 
P.N. 156020 (CASE #15-2048); Bletsch, Erin, P.N. 131547 (CASE #15-2020); 
Budd, Emily, P.N. 147382 (CASE #15-2688); Stidham, Linda, R.N. 131614 
(CASE #15-1495); Huizinga, Ashley, R.N. 281061 (CASE #15-2353); Williams, 
Melissa, P.N. 134980 (CASE #15-2087); Trenchik, Gina, R.N. 307851 (CASE 
#15-2317); Dietz, Amy, R.N. 184156 (CASE #15-0813); Stih, Shannon, P.N. 
149815 (CASE #15-1853); Shell, Anthony, R.N. 346689, P.N. 117451 (CASE 
#15-2613); Massey, Christina, R.N. 343175 (CASE #15-1792); Sharma, Inder, 
R.N. 225641, NS 00437, CTP 00437 (CASE #15-3860); Whitt, Deborah, P.N. 
092950 (CASE #15-1880); Scott, Gordon, DT 04267 (CASE #15-2795); Bentley, 
Lisa, R.N. 215746 (CASE #15-2796); Thomas, Timothy, P.N. 131049 (CASE 
#15-2467); Ross, Kathi, P.N. 112683 (CASE #15-1940); Stewart, Shanda, R.N. 
316470 (CASE #15-2409). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Complete copies of the Automatic Suspensions and Notices of Opportunity for 
Hearing shall be maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board Meeting. 
 
POST IMMEDIATE SUSPENSIONS AND NOTICES OF OPPORTUNITY FOR  
HEARING 
Action:  It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board Immediately Suspend the license(s) and issue a Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing for violations of Chapter 4723., ORC for the following case(s): 
 
Maness, Terry, P.N. 108397 (CASE #15-2438); French, Lisa, P.N. 129644 
(CASE #14-3499); Jernigan, Trudy, R.N. 308358 (CASE #14-4207); Dreher, 
Lorey, R.N. 396553 (CASE #14-4873); Bentley, Crystal, P.N. 135737 (CASE 
#15-0818); Redden, Christina, P.N. 100509 (CASE #14-0659). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining.   
 
The Immediate Suspension Notices for these cases had already been issued by 
the time the Notices of Opportunity for Hearing were approved during the 
meeting.  
 
Complete copies of the Post Immediate Suspensions and Notices of Opportunity 
for Hearing shall be maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board 
Meeting. 
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SURRENDERS/WITHDRAWALS 
Permanent Voluntary Surrender 
Action:  It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that the 
Board accept the Permanent Voluntary Surrender of License for the following 
case(s): 
 
Cover, Nanci, R.N. 318525 (CASE #14-1752); Hulick, Jeremy, R.N. 334684 
(CASE #15-0952); Christy, Cynthia, R.N. 145266 (CASE #15-2420); Kershner, 
Melissa, P.N. 120604 (CASE #14-1059); Workman, Suzanne, P.N. 140801 
(CASE #15-2899); Holzman, Diane, R.N. 384872 (CASE #15-1954); Dauphinee, 
Nicolle, R.N. 382618 (CASE #15-0701); Simmons, Dana, P.N. 137164 (CASE 
#14-5213). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Complete copies of the Permanent Voluntary Surrenders of License shall be 
maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board Meeting. 
 
 
CONSENT AGREEMENTS 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board approve the Consent Agreements for violations of Chapter 4723., ORC 
entered into by and between the Board in the following case(s): 
 
Bauman, Chad, R.N. 365389, NP 15440, CTP 15440 (CASE #15-2025); Ervin, 
Ebony, DTI applicant (CASE #15-1258); Huff, Tamerra, P.N. NCLEX (CASE #14-
4284); Green, Kachinda, P.N. 116641 (CASE #14-6917); Stewart, Erica, P.N. 
152611 (CASE #15-1308); Szappanos, Nadine, R.N. 329763, NP 17318 CTP 
17318 (CASE #15-1694); Szelc, Brian, R.N. 375427, NP 15437, CTP 15437 
(CASE #15-1957); Vardel, Mary, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-0591); Yeauger, 
Pamela, P.N. 137372 (CASE #14-2987); Olekshuk, Nicholas, R.N. 296015, P.N. 
087417 (CASE #14-3090); Keefe, Ashley, P.N. 136292 (CASE #14-4012); 
Zsarnay, Karol, R.N. 218264, NS 05757, NP 10972, CTP 10972 (CASE #13-
7770); Stevenson, James, R.N. 362785. P.N. 112949 (CASE #14-2465); Hale, 
Carol, P.N. 091133 (CASE #14-6460); Raible, Amanda, R.N. 309814 (CASE 
#14-1301); Buhring, Diana, R.N. 243639 (CASE #14-1806); DeAngelis, Amanda, 
R.N. 374108 (CASE #14-5108); Wilson, Lakeshea, P.N. 152051, D.T. 03072 
(CASE #14-6317); Daniels, Ralph, P.N. 094303 (CASE #15-0317); Gillon, 
Brittani, D.T. 04181 (CASE #15-1770); Thompson, Shanda, R.N. 275194 (CASE 
#15-1221); Spargo, Ashley, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-0563); Hugg, Diane, R.N. 
259386 (CASE #15-1389); Belknap, George, R.N. 380398 (CASE #15-1828); 
Davis, Bryttany, P.N. 158837 (CASE #15-1826); Powell, Carol, P.N. 094661 
(CASE #14-1723); Peabody, Lisa, P.N. 120432 (CASE #14-4219); Ricker, Jillian, 
P.N. 152390 (CASE #13-8359); Snelling, Tara, P.N. 146665 (CASE #14-6157); 
Creixell Plazas, Miren, R.N. 398015 (CASE #14-1555); Wilms, Kelly, R.N. 
407651 (CASE #15-0979); Jackson, Ashley , P.N. 150103 (CASE #14-1849); 
Manzano, Ronald , R.N. 178946 (CASE #14-4801); Waers, Donna, P.N. 142785 
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(CASE #14-2905); Durant, Michele, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #14-6303); Shields, 
Cynthia, R.N. 238739, NP 14957, CTP 14957 (CASE #15-2644); Knotts, 
Rebecca, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #14-6555); Christensen, Kelli, R.N. 291350, P.N. 
095950 (CASE #14-5935); Neail, Janika, P.N. 139264 (CASE #14-1000); Mellott, 
Wendy, R.N. 206180 (CASE #15-1762); Krajacic, Lindsay, R.N. 326037 (CASE 
#15-2416); Hendel, Ingrid, R.N. 301001, NP 15093, CTP 15093 (CASE #15-
2358); Wycoff, Kenneth, R.N. 391219, NP 14738, CTP 14738 (CASE #15-2347); 
Goske, Grace, R.N. 333477, NP 14706, CTP 14706 (CASE #15-2349); Brunger, 
Robin, P.N. 151868 (CASE #14-4760); Harmer, Joshua, R.N. 278077 (CASE 
#14-2149); Deitch, Holly, R.N. 309431, P.N. 104693 (CASE #15-0731); Nyika-
Makore, Angela, R.N. 262095 (CASE #12-0934); Massey, Laurie, R.N. 276203 
(CASE #14-5463); Ceo, Michelle, P.N. 131455 (CASE #14-0869); Jones, 
Danielle, P.N. 155544 (CASE #14-2813); Eller, Deanna, R.N. 385020 (CASE 
#14-5699); Veverka, Melissa, R.N. 326827 (CASE #14-6375); Pickens, David, 
R.N. 300983 (CASE #14-4535); Hermiller, Lisa, P.N. 143222 (CASE #14-5397); 
Collins, Jennifer, R.N. 265014 (CASE #15-2268); Turski, Shelly, R.N. 215555, 
NP 14772, CTP 14772 (CASE #15-2957); Krieger, Julie, R.N. 234044 (CASE 
#14-3574); Palacio, Raven, P.N. 151284 (CASE #14-1302); Wilczynski, 
Christianne, R.N. 337796 (CASE #14-3280); Willis, Jameesha, P.N. 152743 
(CASE #14-2816); Heckler, Michelle, P.N. 152616 (CASE #14-6071); 
Berkemeier, Jacob, R.N. 365586 (CASE #14-2673); Christian, Julia, R.N. 138990 
(CASE #14-6557); Wilms, Jennifer, R.N. 228818 (CASE #15-0405); Wallace, 
Elisabeth, P.N. 219704 (CASE #13-5714); Weinberg, Eric, R.N. 345929 (CASE 
#13-7285); Balsiger, Beverly, P.N. 103179 (CASE #14-6446); Hammond, 
Lauren, R.N. 328214 (CASE #13-5140); Zeedyk, Holli, R.N. 316078, NP 15643, 
CTP 15643 (CASE #15-2738); Washington, Julie, P.N. 121935 (CASE #15-
1170); Springfield, Charmin, P.N. 119661 (CASE #14-6707); Kawecki, Ruth, R.N. 
NCLEX (CASE #15-2230); Curry, Lori, R.N. 257246 (CASE #14-3598); Loebick, 
Jennifer, R.N. 347964 (CASE #14-3673); Smith, Sabrinia, P.N. 152554 (CASE 
#14-5824); Bodnar, Elizabeth, R.N. 379526 (CASE #14-6516); Rademachir, 
Mary, R.N. 410522, P.N. 144671 (CASE #15-2058); Wilson, Judy, P.N. 073164 
(CASE #15-2730); Rayer, Peggy, R.N. 190653 (CASE #14-6253); Buga, Ammi, 
R.N. 351092 (CASE #14-6830); Campbell, Tamara, R.N. 180786 (CASE #14-
1152); Duval, Jodie, R.N. 322118 (CASE #14-4726); Daugherty, Kayce, R.N. 
327499 (CASE #15-0036); Oleary, Misty , P.N. 104780 (CASE #13-2172); Daley, 
Bridgette, R.N. 345075 (CASE #14-5143); Pearce, Saundra, R.N. 192126 (CASE 
#15-2053); Nickles, Jennifer, R.N. NCLEX, P.N. 107006 (CASE #14-4518); 
McDaniel, Elizabeth, R.N. 361083 (CASE #15-3124); Marshall, Jeanne, R.N. 
179342 (CASE #15-2585); LeMaster, Andrew, R.N. 359743, P.N. 129167 (CASE 
#14-0668); Lightner, Aisha, P.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-0997); Lewis, Nicole, P.N. 
136451 (CASE #14-5320); Brown, Charlene, R.N. 130646 (CASE #14-1374); 
Denton, Deandra, P.N. 158444 (CASE #15-2055); Jones, Robert, R.N. 329378 
(CASE #14-5911); Heenan, Mary, R.N. 291537 (CASE #14-0030); Clark, 
Tenishia, P.N. 139154 (CASE #13-5843); Arnold, Sally, R.N. 308338, NP 15502, 
CTP 15502 (CASE #15-2703); Jones, Trina, P.N. 135047 (CASE #15-3133); 
Dials, Sara, R.N. 351537 (CASE #15-2654); Wilbon, Tiahna, P.N. NCLEX (CASE 
#15-2261); Morgan, George, R.N. NCLEX, P.N. 127962 (CASE #14-5456); 
Burnette, Wendy, R.N. 258456, NP 11798, CTP 11798 (CASE #15-3502); 
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Hensley, Brenda, R.N. 177116 (CASE #13-0901); Werner, Heather, P.N. 139180 
(CASE #14-4498); Hawkins, Cheryl, P.N. 125807 (CASE #15-3063); Piekarz, 
Kimberly , P.N. 152191 (CASE #14-1858); Smith, Mark, R.N. 270481 (CASE 
#14-6128); McQueen, Jennifer, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-1747); Odiri, Benedict, 
R.N. 322621, NP 15637, CTP 15637 (CASE #15-2938); Jones, Eddrianna, R.N. 
NCLEX, P.N. 129177 (CASE #15-0943); Willoughby, Rebecca, R.N. NCLEX, 
P.N. 104380 (CASE #14-7000); Reynolds, Kristen, R.N. 377924 (CASE #15-
0438); Langhorn, Dawn, P.N. 155165 (CASE #15-3051); Forte, Rebecca, R.N. 
329816 (CASE #15-3352); Meyer, Thomas, R.N. 234905, NA 04300 (CASE #15-
2107); Brown, Kirby, R.N. 261962 (CASE #15-3812); Mellon, Liane, R.N. 
NCLEX, P.N. 151598 (CASE #15-1668); Peirson, Staci, R.N. 319684 (CASE 
#13-6640); Givens, Jacquelyne, P.N. 150334 (CASE #13-1668); Fayson-
Robbins, Latonya, P.N. 137590 (CASE #14-6752); Jacobs, Vera, R.N. 283154 
(CASE #13-1285); Boyce, Timothy, R.N. 293610 (CASE #13-7046); Marhefky, 
Rheannon, R.N. 318548 (CASE #15-2897); Bowen, Hannah, R.N. NCLEX, P.N. 
143484 (CASE #15-1291); Hughes, Delora, P.N. 095421 (CASE #14-5404); 
Thompson, Teresa, R.N. 192648 (CASE #15-3584); Thomas, Heather, R.N. 
270283, NA 09876 (CASE #14-5801); Ziemba, Valerie , R.N. 235248 (CASE 
#15-2735); DeStella, Lisa, R.N. 336621 (CASE #15-1938); Butzer, Candas, P.N. 
129524 (CASE #14-4132); Hamdi, Mahamud, R.N. 379824 (CASE #15-2776); 
Seals, Patricia, R.N. 190584 (CASE #13-3616); Dinya, Carrie, R.N. 292125 
(CASE #14-6474); Klausing, Sarah, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-0650); Seciliot, 
Steven, R.N. NCLEX (CASE #15-0652); Borders, Cynthy, P.N. 107378 (CASE 
#14-3391); Rainey, Ruth, R.N. 387696 (CASE #14-5792); Gates, Ciera, R.N. 
NCLEX (CASE #14-7068); Reese, Ashley, R.N. 339954 (CASE #15-3770); 
Leonard, Michelle, P.N. 103586 (CASE #15-0094); Congeni, Karen, R.N. 293435 
(CASE #15-2734); Strausbaugh, Devon, R.N. 351829 (CASE #15-1356); Lavin, 
Luann, R.N. 304137, NP 11102, CTP 11102 (CASE #15-2028).  
 
Judith Church abstained from voting on all cases 
 
J. Jane McFee, Patricia Sharpnack and Lauralee Krabill voted no on Yeauger, 
Pamela, P.N. 137372 (CASE #14-2987); J. Jane McFee voted no on Veverka, 
Melissa, R.N. 326827 (CASE #14-6375). 
 
Motion for all other cases adopted by a majority vote of the Board members. 
 
Complete copies of the Consent Agreements shall be maintained in the exhibit 
book for the July 2015 Board meeting. 
 
 
HEARING EXAMINER’S REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION 
Terrell, Usinda, P.N. 125033 (CASE #14-0709) 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and modified 
the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation 
and that USINDA TERRELL’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse in the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
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Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Murray, Jenny, P.N. 115772 (CASE #13-2743) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MS. MURRAY’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for a period of not 
less than one (1) year and that the suspension is stayed subject to the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of one 
(1) year, including the Temporary Practice Restrictions, unless otherwise 
approved by the Board or its designee, set forth below. 
 
MS. MURRAY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
shall be subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. MURRAY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. MURRAY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 
3. MS. MURRAY shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal 

Identification and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check 
of MS. MURRAY, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. MURRAY’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  MS. MURRAY’s completed criminal 
records check, including the FBI check, must be received by the Board 
within six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 

 
4. During the probationary period, MS. MURRAY shall, in addition to the 

requirements for renewal of her license, successfully complete and submit 
satisfactory documentation of successful completion of the following 
continuing education taken subsequent to the effective date of this Order:  
two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules, five (5) hours of Ethics, five 
(5) hours of Professional Boundaries, and ten (10) hours of Patient Rights. 

 
Employment Conditions 
 
5. MS. MURRAY shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and address 

of any current employer within thirty (30) days following the effective 
date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting employment 
as a nurse. 
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6. MS. MURRAY, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. MURRAY is under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. MURRAY shall have her employer(s), if 
working in a position where a nursing license is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or beginning 
within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  MS. 
MURRAY shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, 
along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were 
received.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MURRAY 
 
7. MS. MURRAY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
8. MS. MURRAY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
9. MS. MURRAY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
10. MS. MURRAY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
11. MS. MURRAY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
12. MS. MURRAY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 
13. MS. MURRAY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 24 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. MURRAY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
(1) for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice 
care programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. MURRAY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. MURRAY shall not function in a position or employment where 
the job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include but are not limited to the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. MURRAY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. MURRAY’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. MURRAY has violated or breached 
any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the 
Board shall notify MS. MURRAY via certified mail of the specific nature of the 
charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, 
MS. MURRAY may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. MURRAY has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. MURRAY is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. MURRAY and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. MURRAY 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
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Evans, Melanie, R.N. 343682 (CASE #14-3207) 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MELANIE EVANS’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than three (3) years retroactive to July 25, 2014, with the 
conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. 
EVANS’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a 
stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below 
for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the Permanent Practice and 
Temporary Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. EVANS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. EVANS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. EVANS shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. EVANS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. EVANS’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. EVANS shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and 
conditions imposed by the Highland County Court of Common Pleas in 
Case Number 14CR031. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. EVANS shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  fifteen (15) hours of Substance Abuse, five (5) hours 
of Professionalism, and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. EVANS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. EVANS’s history.  MS. EVANS shall self-administer the 
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prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 
 

7. MS. EVANS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol.  

 
8. Within three (3) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the 

Board, MS. EVANS shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. EVANS shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
EVANS shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. EVANS's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. EVANS is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. EVANS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. EVANS’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. EVANS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. EVANS’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
EVANS shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. EVANS’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. EVANS initiating drug screening, MS. 

EVANS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
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completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. EVANS. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. EVANS shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. EVANS shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. EVANS shall attend a minimum 
of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved 
in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. EVANS 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. EVANS 

 
14. MS. EVANS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. EVANS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. EVANS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. EVANS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. EVANS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. EVANS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. EVANS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. EVANS 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
EVANS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. EVANS is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
EVANS and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. EVANS’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. EVANS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. EVANS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. EVANS shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. EVANS’s 
history.  MS. EVANS shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. EVANS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. MS. EVANS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 
compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. EVANS’s license. 
 

6. During the probationary period, MS. EVANS shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. EVANS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. EVANS’s history. 
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7. MS. EVANS shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 
support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. EVANS shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

EVANS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. EVANS shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
9. MS. EVANS shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. EVANS 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. EVANS shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. EVANS shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

12. MS. EVANS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. EVANS 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. EVANS shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

13. MS. EVANS shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 30 
 
 

Reporting Requirements of MS. EVANS 
 

14. MS. EVANS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
15. MS. EVANS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MS. EVANS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
17. MS. EVANS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MS. EVANS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MS. EVANS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MS. EVANS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. EVANS shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. EVANS’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. EVANS’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. EVANS shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. EVANS shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. EVANS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
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nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. EVANS to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. EVANS shall not function in a position or employment where the 
job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. EVANS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. EVANS’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. EVANS has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. EVANS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. EVANS 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. EVANS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. EVANS is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. EVANS and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. EVANS does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Chamberlin, Brandon, R.N. 362300 (CASE #13-3866) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that BRANDON CHAMBERLIN’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time but not less than one (1) year after MR. CHAMBERLIN is released 
from the custody of the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction 
(ODRC), with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following 
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reinstatement, MR. CHAMBERLIN’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the 
Temporary Practice and Temporary Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
 
Further, on this date, the Board ordered that the record reflect that the Hearing 
Examiner incorrectly referred to the Lorain and Grafton ODRC penal Institutions 
as Institutes. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall appear in person for interviews before the full 
Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. CHAMBERLIN 

shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and 
Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. 
CHAMBERLIN, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 
records, and shall cause BCII to submit MR. CHAMBERLIN’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be 
considered by the Board until the completed criminal records check, 
including the FBI check, has been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. CHAMBERLIN 

shall submit documentation of his full compliance with the terms and 
conditions imposed by the Summit County Court of Common Pleas in 
Case Number CR13 06 1579. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. CHAMBERLIN 

shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of his license, 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
subsequent to the effective date of this Order: ten (10) hours of Stress 
Management. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s history.  MR. CHAMBERLIN shall self-administer the 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or 
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any products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Within forty-five (45) days prior to requesting reinstatement by the 
Board, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall, at his expense, obtain a chemical 
dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency 
professional and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide 
the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MR. CHAMBERLIN shall execute releases to permit the chemical 
dependency professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate 
and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions 
that should be placed on MR. CHAMBERLIN's license, and a statement 
as to whether MR. CHAMBERLIN is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide the Board with satisfactory 

documentation of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan 
developed by the chemical dependency professional described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MR. CHAMBERLIN’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit, at his 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or 
in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of 
a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. CHAMBERLIN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. CHAMBERLIN’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. CHAMBERLIN initiating drug 

screening, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide a copy of this Order to all 
treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. CHAMBERLIN. 
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12. After initiating drug screening, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall notify the 
Board of any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within 
twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 
treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall attend a 
minimum of three (3) meetings per week of a support or peer group 
meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, 
and MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide satisfactory documentation of such 
attendance to the Board prior to reinstatement. 

 
14. Within forty-five (45) days prior to requesting reinstatement by the 

Board, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall, at his expense, obtain a psychiatric 
evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing and 
shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The psychiatrist 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions 
that should be placed on MR. CHAMBERLIN's license, and a statement 
as to whether MR. CHAMBERLIN is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
15. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide the Board with satisfactory 

documentation of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan 
developed by the psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the 
Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions 
from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. CHAMBERLIN 

 
16. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
17. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
18. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
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misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
19. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
20. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of 
Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
21. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall verify that the reports and documentation 

required by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

22. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. 
CHAMBERLIN submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board 
determines that MR. CHAMBERLIN has complied with all conditions of 
reinstatement; and (3) the Board determines that MR. CHAMBERLIN is able to 
practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care based upon an interview with MR. CHAMBERLIN and review of the 
documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s license shall be subject to the following probationary 
terms and restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall appear in person for interviews before the full 

Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s history.  MR. CHAMBERLIN shall self-administer 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or 
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any products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit, at his 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or 
in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of 
a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. CHAMBERLIN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. CHAMBERLIN’s history. 

 
6. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall attend a minimum of three (3) meetings per 

week of a support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the 
Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MR. CHAMBERLIN shall provide 
satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) 
months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

CHAMBERLIN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. 
CHAMBERLIN shall be under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this 
Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and 
to update the list of treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight 
(48) hours of being treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. 
CHAMBERLIN throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. CHAMBERLIN shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MR. CHAMBERLIN shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MR. CHAMBERLIN is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
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Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MR. CHAMBERLIN shall have his employer(s), if working in a 
position where a license to practice nursing is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within 
thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. 
CHAMBERLIN shall have his employer(s) send documentation to the 
Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing, including the date they were received. 
 

12. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall, prior to working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, complete and submit 
satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an 
extensive orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. CHAMBERLIN 

 
13. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall sign releases of information forms allowing 

health professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the 
attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High 
Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall verify that the reports and documentation 

required by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 
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Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MR. CHAMBERLIN’s use by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MR. CHAMBERLIN’s history) any narcotics, other 
controlled substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MR. CHAMBERLIN 
shall not count narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication 
carts, cabinets, drawers, or containers. MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not call in or 
order prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MR. CHAMBERLIN to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MR. CHAMBERLIN shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. CHAMBERLIN’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. 
CHAMBERLIN’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MR. CHAMBERLIN has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MR. CHAMBERLIN via certified 
mail of the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of his 
license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. CHAMBERLIN may request a hearing 
regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. CHAMBERLIN has complied with all aspects of 
this Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. CHAMBERLIN is able to 
practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. CHAMBERLIN 
and review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. 
CHAMBERLIN does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing 
is required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 39 
 
this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Meade, Sandra, R.N. 303658 (CASE #13-4561) 
Action:  It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that SANDRA MEADE’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth 
below, and following reinstatement, MS. MEADE’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Permanent Practice Restrictions with no direct patient 
care, and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  The Board has determined that 
any nursing position that involve direct patient care would be a threat to public 
safety. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. MEADE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. MEADE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MEADE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. MEADE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. MEADE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MEADE shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules, five (5) 
hours of Professional Responsibility; five (5) hours of Ethics, and fifteen 
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(15) hours of Substance Abuse. 
 

Monitoring  
 

5. MS. MEADE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. MEADE’s 
history.  MS. MEADE shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. Within one (1) year prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, 

MS. MEADE shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. MEADE shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. MEADE shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. MEADE's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. MEADE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. MEADE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. MEADE’s license. 

 
8. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MEADE shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times as the 
Board may request.  Upon and after MS. MEADE’s initiation of drug 
screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. MEADE shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
MEADE’s history. 

 
9. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. MEADE initiating drug screening, MS. 

MEADE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
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shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. MEADE. 

 
10. After initiating drug screening, MS. MEADE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. MEADE shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
11. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MEADE shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. MEADE shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MEADE 

 
12. MS. MEADE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. MEADE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. MEADE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. MEADE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. MEADE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. MEADE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. MEADE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
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writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. MEADE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
MEADE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. MEADE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
MEADE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. MEADE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. MEADE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. MEADE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. MEADE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. MEADE’s 
history.  MS. MEADE shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. During the probationary period, MS. MEADE shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times as the 
Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. MEADE 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. MEADE’s history. 

 
5. MS. MEADE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. MEADE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
6. Prior to accepting employment, MS. MEADE shall, at her expense, 

obtain a comprehensive physical examination by a Board approved 
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physician for the purposes of evaluating MS. MEADE’s fitness for duty 
and safety to practice nursing as a registered nurse.  This Board approved 
physician shall provide the Board with complete documentation of MS. 
MEADE’s comprehensive physical examination and with a comprehensive 
assessment regarding MS. MEADE’s fitness for duty and safety to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse.  Prior to the examination, MS. 
MEADE shall provide the Board approved physician with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. MEADE 
shall execute releases to permit the Board approved physician performing 
the comprehensive physical examination and assessment to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the assessment.  The 
evaluating physician shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. MEADE’s license to 
practice, and stating whether MS. MEADE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

7. The Board may utilize the Board approved physician's recommendations 
and conclusions from the comprehensive physical examination and 
assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
MEADE’s license. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

MEADE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. MEADE shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
9. MS. MEADE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. MEADE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. MEADE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. MEADE shall obtain approval from the Board or its designee. 
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12. MS. MEADE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. MEADE shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. MEADE shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

13. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. MEADE shall, prior to 
working in a position where a license to practice nursing is required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MEADE 

 
14. MS. MEADE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
15. MS. MEADE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MS. MEADE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
17. MS. MEADE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MS. MEADE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MS. MEADE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MS. MEADE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 
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Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. MEADE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. MEADE’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. MEADE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. MEADE shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. MEADE shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. MEADE shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. MEADE to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. MEADE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
MS. MEADE shall not provide direct, hands-on patient care or management or 
supervision of direct, hands-on patient care. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. MEADE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. MEADE’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. MEADE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. MEADE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. MEADE 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. MEADE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. MEADE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. MEADE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. MEADE does not work 
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in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Abshire, Melissa, P.N. 155057 (CASE #14-3327) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Judith Church, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MELISSA ABSHIRE’s license to practice nursing as 
a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following 
reinstatement, MS. ABSHIRE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  The Board has determined that 
drug screening for three (3) months and an updated chemical dependency 
evaluation within three (3) months, rather than six (6) months prior to 
reinstatement as recommended by the Hearing Examiner, will adequately protect 
the public. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. ABSHIRE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. ABSHIRE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ABSHIRE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. ABSHIRE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. ABSHIRE’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MS. ABSHIRE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
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possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
ABSHIRE’s history.  MS. ABSHIRE shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
5. MS. ABSHIRE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

6. Within three (3) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the 
Board, MS. ABSHIRE shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical 
dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency 
professional and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. ABSHIRE shall provide the 
chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MS. ABSHIRE shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. ABSHIRE's license, and a statement as to whether MS. ABSHIRE 
is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. ABSHIRE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ABSHIRE’s license. 

 
8. For a minimum, continuous period of three (3) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. ABSHIRE shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. ABSHIRE’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
ABSHIRE shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. ABSHIRE’s history. 

 
9. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. ABSHIRE initiating drug screening, 

MS. ABSHIRE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
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practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. ABSHIRE. 

 
10. After initiating drug screening, MS. ABSHIRE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. ABSHIRE shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
11. For a minimum, continuous period of three (3) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. ABSHIRE shall attend a 
minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting 
approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. 
ABSHIRE shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to 
the Board prior to reinstatement. 

 
12. MS. ABSHIRE shall continue to participate in psychological treatment and 

in individual treatment/counseling at least two (2) times per month with her 
current counselor, or with a mental health provider approved in advance 
by the Board, until released.  MS. ABSHIRE shall have her mental health 
provider submit written reports to the Board regarding MS. ABSHIRE’s 
progress, status, and compliance with her treatment plan on a quarterly 
basis beginning within sixty (60) days following the effective date of this 
Order.  MS. ABSHIRE shall provide her approved treating mental health 
professional(s) with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic 
Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing within sixty (60) days following 
the effective date of this Order.  MS. ABSHIRE shall have her mental 
health treating professional(s) send documentation to the Board of receipt 
of a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing along with their first treatment report.  Further, the 
Board may use the treatment provider’s recommendations and 
conclusions from the reports as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ABSHIRE’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ABSHIRE 

 
13. MS. ABSHIRE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  
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15. MS. ABSHIRE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. ABSHIRE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. ABSHIRE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. ABSHIRE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
ABSHIRE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. ABSHIRE is able to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. ABSHIRE and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
ABSHIRE’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. ABSHIRE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. ABSHIRE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. ABSHIRE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
ABSHIRE’s history.  MS. ABSHIRE shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 
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4. MS. ABSHIRE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
5. During the probationary period, MS. ABSHIRE shall submit, at her 

expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. ABSHIRE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. ABSHIRE’s history. 

 
6. MS. ABSHIRE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. ABSHIRE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
7. MS. ABSHIRE shall continue to participate in psychological treatment and 

in individual treatment/counseling at least two (2) times per month with her 
current counselor, or with a mental health provider approved in advance 
by the Board, until released.  MS. ABSHIRE shall have her mental health 
provider submit written reports to the Board regarding MS. ABSHIRE’s 
progress, status, and compliance with her treatment plan on a quarterly 
basis beginning within sixty (60) days following the effective date of this 
Order.  MS. ABSHIRE shall provide her approved treating mental health 
professional(s) with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic 
Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing within sixty (60) days following 
the effective date of this Order.  MS. ABSHIRE shall have her mental 
health treating professional(s) send documentation to the Board of receipt 
of a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing along with their first treatment report.  Further, the 
Board may use the treatment provider’s recommendations and 
conclusions from the reports as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ABSHIRE’s license. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

ABSHIRE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. ABSHIRE shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
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treated by another practitioner. 
 

9. MS. ABSHIRE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 
medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
ABSHIRE throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. ABSHIRE shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. ABSHIRE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

12. MS. ABSHIRE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
ABSHIRE shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. ABSHIRE shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

13. MS. ABSHIRE shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ABSHIRE 

 
14. MS. ABSHIRE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
15. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MS. ABSHIRE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 
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17. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 
this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MS. ABSHIRE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MS. ABSHIRE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MS. ABSHIRE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. ABSHIRE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
(1) for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice 
care programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. ABSHIRE to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. ABSHIRE shall not function in a position or employment where 
the job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. ABSHIRE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. ABSHIRE’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. ABSHIRE has violated or 
breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MS. ABSHIRE via certified mail of the specific 
nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of 
this notice, MS. ABSHIRE may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. ABSHIRE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. ABSHIRE is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. ABSHIRE and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. ABSHIRE 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Robinson, Talea, P.N. Applicant (CASE #14-0535) 
Action:  It was moved by Judith Church, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MS. ROBINSON’s application for licensure by 
endorsement to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of 
Ohio be granted subject to a stayed suspension with the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of one (1) year, including the 
Temporary Narcotic and Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
MS. ROBINSON’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
shall be subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. ROBINSON shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. ROBINSON shall appear in person for interviews before the full 

Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 
3. MS. ROBINSON shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal 

Identification and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check 
of MS. ROBINSON, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. ROBINSON’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  MS. ROBINSON’s completed 
criminal records check, including the FBI check, must be received by the 
Board within six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 

 
4. Within six (6) months of her license being granted, MS. ROBINSON 

shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
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subsequent to the effective date of this Order:  two (2) hours of Ohio 
Nursing Law and Rules, five (5) hours of Ethics and Professionalism, ten 
(10) hours Drug Abuse, five (5) hours Professional Accountability and 
Legal Liability, two (2) hours Emotional Intelligence, and one (1) hour of 
Veracity. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. ROBINSON shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
ROBINSON’s history.  MS. ROBINSON shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. ROBINSON shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

7. Within ninety (90) days of her license being granted, MS. ROBINSON 
shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a 
Board approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the 
Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the 
evaluation, MS. ROBINSON shall provide the chemical dependency 
professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. ROBINSON shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. ROBINSON's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. ROBINSON is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. ROBINSON shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation 

of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ROBINSON’s license. 

 
9. Within ninety (90) days of her license being granted, and continuing 

throughout the probationary period, MS. ROBINSON shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
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submitted by MS. ROBINSON shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. ROBINSON’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 
10. Prior to initiating screens, MS. ROBINSON shall provide a copy of this 

Order to all treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all 
treating practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  
Further, MS. ROBINSON shall be under a continuing duty to provide a 
copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional treating 
practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with the Board 
within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another practitioner. 

 
11. MS. ROBINSON shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
ROBINSON throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
12. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. ROBINSON shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 
 
13. MS. ROBINSON shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and 

address of any current employer within thirty (30) days following the 
effective date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse. 

 
14. MS. ROBINSON, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. ROBINSON is under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. ROBINSON shall have her employer(s), if 
working in a position where a nursing license is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or beginning 
within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  MS. 
ROBINSON shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, 
along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were 
received.   

 
15. MS. ROBINSON shall, prior to working in a position where a license 
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to practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ROBINSON 
 
16. MS. ROBINSON shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
17. MS. ROBINSON shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
18. MS. ROBINSON shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
19. MS. ROBINSON shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
20. MS. ROBINSON shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
21. MS. ROBINSON shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 
22. MS. ROBINSON shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. ROBINSON shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. ROBINSON’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. ROBINSON’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. ROBINSON shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers.  MS. ROBINSON shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. ROBINSON shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 57 
 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. ROBINSON to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. ROBINSON shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include but are not limited to the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. ROBINSON’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. 
ROBINSON’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. ROBINSON has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. ROBINSON via certified mail of 
the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  
Upon receipt of this notice, MS. ROBINSON may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. ROBINSON has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. ROBINSON is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. ROBINSON and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
ROBINSON does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Forte, Jennifer, R.N. 302853 (CASE #13-8385) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
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that JENNIFER FORTE’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the 
State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Slone, Michelle, R.N. 321211 (CASE #14-1368) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MICHELLE SLONE’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than one (1) year with the conditions for reinstatement set forth 
below, and following reinstatement, MS. SLONE’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. SLONE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. SLONE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLONE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. SLONE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. SLONE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLONE shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Substance Abuse, five (5) hours of 
Ethics, five (5) hours of Professionalism, and two (2) hours of Ohio 
Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLONE shall 

submit documentation of her successful completion of all terms of the 
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Order of Summary Suspension issued by the West Virginia Board of 
Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses dated March 13, 2014, and 
that her West Virginia license is fully reinstated and unencumbered.   

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. SLONE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. SLONE’s 
history.  MS. SLONE shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. SLONE shall, at 

her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. SLONE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
SLONE shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. SLONE's license, and a statement as to whether MS. SLONE is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. SLONE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. SLONE’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of six (6) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. SLONE shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times 
as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. SLONE’s initiation of drug 
screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. SLONE shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
SLONE’s history. 
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10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. SLONE initiating drug screening, MS. 
SLONE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. SLONE. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. SLONE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. SLONE shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLONE shall, at 

her expense, obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved 
psychiatrist and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. SLONE shall provide the 
psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. SLONE's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. SLONE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  
The psychiatrist shall make a specific recommendation as to whether MS. 
SLONE should be required to abstain from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
13. MS. SLONE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. SLONE’s license. 

 
14. MS. SLONE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the psychiatrist. 
 

Reporting Requirements of MS. SLONE 
 

15. MS. SLONE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  
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16. MS. SLONE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
17. MS. SLONE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
18. MS. SLONE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
19. MS. SLONE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
20. MS. SLONE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

21. MS. SLONE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. SLONE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
SLONE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. SLONE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
SLONE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. SLONE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. SLONE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. SLONE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. SLONE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. SLONE’s 
history.  MS. SLONE shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 
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4. MS. SLONE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the psychiatrist. 
 

5. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. SLONE shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. SLONE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
SLONE shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. SLONE's license, and a statement as to whether MS. SLONE is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
6. MS. SLONE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. SLONE’s license. 

 
7. During the probationary period, MS. SLONE shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times as the 
Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. SLONE 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. SLONE’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

SLONE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. SLONE shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 
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9. MS. SLONE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 
prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. SLONE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. SLONE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. SLONE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

12. MS. SLONE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. SLONE shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. SLONE shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

13. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. SLONE shall, prior to 
working in a position where a license to practice nursing is required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. SLONE 

 
14. MS. SLONE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
15. MS. SLONE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MS. SLONE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
17. MS. SLONE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
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Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MS. SLONE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MS. SLONE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MS. SLONE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. SLONE shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. SLONE to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. SLONE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. SLONE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. SLONE’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. SLONE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. SLONE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. SLONE 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. SLONE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. SLONE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
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Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. SLONE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. SLONE does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Alder, Ean, P.N. 136818 (CASE #13-6038) 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that EAN ALDER’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse in 
the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015 
 
Mitchell, IV, John, P.N. 104775 (CASE #14-5126) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that JOHN MITCHELL’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following 
reinstatement, MR. MITCHELL’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse shall be subject to the previously imposed Permanent Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. MITCHELL shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. MITCHELL shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. MITCHELL shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. MITCHELL, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
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BCII to submit MR. MITCHELL’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MR. MITCHELL shall complete and 

submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse refresher 
course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. MITCHELL 

 
5. MR. MITCHELL shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. MITCHELL shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MR. MITCHELL shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. MITCHELL shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MR. MITCHELL shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. MITCHELL shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. MITCHELL shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. 
MITCHELL submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MR. MITCHELL has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MR. MITCHELL is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MR. MITCHELL and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
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Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MR. MITCHELL shall not be involved in financial activities or supervise financial 
activities in any position that requires a license as a licensed practical nurse. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. MITCHELL’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. MITCHELL’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MR. MITCHELL has violated or 
breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MR. MITCHELL via certified mail of the 
specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of his license.  Upon 
receipt of this notice, MR. MITCHELL may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Jordan, LaJuana, R.N. 307111 (CASE #13-3370) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board admit as additional evidence the June 8, 2015 Report issued by Shepherd 
Hill, and that the Report be sealed according to 42 C.F.R. Part 2. 
 
It was further moved that the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s 
Report and Recommendation and that no disciplinary sanction be imposed on 
LaJUANA JORDAN’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the 
State of Ohio. 
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  The June 8, 2015 Report issued 
by Shepherd Hill finds that MS. JORDAN is not impaired. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Hampton, Aisha, R.N. 310360 (CASE #13-6877) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and modified the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
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that AISHA HAMPTON’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the 
State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  Aggravating circumstances in this 
case include MS. HAMPTON’s prior disciplines by the Board in the form of a 
November 2012 Consent Agreement, based on falsifying documents and 
submitting false information to the Board, and MS. HAMPTON’s violation of the 
Consent Agreement by working in home care, resulting in a second opportunity 
extended to MS. HAMPTON in the form of a January 2013 Addendum.  
 
The current case involves another breach of the Consent Agreement and 
recklessness with confidential patient medical records and supplies.  
 
MS. HAMPTON’s disciplinary and work history does not support that she can 
practice nursing safely, nor has MS. HAMPTON demonstrated that she may be 
effectively monitored by the Board in order to ensure public safety. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
House, Kathy, R.N. 179534 (CASE #14-2280) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that KATHY HOUSE’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the 
State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
It was further moved that the Board’s Order reflect its determination that, based 
on MS. HOUSE’s alcohol related history, in order to protect the public, MS. 
HOUSE’s abstinence from alcohol is required, and, as stated by the Hearing 
Examiner at page 26 of the Report and Recommendation, MS. HOUSE stated 
she will not comply with this requirement. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Knerr-Markko, Tamara, R.N. 191422 (CASE #14-4098) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Judith Church, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MS. KNERR-MARKKO’s application for 
reinstatement of her license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the State 
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of Ohio be granted subject to a stayed revocation and the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of five (5) years, including the 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
MS. KNERR-MARKKO’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse 
shall be subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall appear in person for interviews before the 

full Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 
3. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal 

Identification and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check 
of MS. KNERR-MARKKO, including a check of Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. KNERR-
MARKKO’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  MS. KNERR-
MARKKO’s completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, 
must be received by the Board within six (6) months of effective date 
of this Order. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. KNERR-MARKKO 

shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a 
Board approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the 
Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the 
evaluation, MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall execute 
releases to permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
chemical dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
KNERR-MARKKO's license, and a statement as to whether MS. KNERR-
MARKKO is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
5. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall provide the Board with satisfactory 

documentation of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan 
developed by the chemical dependency professional described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. KNERR-MARKKO’s license. 

 
6. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or 
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any products containing alcohol. 
 
7. Within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of this Order, and 

continuing throughout the probationary period, MS. KNERR-MARKKO 
shall submit, at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair 
or urine specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site 
specified by the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal 
to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day 
she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall 
constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of 
Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in 
process.  The specimens submitted by MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
KNERR-MARKKO’s history. 

 
8. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall attend a minimum of two (2) meetings per 

week of a support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the 
Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board every 
six (6) months, beginning forty-five (45) days after the effective date of this 
Order. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 
9. Prior to initiating screens, MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall provide a copy of 

this Order to all treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list 
of all treating practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  
Further, MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall be under a continuing duty to 
provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner. 

 
10. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
KNERR-MARKKO throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
11. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 
 
12. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and 

address of any current employer within thirty (30) days following the 
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effective date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse. 

 
13. MS. KNERR-MARKKO, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of 

this Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. KNERR-MARKKO is 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a nursing license is required, 
submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis 
beginning within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or 
beginning within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  
MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received.  
 

14. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall, prior to working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, complete and submit 
satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an 
extensive orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. KNERR-MARKKO 
 
15. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall sign release of information forms allowing 

health professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
16. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
17. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall not submit or cause to be submitted any 

false, misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation 
to the Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
18. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall submit the reports and documentation 

required by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
19. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall submit the reports and documentation 

required by this Order or any other documents required by the Board to 
the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South 
High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 
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20. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall verify that the reports and documentation 
required by this Order are received in the Board office. 

 
21. MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall inform the Board within five (5) business 

days, in writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. KNERR-MARKKO to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. KNERR-MARKKO shall not function in a position or employment where the 
job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include but are not limited to the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director 
of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. KNERR-MARKKO’s revocation shall be lifted and MS. 
KNERR-MARKKO’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. KNERR-MARKKO 
has violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. KNERR-MARKKO via certified 
mail of the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her 
license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. KNERR-MARKKO may request a 
hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. KNERR-MARKKO has complied with all aspects 
of this Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. KNERR-MARKKO is able 
to practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe 
nursing care without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. 
KNERR-MARKKO and review of the reports as required herein.  Any period 
during which MS. KNERR-MARKKO does not work in a position for which a 
license to practice nursing is required shall not count toward fulfilling the 
probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
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abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Wend, Pamela, P.N. 114257 (CASE #13-3443) 
Action: It was moved by Judith Church, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that PAMELA WEND’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time but not less than fourteen (14) months retroactive to June 17, 2014 
with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, 
MS. WEND’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary 
Practice and Temporary Narcotic Restrictions set forth below, unless 
otherwise approved by the Board or its designee. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. WEND shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. WEND shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. WEND shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. WEND, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. WEND’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. WEND shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Licking County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
13 CR 00442. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. WEND shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules, five (5) 
hours of Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses, and 
five (5) hours of Substance Abuse. 
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Monitoring  
 

6. MS. WEND shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. WEND’s 
history.  MS. WEND shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. WEND shall, at her 

expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved 
chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board with 
complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. 
WEND shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of 
this Order, the June 17, 2014 Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing, and the July 25, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing (the “Notices”).  Further, MS. WEND shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. WEND's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. WEND is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. WEND shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. WEND’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of three (3) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. WEND shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. WEND’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
WEND shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, 
or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. WEND’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. WEND initiating drug screening, MS. 

WEND shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
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addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. WEND. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. WEND shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. WEND shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. WEND 

 
12. MS. WEND shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. WEND shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. WEND shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. WEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. WEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. WEND shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. WEND shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. WEND 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
WEND has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. WEND is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
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and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
WEND and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. WEND’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. WEND shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. WEND shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. WEND shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. WEND’s 
history.  MS. WEND shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. WEND shall, at her 

expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved 
chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board with 
complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. 
WEND shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of 
this Order and the Notices.  Further, MS. WEND shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. WEND's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. WEND is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
5. MS. WEND shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. WEND’s license. 
 

6. During the first year of the probationary period, MS. WEND shall submit, 
at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by 
the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit 
such specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is 
selected, or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a 
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violation of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 
4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  
The specimens submitted by MS. WEND shall be negative, except for 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so 
authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. WEND’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

WEND shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. WEND shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. WEND shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. WEND 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. WEND shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. WEND shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. WEND is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notices, to any new employer prior to accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. WEND shall have her employer(s), if working in a position 
where a license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports 
regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty 
(30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. WEND shall have 
her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notices, 
including the date they were received. 
 

12. MS. WEND shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. WEND 
 

13. MS. WEND shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. WEND shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. WEND shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. WEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. WEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. WEND shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. WEND shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. WEND shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except 
as prescribed for MS. WEND’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. WEND’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. WEND shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. WEND shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. WEND shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) 
for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
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nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. WEND to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. WEND shall not function in a position or employment where the 
job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. WEND’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. WEND’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. WEND has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. WEND via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. WEND 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. WEND has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. WEND is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. WEND and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. WEND does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Bailey, Donna, P.N. 106576 (CASE #12-7175) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that DONNA BAILEY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
in the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
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This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Rapier, Malinda, P.N. 076590 (CASE #11-0186) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, including the recommendation that the Report and 
Recommendation be sealed, and that MALINDA RAPIER’s license to practice 
nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and 
following reinstatement, MS. RAPIER’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, 
including the Permanent Practice and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. RAPIER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. RAPIER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAPIER shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. RAPIER, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. RAPIER’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAPIER shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  fifteen (15) hours of Substance Abuse, ten (10) hours 
of Medication Administration and Documentation, five (5) hours of Ethics, 
and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. RAPIER shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
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RAPIER’s history.  MS. RAPIER shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. RAPIER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAPIER shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. RAPIER shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
RAPIER shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. RAPIER's license, and a statement as to whether MS. RAPIER is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. RAPIER shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. RAPIER’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. RAPIER shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. RAPIER’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. RAPIER 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. RAPIER’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. RAPIER initiating drug screening, MS. 

RAPIER shall provide a copy of this Order, the Hearing Examiner’s Report 
and Recommendation, the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Dr. 
Gureasko’s evaluation report to all treating practitioners and shall provide 
to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including addresses and 
telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to complete a 
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medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
RAPIER. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. RAPIER shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide, prior to initiating treatment, a copy of this Order, the 
Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation, the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and Dr. Gureasko’s evaluation report to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. RAPIER shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. RAPIER shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. RAPIER shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RAPIER 

 
13. MS. RAPIER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. RAPIER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. RAPIER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. RAPIER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. RAPIER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. RAPIER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. RAPIER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
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writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. RAPIER 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
RAPIER has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. RAPIER is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
RAPIER and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. RAPIER’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. RAPIER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. RAPIER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. RAPIER shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
RAPIER’s history.  MS. RAPIER shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. RAPIER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. RAPIER shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. RAPIER shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. RAPIER’s history. 

 
6. MS. RAPIER shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. RAPIER shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 
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Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 

7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 
RAPIER shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. RAPIER shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. RAPIER shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
RAPIER throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. RAPIER shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. RAPIER shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. RAPIER is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. RAPIER shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. RAPIER shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. RAPIER shall, prior to 
working in a position where a license to practice nursing is required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RAPIER 

 
13. MS. RAPIER shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
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documentation directly to the Board. 
 

14. MS. RAPIER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. RAPIER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. RAPIER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. RAPIER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. RAPIER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. RAPIER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. RAPIER shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. RAPIER’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. RAPIER’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. RAPIER shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. RAPIER shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. RAPIER shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. RAPIER to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. RAPIER shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
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or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  
Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. RAPIER’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. RAPIER’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. RAPIER has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. RAPIER via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. RAPIER 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. RAPIER has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. RAPIER is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. RAPIER and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. RAPIER does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining.  
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Lilly, Megan, P.N. #133803 (CASE #14-3690) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MEGAN LILLY’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following 
reinstatement, MS. LILLY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below, unless otherwise approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee, as imposed in the May 17, 2013 Consent 
Agreement. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. LILLY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
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rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. LILLY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. LILLY shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. LILLY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. LILLY’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MS. LILLY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. LILLY’s 
history.  MS. LILLY shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
5. Within six (6) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, 

MS. LILLY shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. LILLY shall provide the chemical dependency 
professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic 
Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. LILLY shall 
execute releases to permit the chemical dependency professional to 
obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary for the 
evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a written 
opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. LILLY's license, and a statement as to whether MS. LILLY is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
6. MS. LILLY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. LILLY’s license. 

 
7. For a minimum, continuous period of six (6) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. LILLY shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
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for drug analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times 
as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. LILLY’s initiation of drug 
screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. LILLY shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
LILLY’s history. 

 
8. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. LILLY initiating drug screening, MS. 

LILLY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. LILLY. 

 
9. After initiating drug screening, MS. LILLY shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. LILLY shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. LILLY 

 
10. MS. LILLY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
11. MS. LILLY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
12. MS. LILLY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
13. MS. LILLY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
14. MS. LILLY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
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South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  
 

15. MS. LILLY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 
Order are received in the Board office.  

 
16. MS. LILLY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 

of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. LILLY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
LILLY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. LILLY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
LILLY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. LILLY’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. LILLY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. LILLY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. LILLY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. LILLY’s 
history.  MS. LILLY shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. During the probationary period, MS. LILLY shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times as the 
Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. LILLY 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. LILLY’s history. 
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Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 

5. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 
LILLY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. LILLY shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
6. MS. LILLY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. LILLY 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
7. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. LILLY shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) or 
prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
8. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. LILLY shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

9. MS. LILLY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. LILLY 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. LILLY shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

10. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. LILLY shall, prior to 
working in a position where a license to practice nursing is required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. LILLY 

 
11. MS. LILLY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
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documentation directly to the Board. 
 

12. MS. LILLY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
13. MS. LILLY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
14. MS. LILLY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
15. MS. LILLY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
16. MS. LILLY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

17. MS. LILLY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. LILLY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) 
for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. LILLY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee, MS. LILLY shall not function in a position or employment where the 
job duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. LILLY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. LILLY’s license to 
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practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. LILLY has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. LILLY via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. LILLY may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. LILLY has complied with all aspects of this Order; 
and (2) the Board determines that MS. LILLY is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. LILLY and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. LILLY does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Porter, Pamela, P.N. 089708 (CASE #13-7282) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MS. PORTER’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended and that the 
suspension is stayed subject to the probationary terms and restrictions set forth 
below for a minimum period of six (6) months. 
 
MS. PORTER’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
shall be subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. PORTER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. PORTER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 
3. MS. PORTER shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal 

Identification and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check 
of MS. PORTER, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. PORTER’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  MS. PORTER’s completed criminal 
records check, including the FBI check, must be received by the Board 
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within six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 
 

4. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this Order, MS. PORTER 
shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
subsequent to the effective date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Ethics 
and Professionalism, and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. PORTER shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
PORTER’s history.  MS. PORTER shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. Within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of this Order, and 

continuing throughout the probationary period, MS. PORTER shall submit, 
at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at 
such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. PORTER shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. PORTER’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 
7. Prior to initiating screens, MS. PORTER shall provide a copy of this Order 

to all treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all 
treating practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  
Further, MS. PORTER shall be under a continuing duty to provide a copy 
of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional treating 
practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with the Board 
within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. PORTER shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
PORTER throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. PORTER shall notify the Board of any and all 
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medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 
 

Employment Conditions 
 
10. MS. PORTER shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and address 

of any current employer within thirty (30) days following the effective 
date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting employment 
as a nurse. 

 
11. MS. PORTER, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. PORTER is under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. PORTER shall have her employer(s), if 
working in a position where a nursing license is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or beginning 
within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  MS. 
PORTER shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, 
along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were 
received.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. PORTER 
 
12. MS. PORTER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
13. MS. PORTER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
14. MS. PORTER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
15. MS. PORTER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
16. MS. PORTER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 
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17. MS. PORTER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office. 

 
18. MS. PORTER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. PORTER’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. PORTER’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. PORTER has violated or breached 
any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the 
Board shall notify MS. PORTER via certified mail of the specific nature of the 
charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, 
MS. PORTER may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. PORTER has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. PORTER is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. PORTER and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. PORTER 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Mills, Melissa, R.N. 332468 (CASE #14-2101) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MELISSA MILLS’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth 
below, and following reinstatement, MS. MILLS’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, 
including the Temporary Practice and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set 
forth below. 
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REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. MILLS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. MILLS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MILLS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. MILLS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. MILLS’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MILLS shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse, five (5) hours of 
Professional Accountability and Legal Liability, and two (2) hours of Ohio 
Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. MILLS shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. MILLS’s 
history.  MS. MILLS shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. MILLS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Within three (3) months prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. MILLS 
shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a 
Board approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the 
Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the 
evaluation, MS. MILLS shall provide the chemical dependency 
professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. MILLS shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. MILLS's license, and a 
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statement as to whether MS. MILLS is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. MILLS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. MILLS’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MILLS shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. MILLS’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. MILLS shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
MILLS’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. MILLS initiating drug screening, MS. 

MILLS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. MILLS. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. MILLS shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. MILLS shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MILLS shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. MILLS shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. MILLS 
 

13. MS. MILLS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. MILLS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. MILLS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. MILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. MILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. MILLS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. MILLS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. MILLS 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
MILLS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. MILLS is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
MILLS and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. MILLS’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. MILLS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. MILLS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
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Monitoring  
 

3. MS. MILLS shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. MILLS’s 
history.  MS. MILLS shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. MILLS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. MILLS shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. MILLS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. MILLS’s history. 

 
6. MS. MILLS shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. MILLS shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

MILLS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. MILLS shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. MILLS shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. MILLS 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. MILLS shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 
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Employment Conditions 
 

10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. MILLS shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
11. MS. MILLS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 

the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. MILLS shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. MILLS shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the 
Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. MILLS shall, prior to 
working in a position where a license to practice nursing is required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MILLS 

 
13. MS. MILLS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. MILLS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. MILLS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. MILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. MILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. MILLS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 101 
 
 

19. MS. MILLS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. MILLS shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. MILLS’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. MILLS’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. MILLS shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. MILLS shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. MILLS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. MILLS to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. MILLS shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. MILLS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. MILLS’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. MILLS has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. MILLS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. MILLS 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. MILLS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. MILLS is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
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Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. MILLS and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. MILLS does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Drapola, Kristin, R.N. 242459 (CASE #14-0426) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that KRISTIN DRAPOLA’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth 
below, and following reinstatement, MS. DRAPOLA’s license to practice nursing 
as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Permanent Practice and Permanent Narcotic 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. DRAPOLA shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. DRAPOLA shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DRAPOLA shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. DRAPOLA, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. DRAPOLA’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DRAPOLA shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Ashtabula County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number 14-CR-224. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DRAPOLA shall, 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 103 
 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules, five (5) 
hours of Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses, five (5) 
hours of Substance Abuse, and ten (10) hours of Ethics. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. DRAPOLA shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
DRAPOLA’s history.  MS. DRAPOLA shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. Within six (6) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, 

MS. DRAPOLA shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. DRAPOLA shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order, the March 21, 2014 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, the December 4, 2014 Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, and the January 23, 
2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (the “Notices”).  Further, MS. 
DRAPOLA shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. DRAPOLA's license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
DRAPOLA is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall make a specific recommendation as to whether MS. 
DRAPOLA should be required to abstain from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
8. MS. DRAPOLA shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the chemical dependency 
evaluation. 

 
9. MS. DRAPOLA shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. DRAPOLA’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of six (6) months immediately 
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prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. DRAPOLA shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
DRAPOLA’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. DRAPOLA shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. DRAPOLA’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. DRAPOLA initiating drug screening, 

MS. DRAPOLA shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. DRAPOLA. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. DRAPOLA shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. DRAPOLA shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DRAPOLA 

 
13. MS. DRAPOLA shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. DRAPOLA shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  
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17. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit the reports and documentation required by 
this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. DRAPOLA shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. DRAPOLA shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
DRAPOLA submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. DRAPOLA has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MS. DRAPOLA is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. DRAPOLA and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
DRAPOLA’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. DRAPOLA shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. DRAPOLA shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. DRAPOLA shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
DRAPOLA’s history.  MS. DRAPOLA shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. DRAPOLA shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the chemical dependency 
evaluation. 
 

5. During at least the first year of the probationary period, MS. DRAPOLA 
shall submit, at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair 
or urine specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site 
specified by the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal 
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to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day 
she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall 
constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of 
Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in 
process.  The specimens submitted by MS. DRAPOLA shall be negative, 
except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. DRAPOLA’s 
history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
6. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

DRAPOLA shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. DRAPOLA shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
7. MS. DRAPOLA shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
DRAPOLA throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
8. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. DRAPOLA shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
9. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. DRAPOLA shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

10. MS. DRAPOLA is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notices to any new employer prior to accepting employment as 
a nurse.  MS. DRAPOLA shall have her employer(s), if working in a 
position where a license to practice nursing is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within 
thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. DRAPOLA 
shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with 
the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notices, 
including the date they were received. 
 

11. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. DRAPOLA shall, prior 
to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
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of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DRAPOLA 

 
12. MS. DRAPOLA shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
13. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
14. MS. DRAPOLA shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
15. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
16. MS. DRAPOLA shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
17. MS. DRAPOLA shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

18. MS. DRAPOLA shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. DRAPOLA shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. DRAPOLA’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. DRAPOLA’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. DRAPOLA shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. DRAPOLA shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. DRAPOLA shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
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providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. DRAPOLA to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. DRAPOLA shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. DRAPOLA’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. DRAPOLA’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. DRAPOLA has violated or breached any 
terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board 
shall notify MS. DRAPOLA via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges 
and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. 
DRAPOLA may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. DRAPOLA has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. DRAPOLA is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. DRAPOLA and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
DRAPOLA does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Hughes, Garrett, R.N. 274365 (CASE #13-5435) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and modify the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that GARRETT HUGHES’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in 
the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
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The rationale for the modification is as follows:  MR. HUGHES had prior Board 
action related to chemical dependency and in this case provided false 
information to the Board on a renewal application regarding a crime that involved 
violating a protection order and consent agreement, and an anti-stalking offense.  
Further, MR. HUGHES tested positive for illegal drugs during his criminal case 
probation.  The Board has determined there are no conditions or restrictions that 
can be imposed on MR. HUGHES’s license that would adequately protect the 
public if MR. HUGHES were permitted to practice nursing. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Rigsby, Amanda, P.N. 147490 (CASE #14-4149) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Judith Church, that the 
Board redact a social security number from Respondent’s Exhibit A in 
accordance with the Federal Privacy Act of 1974. 
 
It was further moved that the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings 
of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing 
Examiner’s Report and Recommendation, and that AMANDA RIGSBY’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be 
suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than three (3) years with 
the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. 
RIGSBY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the Permanent 
Practice and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
 
After the motion was made, Nancy Fellows moved to withdraw the motion.  
Nancy Fellows then moved, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that the Board 
redact a social security number from Respondent’s Exhibit A in accordance with 
the Federal Privacy Act of 1974. 
 
It was further moved that the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings 
of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing 
Examiner’s Report and Recommendation, and that AMANDA RIGSBY’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be 
suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than three (3) years with 
the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. 
RIGSBY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the Permanent 
Practice and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
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REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. RIGSBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. RIGSBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RIGSBY shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. RIGSBY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. RIGSBY’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RIGSBY shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Warren County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
14CR29947. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RIGSBY shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  one (1) hour of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules, and ten 
(10) hours of Substance Abuse. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. RIGSBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
RIGSBY’s history.  MS. RIGSBY shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. RIGSBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Within six (6) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, 
MS. RIGSBY shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. RIGSBY shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
RIGSBY shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
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professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. RIGSBY's license, and a statement as to whether MS. RIGSBY is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. RIGSBY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. RIGSBY’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. RIGSBY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. RIGSBY’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. RIGSBY 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. RIGSBY’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. RIGSBY initiating drug screening, MS. 

RIGSBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. RIGSBY. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. RIGSBY shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. RIGSBY shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. RIGSBY shall attend a minimum of 
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one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. RIGSBY shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RIGSBY 

 
14. MS. RIGSBY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. RIGSBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. RIGSBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. RIGSBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. RIGSBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. RIGSBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. RIGSBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. RIGSBY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
RIGSBY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. RIGSBY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
RIGSBY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. RIGSBY’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. RIGSBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
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2. MS. RIGSBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. RIGSBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
RIGSBY’s history.  MS. RIGSBY shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. RIGSBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. RIGSBY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. RIGSBY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. RIGSBY’s history. 

 
6. MS. RIGSBY shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. RIGSBY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

RIGSBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. RIGSBY shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. RIGSBY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
RIGSBY throughout the duration of this Order. 
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9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 
treatment, MS. RIGSBY shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. RIGSBY shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. RIGSBY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
RIGSBY shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. RIGSBY shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. RIGSBY shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RIGSBY 

 
13. MS. RIGSBY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. RIGSBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. RIGSBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. RIGSBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. RIGSBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
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Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 
 

18. MS. RIGSBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office. 

 
19. MS. RIGSBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. RIGSBY shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. RIGSBY’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. RIGSBY’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. RIGSBY shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. RIGSBY shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. RIGSBY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. RIGSBY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. RIGSBY shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  
Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. RIGSBY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. RIGSBY’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. RIGSBY has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. RIGSBY via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. RIGSBY 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
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the Board determines that MS. RIGSBY has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. RIGSBY is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. RIGSBY and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. RIGSBY does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Franklin, Amy, R.N. 307806 (CASE #14-3311) 
Action: It was moved by Judith Church, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that the 
Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that AMY FRANKLIN’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the 
State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Davis-Tissue, Lauren, P.N. 135469 (CASE #14-0799) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that LAUREN DAVIS-TISSUE’s license to practice 
nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the Temporary 
Practice and Temporary Narcotic Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall appear in person for interviews before the full 
Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 
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3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and 
Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 
records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be 
considered by the Board until the completed criminal records check, 
including the FBI check, has been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 

shall submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and 
conditions imposed by the Summit County Court of Common Pleas in 
Case Number CR 2014 03 0814(A). 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 

shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
subsequent to the effective date of this Order:  two (2) hours Ohio Nursing 
Law and Rules, and five (5) hours of Substance Abuse. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE’s history.  MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall self-administer the 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 
 

7. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or 
any products containing alcohol. 

 
8. Within six (6) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, 

MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order, the August 15, 2014 
Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, and the 
September 19, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (the “Notices”).  
Further, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. DAVIS-TISSUE's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. DAVIS-TISSUE is capable of practicing 
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nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 

 
9. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide the Board with satisfactory 

documentation of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan 
developed by the chemical dependency professional described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times 
as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. DAVIS-TISSUE initiating drug 

screening, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide a copy of this Order to all 
treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. DAVIS-TISSUE. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall be under a 

continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall notify the 
Board of any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within 
twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 
treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall attend a 
minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting 
approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide satisfactory documentation of such 
attendance to the Board prior to reinstatement. 
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14. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
shall, at her expense, obtain a comprehensive physical examination by a 
Board approved physician for the purposes of evaluating MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE’s fitness for duty and safety to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse.  This Board approved physician shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s comprehensive 
physical examination and with a comprehensive assessment regarding 
MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s fitness for duty and safety to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse.  Prior to the examination, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
shall provide the Board approved physician with a copy of this Order and 
the Notices.  Further, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall execute releases to 
permit the Board approved physician performing the comprehensive 
physical examination and assessment to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the assessment.  The evaluating physician 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions 
that should be placed on MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s license to practice, and 
stating whether MS. DAVIS-TISSUE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

15. The Board may utilize the Board approved physician's recommendations 
and conclusions from the comprehensive physical examination and 
assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 

 
16. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall sign release of information forms allowing 

health professionals and other organizations to submit requested 
documentation or information directly to the Board.  

 
17. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
18. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
19. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
20. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of 
Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  
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21. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall verify that the reports and documentation 
required by this Order are received in the Board office.  

 
22. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, 

in writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. DAVIS-TISSUE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and 
(3) the Board determines that MS. DAVIS-TISSUE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based 
upon an interview with MS. DAVIS-TISSUE and review of the documentation 
specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall appear in person for interviews before the full 

Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE’s history.  MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall self-administer 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or 

any products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the first two (2) years of the probationary period, MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE shall submit, at her expense and on the day selected, blood, 
breath, hair or urine specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a 
collection site specified by the Board at such times as the Board may 
request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
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shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s history. 

 
6. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week 

of a support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or 
a Twelve Step program, and MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide 
satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) 
months for at least the first two (2) years of the probationary period. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

DAVIS-TISSUE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. 
DAVIS-TISSUE shall be under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this 
Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and 
to update the list of treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight 
(48) hours of being treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this 
Order and the Notices to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall have her employer(s) send 
documentation to the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt 
of a copy of this Order and the Notices, including the date they were 
received. 
 

12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
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shall, prior to working in a position where a license to practice 
nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation 
approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 

 
13. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall sign releases of information forms allowing 

health professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the 
attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High 
Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall verify that the reports and documentation 

required by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, 
in writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s use by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s history) any narcotics, other 
controlled substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE 
shall not count narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication 
carts, cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not call in or 
order prescriptions or prescription refills. 
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Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) 
for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. DAVIS-TISSUE to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. DAVIS-TISSUE shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. DAVIS-TISSUE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. DAVIS-TISSUE has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. DAVIS-TISSUE via certified 
mail of the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her 
license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. DAVIS-TISSUE may request a hearing 
regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. DAVIS-TISSUE has complied with all aspects of 
this Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. DAVIS-TISSUE is able to 
practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. DAVIS-
TISSUE and review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which 
MS. DAVIS-TISSUE does not work in a position for which a license to practice 
nursing is required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period 
imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
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Young, Bethany, R.N. 386652, P.N. 140166 (CASE #14-4194) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that MS. YOUNG’s licenses to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse and licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio are hereby 
suspended and that the suspension is stayed subject to the probationary terms 
and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of one (1) year. 
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  The Hearing Examiner refers to 
“license” in the singular form on page 19 of the Report and Recommendation, 
which appears to be a typographical error, and the Board modifies the 
Recommendation solely in that regard. 
 
MS. YOUNG’s licenses to practice nursing as a registered nurse and 
licensed practical nurse shall be subject to the following probationary 
terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. YOUNG shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. YOUNG shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 
3. MS. YOUNG shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification 

and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. 
YOUNG, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 
records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. YOUNG’s criminal records 
check reports to the Board.  MS. YOUNG’s completed criminal records 
check, including the FBI check, must be received by the Board within 
six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 

 
4. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this Order, MS. YOUNG 

shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
subsequent to the effective date of this Order: ten (10) hours of Ethics, 
and two (2) hours of Ohio Law and Rules. 

 
Educational Needs Assessment and Learning Plan 

 
5. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. YOUNG shall 

establish contact with a nursing educator approved by the Board who has 
no less than a master’s degree and who is affiliated with a nursing 
educational program and MS. YOUNG shall have the educator provide the 
Board with a written report of an assessment of MS. YOUNG, which 
identifies MS. YOUNG’s knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial 
educational needs.  Prior to the assessment, MS. YOUNG shall provide 
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the nursing educator with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing and shall submit to any nursing skills or 
knowledge assessments required by the educator.  MS. YOUNG shall 
also execute releases prior to the assessment to permit the educator to 
obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary for the 
assessment including information from MS. YOUNG’s employer(s), former 
employers, and Board staff. Following the assessment, MS. YOUNG shall 
have the educator provide the Board with a copy of a learning plan 
developed by the educator for MS. YOUNG and shall obtain approval of 
the learning plan by the Board or its designee.  The learning plan shall 
identify specific remediation that MS. YOUNG shall complete to address 
any knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial educational needs 
identified by the educator and shall identify the time frame during which 
MS. YOUNG shall complete such learning plan. MS. YOUNG shall 
successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the learning plan within the time frame specified 
in the learning plan.  After MS. YOUNG has successfully completed the 
learning plan, the educator shall provide the Board with an assessment 
and any recommendations for additional remedial education and/or 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. YOUNG’s licenses to practice.  
Furthermore, the educator shall provide to the Board a written opinion 
stating whether MS. YOUNG is capable of practicing nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  MS. YOUNG 
shall be responsible for all costs associated with meeting this requirement. 

 
6. The Board may utilize the educator's recommendations and conclusions 

from the assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on 
MS. YOUNG’s licenses.   

 
Employment Conditions 
 
7. MS. YOUNG shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and address of 

any current employer within thirty (30) days following the effective 
date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting employment 
as a nurse. 

 
8. MS. YOUNG, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. YOUNG is under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. YOUNG shall have her employer(s), if 
working in a position where a nursing license is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or beginning 
within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  MS. 
YOUNG shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, 
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along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were 
received.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. YOUNG 
 
9. MS. YOUNG shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
10. MS. YOUNG shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
11. MS. YOUNG shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
12. MS. YOUNG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
13. MS. YOUNG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
14. MS. YOUNG shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 
15. MS. YOUNG shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. YOUNG’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. YOUNG’s 
licenses to practice nursing as a registered nurse and licensed practical nurse 
will be automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. YOUNG has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. YOUNG via certified mail of the 
specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her licenses.  Upon 
receipt of this notice, MS. YOUNG may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. YOUNG has complied with all aspects of this 
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Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. YOUNG is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. YOUNG and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. YOUNG does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Berkfield, Krysta, R.N. 266546 (CASE #14-5568) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the 
Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and Recommendation and 
that KRYSTA BERKFIELD’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in 
the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Collen, Rebecca, R.N. 352927, P.N. 109212 (CASE #14-3382) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board accept all of the Hearing Examiner’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law, and the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s Report and 
Recommendation, and that REBECCA JO COLLEN’s licenses to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse and licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be 
suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than three (3) years with 
the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. 
COLLEN’s licenses to practice nursing as a registered nurse and licensed 
practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, 
including the Permanent Practice and Permanent Narcotic Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. COLLEN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. COLLEN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
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3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COLLEN shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. COLLEN, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. COLLEN’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COLLEN shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Cuyahoga County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number CR-14-584569-A. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COLLEN shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Ethics, five (5) hours of 
Professionalism, fifteen (15) hours of Chemical Dependency and 
Substance Abuse, and two (2) hours of Ohio Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. COLLEN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
COLLEN’s history.  MS. COLLEN shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. COLLEN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Within three (3) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the 
Board, MS. COLLEN shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical 
dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency 
professional and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. COLLEN shall provide the 
chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order, the August 
15, 2014 Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, 
and the September 19, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (the 
“Notices”).  Further, MS. COLLEN shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. COLLEN's licenses, and a 
statement as to whether MS. COLLEN is capable of practicing nursing 
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according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

9. MS. COLLEN shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 
compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. COLLEN’s licenses. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. COLLEN shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. COLLEN’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. COLLEN 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. COLLEN’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. COLLEN initiating drug screening, MS. 

COLLEN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. COLLEN. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. COLLEN shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. COLLEN shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. COLLEN shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. COLLEN shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
14. Within three (3) months prior to requesting reinstatement by the 
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Board, MS. COLLEN shall, at her expense, obtain a psychiatric 
evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. COLLEN shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and 
the Notices and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain 
any information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  
The psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. COLLEN's licenses, and a 
statement as to whether MS. COLLEN is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
15. MS. COLLEN shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. COLLEN’s 
licenses. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. COLLEN 

 
16. MS. COLLEN shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
17. MS. COLLEN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
18. MS. COLLEN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
19. MS. COLLEN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
20. MS. COLLEN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
21. MS. COLLEN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

22. MS. COLLEN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. COLLEN 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
COLLEN has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. COLLEN is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
COLLEN and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
COLLEN’s licenses shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. COLLEN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. COLLEN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. COLLEN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
COLLEN’s history.  MS. COLLEN shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. COLLEN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. COLLEN shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. COLLEN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. COLLEN’s history. 

 
6. MS. COLLEN shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. COLLEN shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 
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Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 

7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 
COLLEN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. COLLEN shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. COLLEN shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
COLLEN throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. COLLEN shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. COLLEN shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. COLLEN is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notices to any new employer prior to accepting employment as 
a nurse.  MS. COLLEN shall have her employer(s), if working in a 
position where a license to practice nursing is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within 
thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. COLLEN 
shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with 
the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notices, 
including the date they were received. 
 

12. MS. COLLEN shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. COLLEN 

 
13. MS. COLLEN shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. COLLEN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
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request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. COLLEN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. COLLEN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. COLLEN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. COLLEN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. COLLEN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. COLLEN shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. COLLEN’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. COLLEN’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. COLLEN shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. COLLEN shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. COLLEN shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse and licensed 
practical nurse (1) for agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; 
(2) for hospice care programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; 
(3) for staffing agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse 
provides nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through 
State agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of 
individuals who directly engage MS. COLLEN to provide nursing services for 
fees, compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. COLLEN shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
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Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. COLLEN’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. COLLEN’s 
licenses to practice nursing as a registered nurse and licensed practical nurse 
will be automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. COLLEN has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. COLLEN via certified mail of 
the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her licenses.  
Upon receipt of this notice, MS. COLLEN may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. COLLEN has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. COLLEN is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. COLLEN and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. COLLEN 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Haynes, Christina, R.N. 342479 (CASE #14-3375) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board redact the social security numbers that appear in Exhibits 11, 12, and 
E1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 7 according to the Federal Privacy Act of 1974. 
 
It was further moved that the Board accept all of the Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, and modify the Recommendation in the Hearing Examiner’s 
Report and Recommendation and that CHRISTINA HAYNES’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY 
REVOKED.  
 
The rationale for the modification is as follows:  MS. HAYNES committed an 
egregious act involving patient harm and/or a high risk of patient harm when she 
deprived pre-operative patients of ordered pain medication and falsified records 
to indicate the patients received the ordered pain medications. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke 
abstaining. 
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This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
BOARD HEARING COMMITTEE 
Goins, Mischka, P.N. 119956 (CASE #14-3107) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board accept all of the Board Hearing Committee’s Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions, and the Recommendation in the Board Hearing Committee’s 
Report and Recommendation, and that MISCHKA GOINS’s license to practice 
nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and 
following reinstatement, MS. GOINS’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of one (1) year. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. GOINS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. GOINS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GOINS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. GOINS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. GOINS’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GOINS shall pay 

the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by certified check, cashier 
check, or money order, made payable to the “Treasurer, State of Ohio,” to 
the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the attention of the Compliance 
Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, 
OH 43215-7410. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. GOINS 

 
5. MS. GOINS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MS. GOINS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 136 
 

and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  
 

7. MS. GOINS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MS. GOINS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MS. GOINS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MS. GOINS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MS. GOINS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. GOINS 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
GOINS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. GOINS is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
GOINS and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. GOINS’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of one (1) year. 
 

1. MS. GOINS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. GOINS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Employment Conditions 
 

3. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. GOINS shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
4. MS. GOINS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 

the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. GOINS 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
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practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. GOINS shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

5. MS. GOINS shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. GOINS 

 
6. MS. GOINS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
7. MS. GOINS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
8. MS. GOINS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
9. MS. GOINS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
10. MS. GOINS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
11. MS. GOINS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

12. MS. GOINS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. GOINS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. GOINS’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. GOINS has violated or breached any terms or 
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conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. GOINS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. GOINS 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. GOINS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. GOINS is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. GOINS and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. GOINS does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke, J. 
Jane McFee and Maryam Lyon abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.    
 
Mulla, Leila, R.N. 294013 (CASE #12-7171) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board accept all of the Board Hearing Committee’s Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions, and the Recommendation in the Board Hearing Committee’s 
Report and Recommendation, and that LEILA MULLA’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be PERMANENTLY 
REVOKED.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke, J. 
Jane McFee and Maryam Lyon abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.    
 
Ribby, Tonya, P.N. 096104 (CASE #14-3822) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board accept all of the Board Hearing Committee’s Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions, and modify the Recommendation in the Board Hearing Committee’s 
Report and Recommendation, and that TONYA RIBBY’s license to practice 
nursing as a licensed practical nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time but not less than one (1) year with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. RIBBY’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of two (2) years, including the Permanent Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
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The rationale for the modification is as follows:  The Board has determined that 
based on MS. RIBBY’s history of substance use and non-compliance a longer 
period of suspension with drug screening is necessary prior to MS. RIBBY being 
eligible for licensure reinstatement. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. RIBBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. RIBBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RIBBY shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. RIBBY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. RIBBY’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MS. RIBBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. RIBBY’s 
history.  MS. RIBBY shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
5. MS. RIBBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RIBBY shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. RIBBY shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. RIBBY shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. RIBBY's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. RIBBY is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
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7. MS. RIBBY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 
compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. RIBBY’s license. 

 
8. For a minimum, continuous period ninety (90) days immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. RIBBY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. RIBBY’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. RIBBY shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
RIBBY’s history. 

 
9. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. RIBBY initiating drug screening, MS. 

RIBBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. RIBBY. 

 
10. After initiating drug screening, MS. RIBBY shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. RIBBY shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
11. For a minimum, continuous period of ninety (90) days immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. RIBBY shall attend a minimum 
of three (3) meetings per week of a support or peer group meeting 
approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. 
RIBBY shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the 
Board prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RIBBY 
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12. MS. RIBBY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. RIBBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. RIBBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. RIBBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. RIBBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. RIBBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. RIBBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. RIBBY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
RIBBY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. RIBBY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
RIBBY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. RIBBY’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. RIBBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. RIBBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. RIBBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
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of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. RIBBY’s 
history.  MS. RIBBY shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. RIBBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. RIBBY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. RIBBY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. RIBBY’s history. 

 
6. MS. RIBBY shall attend a minimum of three (3) meetings per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. RIBBY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

RIBBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. RIBBY shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. RIBBY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. RIBBY 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. RIBBY shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 
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10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. RIBBY shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
11. MS. RIBBY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 

the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. RIBBY 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. RIBBY shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. RIBBY shall, prior 
to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RIBBY 

 
13. MS. RIBBY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. RIBBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. RIBBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. RIBBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. RIBBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. RIBBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. RIBBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
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of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. RIBBY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. RIBBY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. RIBBY shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. RIBBY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. RIBBY’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. RIBBY has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. RIBBY via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. RIBBY 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. RIBBY has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. RIBBY is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. RIBBY and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. RIBBY does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke, J. 
Jane McFee and Maryam Lyon abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
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Howard, Joy, R.N. 366275 (CASE #13-8126) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board accept all of the Board Hearing Committee’s Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions, and the Recommendation in the Board Hearing Committee’s 
Report and Recommendation, and that JOY HOWARD’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and following reinstatement, MS. HOWARD’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of three (3) years, including the Permanent Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. HOWARD shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. HOWARD shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HOWARD shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. HOWARD, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. HOWARD’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HOWARD shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Franklin County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
13-CR-3241. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HOWARD shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Ethics and Professionalism, ten (10) 
hours of Integrity in Nursing, and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and 
Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HOWARD shall, 

at her expense, obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved 
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psychiatrist and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. HOWARD shall provide the 
psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic 
Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing and shall execute releases to 
permit the psychiatrist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the evaluation.  The psychiatrist shall submit a written 
opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. HOWARD's license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
HOWARD is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. HOWARD shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. HOWARD’s 
license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. HOWARD 

 
8. MS. HOWARD shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
9. MS. HOWARD shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
10. MS. HOWARD shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
11. MS. HOWARD shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
12. MS. HOWARD shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
13. MS. HOWARD shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

14. MS. HOWARD shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
HOWARD submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. HOWARD has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the 
Board determines that MS. HOWARD is able to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. HOWARD and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
HOWARD’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. HOWARD shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. HOWARD shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
3. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. HOWARD shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

4. MS. HOWARD is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
HOWARD shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. HOWARD shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

5. Upon request by the Board or its designee, MS. HOWARD shall, prior 
to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. HOWARD 

 
6. MS. HOWARD shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
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documentation directly to the Board. 
 

7. MS. HOWARD shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
8. MS. HOWARD shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
9. MS. HOWARD shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
10. MS. HOWARD shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
11. MS. HOWARD shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

12. MS. HOWARD shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. HOWARD shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. HOWARD to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. HOWARD shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
MS. HOWARD shall not be involved in financial activities or supervise financial 
activities in any position that requires a license as a registered nurse. 
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FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. HOWARD’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. HOWARD’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. HOWARD has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. HOWARD via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. HOWARD 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. HOWARD has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. HOWARD is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. HOWARD and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. HOWARD 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke, J. 
Jane McFee and Maryam Lyon abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
 
NO REQUEST FOR HEARING 
Gregory, Michelle, R.N. 374016 (CASE #14-0536) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against MICHELLE ENGENE 
GREGORY as set forth in Item 2 on page 2 of the May 16, 2014 Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. GREGORY has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the 
Notice, and that MS. GREGORY’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. GREGORY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. GREGORY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 
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3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GREGORY shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. GREGORY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. GREGORY’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GREGORY shall 

submit documentation of her successful completion of all terms of the 
Statement of Certification and Decision on Application to Renew License 
issued by the Indiana State Board of Nursing effective February 4, 2014, 
and that her Indiana license is fully reinstated and unencumbered.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. GREGORY 

 
5. MS. GREGORY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MS. GREGORY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MS. GREGORY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MS. GREGORY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MS. GREGORY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MS. GREGORY shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MS. GREGORY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
GREGORY submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. GREGORY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MS. GREGORY is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. GREGORY and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Rohe, Heather, P.N. 122561 (CASE #13-8292) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by Janet Arwood, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against HEATHER MICHELLE ROHE in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. ROHE has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. ROHE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than two 
(2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following 
reinstatement, MS. ROHE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the 
Permanent Narcotic and Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. ROHE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. ROHE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. ROHE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. ROHE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 
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4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall 
submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Crawford County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number 13-CR-0245. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Ethics; five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for 
Nurses. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s 
history.  MS. ROHE shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. ROHE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. ROHE shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. ROHE's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. ROHE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. ROHE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ROHE’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. ROHE shall submit, at her expense 
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and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. ROHE’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. ROHE shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
ROHE’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. ROHE initiating drug screening, MS. 

ROHE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. ROHE. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. ROHE shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. ROHE shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. ROHE shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. ROHE shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ROHE 

 
14. MS. ROHE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. ROHE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. ROHE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
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Board or to employers or potential employers.  
 

17. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. ROHE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. ROHE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. ROHE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
ROHE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. ROHE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
ROHE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. ROHE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. ROHE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. ROHE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s 
history.  MS. ROHE shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. ROHE shall submit, at her expense 
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and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. ROHE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s history. 

 
6. MS. ROHE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. ROHE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

ROHE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. ROHE shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. ROHE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. ROHE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. ROHE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. ROHE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. ROHE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. ROHE 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
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accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. ROHE shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. ROHE shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ROHE 

 
13. MS. ROHE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. ROHE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. ROHE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. ROHE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. ROHE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. ROHE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. ROHE’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. ROHE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, or 
mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. ROHE shall not count narcotics or possess 
or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
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containers. MS. ROHE shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. ROHE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. ROHE to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. ROHE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. ROHE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. ROHE’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. ROHE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. ROHE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. ROHE may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. ROHE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. ROHE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. ROHE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. ROHE does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.    
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Green, Mary, P.N. 120683 (CASE #14-6479) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against HEATHER MICHELLE ROHE in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. ROHE has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. ROHE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than two 
(2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following 
reinstatement, MS. ROHE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the 
Permanent Narcotic and Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. ROHE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. ROHE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. ROHE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. ROHE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Crawford County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number 13-CR-0245. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Ethics; five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for 
Nurses. 
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Monitoring  
 

6. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s 
history.  MS. ROHE shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. ROHE shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. ROHE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. ROHE shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. ROHE's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. ROHE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. ROHE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. ROHE’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. ROHE shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. ROHE’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. ROHE shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
ROHE’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. ROHE initiating drug screening, MS. 
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ROHE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. ROHE. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. ROHE shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. ROHE shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. ROHE shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. ROHE shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ROHE 

 
14. MS. ROHE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. ROHE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. ROHE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. ROHE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
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20. MS. ROHE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. ROHE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
ROHE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. ROHE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
ROHE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. ROHE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. ROHE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. ROHE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s 
history.  MS. ROHE shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. ROHE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. ROHE shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. ROHE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. ROHE’s history. 

 
6. MS. ROHE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. ROHE shall provide satisfactory 
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documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 
 

Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 

7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 
ROHE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. ROHE shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. ROHE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. ROHE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. ROHE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. ROHE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. ROHE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. ROHE 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. ROHE shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. ROHE shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. ROHE 

 
13. MS. ROHE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 
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professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. ROHE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. ROHE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. ROHE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. ROHE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. ROHE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. ROHE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. ROHE’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. ROHE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, or 
mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. ROHE shall not count narcotics or possess 
or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. ROHE shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. ROHE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. ROHE to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
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MS. ROHE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. ROHE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. ROHE’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. ROHE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. ROHE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. ROHE may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. ROHE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. ROHE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. ROHE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. ROHE does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.    
 
Emler, Jeffrey, R.N. 228366 (CASE #14-6923) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JEFFREY ALLEN EMLER in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MR. EMLER has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MR. EMLER’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MR. EMLER’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of three (3) years, including the Temporary Practice 
Restrictions, unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee, set forth below. 
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REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. EMLER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. EMLER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. EMLER shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. EMLER, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. EMLER’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. EMLER shall 

submit documentation of his full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Licking County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
14CRB01058. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MR. EMLER shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. EMLER’s 
history.  MR. EMLER shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MR. EMLER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. For a minimum, continuous period of ninety (90) days immediately 
prior to requesting reinstatement, MR. EMLER shall submit, at his 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. EMLER’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MR. 
EMLER shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MR. EMLER’s history. 

 
8. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. EMLER initiating drug screening, MR. 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 166 
 

EMLER shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. EMLER. 

 
9. After initiating drug screening, MR. EMLER shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. EMLER shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
10. Prior to requesting reinstatement of his license, MR. EMLER shall, at 

his expense, obtain mental health counseling with a psychiatrist that is 
approved in advance by the Board or its designee.  MR. EMLER shall 
cause the psychiatrist to submit quarterly written reports to the Board 
regarding:  (i) MR. EMLER’s current diagnosis; (ii) MR. EMLER’s 
compliance with treatment recommendations/plans, including but not 
limited to appropriate use of prescribed medications; (iii) all dates MR. 
EMLER was seen in the three (3) month period prior to the date of the 
report; and (iv) any concerns regarding MR. EMLER’s ability to practice 
nursing in accordance with acceptable and prevailing standards of safe 
nursing care.  The Board may use the psychiatrist’s recommendations 
during the course of treatment as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MR. EMLER’s license.  MR. EMLER shall see the 
psychiatrist as directed during the term of this Order until released. 
 

11. At the first appointment following the effective date of this Order, MR. 
EMLER shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and all 
attachments.  In addition, MR. EMLER shall execute releases to permit 
the psychiatrist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the treatment and evaluation of MR. EMLER. 

 
12. Prior to requesting reinstatement of his license, MR. EMLER shall, at 

his expense, begin mental health counseling with a licensed therapist or 
substance abuse counselor (therapist) that is approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee.  MR. EMLER shall cause the therapist to submit 
quarterly written reports to the Board regarding:  (i) MR. EMLER’s current 
diagnosis; (ii) MR. EMLER’s compliance with treatment 
recommendations/plans, including but not limited to appropriate use of 
prescribed medication; (iii) all dates MR. EMLER was seen in the three (3) 
month period prior to the date of the report; and (iv) any concerns 
regarding MR. EMLER’s ability to practice nursing in accordance with 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  The Board may 
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use the therapist’s recommendations during the course of treatment as a 
basis for additional terms and restrictions on MR. EMLER’s license.  MR. 
EMLER shall see the therapist no less than one (1) time per month during 
the term of this Order until released. 

 
13. At the first appointment following the effective date of this Order, MR. 

EMLER shall provide the therapist with a copy of this Order and all 
attachments.  In addition, MR. EMLER shall execute releases to permit 
the therapist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the treatment and evaluation of MR. EMLER. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. EMLER 

 
14. MR. EMLER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MR. EMLER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MR. EMLER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MR. EMLER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MR. EMLER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MR. EMLER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MR. EMLER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. EMLER 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
EMLER has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. EMLER is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MR. 
EMLER and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
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Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. EMLER’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MR. EMLER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. EMLER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MR. EMLER shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. EMLER’s 
history.  MR. EMLER shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MR. EMLER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MR. EMLER shall submit, at his expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. EMLER shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. EMLER’s history. 

 
6. MR. EMLER shall, at his expense, continue mental health counseling with 

a psychiatrist that is approved in advance by the Board or its designee.  
MR. EMLER shall cause the psychiatrist to submit quarterly written reports 
to the Board regarding:  (i) MR. EMLER’s current diagnosis; (ii) MR. 
EMLER’s compliance with treatment recommendations/plans, including 
but not limited to appropriate use of prescribed medications; (iii) all dates 
MR. EMLER was seen in the three (3) month period prior to the date of 
the report; and (iv) any concerns regarding MR. EMLER’s ability to 
practice nursing in accordance with acceptable and prevailing standards 
of safe nursing care.  The Board may use the psychiatrist’s 
recommendations during the course of treatment as a basis for additional 
terms and restrictions on MR. EMLER’s license.  MR. EMLER shall see 
the psychiatrist as directed during the term of this Order until released. 
 

7. MR. EMLER shall, at his expense, continue mental health counseling with 
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a licensed therapist or substance abuse counselor (therapist) that is 
approved in advance by the Board or its designee.  MR. EMLER shall 
cause the therapist to submit quarterly written reports to the Board 
regarding:  (i) MR. EMLER’s current diagnosis; (ii) MR. EMLER’s 
compliance with treatment recommendations/plans, including but not 
limited to appropriate use of prescribed medication; (iii) all dates MR. 
EMLER was seen in the three (3) month period prior to the date of the 
report; and (iv) any concerns regarding MR. EMLER’s ability to practice 
nursing in accordance with acceptable and prevailing standards of safe 
nursing care.  The Board may use the therapist’s recommendations during 
the course of treatment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on 
MR. EMLER’s license.  MR. EMLER shall see the therapist no less than 
one (1) time per month during the term of this Order until released. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

EMLER shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. EMLER shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
9. MR. EMLER shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. EMLER 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. EMLER shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MR. EMLER shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

12. MR. EMLER is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. EMLER 
shall have his employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. EMLER shall have his 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
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employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

13. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MR. EMLER shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. EMLER 

 
14. MR. EMLER shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
15. MR. EMLER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MR. EMLER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
17. MR. EMLER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MR. EMLER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MR. EMLER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MR. EMLER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
EMLER shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
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of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MR. EMLER to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
EMLER shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. EMLER’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. EMLER’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MR. EMLER has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MR. EMLER via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of his license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. EMLER 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. EMLER has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. EMLER is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. EMLER and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. EMLER does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Berg, Michelle, P.N. 134810 (CASE #14-5315) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against MICHELLE RENEE BERG in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. BERG has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. BERG’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions 
for reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. BERG’s 
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license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a 
stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below 
for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary Practice 
Restrictions, unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee, set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. BERG shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. BERG shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BERG shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. BERG, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. BERG’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BERG shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and Legal 
Liability for Nurses; five (5) hours of Ethics; and one (1) hour of Ohio 
Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. BERG shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. BERG’s 
history.  MS. BERG shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. BERG shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 
reinstatement by the Board, MS. BERG shall, at her expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. BERG shall 
provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order 
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and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  
Further, MS. BERG shall execute releases to permit the chemical 
dependency professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate 
and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions 
that should be placed on MS. BERG's license, and a statement as to 
whether MS. BERG is capable of practicing nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. BERG shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. BERG’s 
license. 

 
9. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. BERG shall begin submitting, at 

her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by 
the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
BERG’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. BERG shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. BERG’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. BERG initiating drug screening, MS. 

BERG shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. BERG. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. BERG shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. BERG shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. BERG 
 

12. MS. BERG shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. BERG shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. BERG shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. BERG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. BERG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. BERG shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. BERG shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. BERG 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
BERG has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. BERG is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
BERG and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. BERG’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. BERG shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. BERG shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
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Monitoring  
 

3. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within sixty (60) 
days of the request, MS. BERG shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical 
dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency 
professional and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. BERG shall provide the 
chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MS. BERG shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. BERG's license, and a statement as to whether MS. BERG is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
4. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. BERG shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. BERG’s 
license. 

 
5. MS. BERG shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. BERG’s 
history.  MS. BERG shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. BERG shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

7. During the probationary period, MS. BERG shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. BERG shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. BERG’s history. 
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Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 

8. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 
BERG shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. BERG shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
9. MS. BERG shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. BERG 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
10. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. BERG shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
11. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. BERG shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

12. MS. BERG is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BERG 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BERG shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

13. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. BERG shall, prior 
to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BERG 

 
14. MS. BERG shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
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documentation directly to the Board. 
 

15. MS. BERG shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
16. MS. BERG shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
17. MS. BERG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
18. MS. BERG shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
19. MS. BERG shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

20. MS. BERG shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MS. 
BERG shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. BERG to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MS. 
BERG shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. BERG’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. BERG’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
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appears to the Board that MS. BERG has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. BERG via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. BERG may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. BERG has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. BERG is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. BERG and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. BERG does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Cohee, Bobby, P.N. 083868 (CASE #14-6050) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against BOBBY GENE COHEE in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MR. COHEE has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MR. COHEE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than 
one (1) year with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MR. COHEE’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, 
including the Temporary Narcotic Restrictions, and the Permanent Practice 
Restrictions unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee, set forth below.  
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. COHEE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. COHEE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
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3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. COHEE shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. COHEE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. COHEE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MR. COHEE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. COHEE’s 
history.  MR. COHEE shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
5. MR. COHEE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

6. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 
reinstatement by the Board, MR. COHEE shall, at his expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MR. COHEE 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MR. COHEE shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MR. COHEE's license, and a 
statement as to whether MR. COHEE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MR. COHEE shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MR. 
COHEE’s license. 

 
8. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MR. COHEE shall submit, at his expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
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times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. COHEE’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MR. COHEE 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MR. COHEE’s history. 

 
9. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. COHEE initiating drug screening, MR. 

COHEE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. COHEE. 

 
10. After initiating drug screening, MR. COHEE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. COHEE shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
11. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MR. COHEE shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MR. COHEE shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. COHEE 

 
12. MR. COHEE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MR. COHEE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MR. COHEE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  
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15. MR. COHEE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MR. COHEE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MR. COHEE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MR. COHEE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. COHEE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
COHEE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. COHEE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MR. 
COHEE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. COHEE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MR. COHEE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. COHEE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within ninety (90) 
days of the request, MR. COHEE shall, at his expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MR. COHEE 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MR. COHEE shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MR. COHEE's license, and a 
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statement as to whether MR. COHEE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
4. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MR. COHEE shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MR. 
COHEE’s license. 

 
5. MR. COHEE shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. COHEE’s 
history.  MR. COHEE shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MR. COHEE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

7. During the probationary period, MR. COHEE shall submit, at his expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. COHEE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. COHEE’s history. 

 
8. MR. COHEE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MR. COHEE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
9. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

COHEE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. COHEE shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 
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10. MR. COHEE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 
prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. COHEE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
11. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. COHEE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
12. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MR. COHEE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

13. MR. COHEE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. COHEE 
shall have his employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. COHEE shall have his 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

14. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MR. COHEE shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. COHEE 

 
15. MR. COHEE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
16. MR. COHEE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
17. MR. COHEE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
18. MR. COHEE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
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Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
19. MR. COHEE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
20. MR. COHEE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

21. MR. COHEE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MR. COHEE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MR. COHEE’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MR. COHEE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MR. COHEE shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MR. COHEE shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
COHEE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MR. COHEE to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
COHEE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. COHEE’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. COHEE’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MR. COHEE has violated or breached any terms or 
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conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MR. COHEE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of his license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. COHEE 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. COHEE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. COHEE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. COHEE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. COHEE does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote. 
  
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Thompson, Therina, P.N. 119540 (CASE #14-2144) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that   
upon consideration of the charges stated against THERINA DENISE 
THOMPSON in the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and 
evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. THOMPSON has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. 
THOMPSON’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse be 
PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Brown, Kenisha, P.N. 149778 (CASE #14-3387) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against KENISHA O. BROWN in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board dismiss the legal allegation based on violation of Section 
4723.28(B)(4), ORC, set forth in Item 1 of the November 21, 2014 Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, based upon Section 2953.32 and/or Section 2953.52, 
ORC.  It was further moved that as to the legal allegations set forth in Item 2 of 
the November 21, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, the Board find that 
MS. BROWN has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio 
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Revised Code Chapter 4723, and that MS. BROWN’s license to practice nursing 
as a licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with 
the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, 
MS. BROWN’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. BROWN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. BROWN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BROWN shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. BROWN, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. BROWN’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BROWN shall pay 

the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by certified check, cashier 
check, or money order, made payable to the “Treasurer, State of Ohio,” to 
the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the attention of the Compliance 
Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, 
OH 43215-7410. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BROWN shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Anger Management; five (5) hours of 
Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses; five (5) hours of 
Professionalism; and one (1) hour of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BROWN shall, at 

her expense, obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved 
psychiatrist and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. BROWN shall provide the 
psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 187 
 

psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. BROWN's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. BROWN is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. BROWN shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. BROWN’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BROWN 

 
8. MS. BROWN shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
9. MS. BROWN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
10. MS. BROWN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
11. MS. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
12. MS. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
13. MS. BROWN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

14. MS. BROWN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. BROWN 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
BROWN has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. BROWN is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
BROWN and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
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Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. BROWN’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. BROWN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. BROWN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Employment Conditions 
 

3. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. BROWN shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
4. MS. BROWN is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 

and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BROWN shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. BROWN shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

5. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. BROWN shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BROWN 

 
6. MS. BROWN shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
7. MS. BROWN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
8. MS. BROWN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
9. MS. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
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Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
10. MS. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
11. MS. BROWN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

12. MS. BROWN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. BROWN’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. BROWN’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. BROWN has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. BROWN via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. BROWN 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. BROWN has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. BROWN is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. BROWN and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. BROWN does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining.  J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
   
Slanaker, Elsie, R.N. 275952 (CASE #14-6289) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against ELSIE LUELLA SLANAKER in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. SLANAKER has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
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of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. SLANAKER’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with 
the conditions for reinstatement set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. SLANAKER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. SLANAKER shall appear in person for interviews before the full 
Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLANAKER shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. SLANAKER, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. SLANAKER’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLANAKER shall, 

shall submit documentation of her successful completion of all terms of the 
Final Order dated September 10, 2008, and Stipulation for Voluntary 
Surrender of Registered Nurse License issued by the Oregon State Board 
of Nursing dated August 24, 2008, and that her Oregon license is fully 
reinstated and unencumbered.   

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SLANAKER shall, 

shall submit documentation of her successful completion of all terms of the 
Decision and Order adopted by the Board of Registered Nursing, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California effective on or about 
November 26, 2014, with Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, and 
that her California license is fully reinstated and unencumbered.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. SLANAKER 

 
6. MS. SLANAKER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
7. MS. SLANAKER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
8. MS. SLANAKER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
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Board or to employers or potential employers.  
 

9. MS. SLANAKER shall submit the reports and documentation required by 
this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
10. MS. SLANAKER shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
11. MS. SLANAKER shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

12. MS. SLANAKER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
SLANAKER submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board 
determines that MS. SLANAKER has complied with all conditions of 
reinstatement; and (3) the Board determines that MS. SLANAKER is able to 
practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care based upon an interview with MS. SLANAKER and review of the 
documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Friend, Jane, R.N. 227273 (CASE #14-2543) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against JANE MARIE FRIEND in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. FRIEND has committed acts in violation of the 
Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. FRIEND’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than 
two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. FRIEND’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, 
including the Permanent Narcotic and Permanent Practice Restrictions set 
forth below. 
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REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. FRIEND shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. FRIEND shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. FRIEND shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. FRIEND, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. FRIEND’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. FRIEND shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  fifteen (15) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Disciplinary Actions; five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and 
Legal Liability for Nurses; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and 
Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. FRIEND shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
FRIEND’s history.  MS. FRIEND shall self-administer the prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. FRIEND shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 
to requesting reinstatement, MS. FRIEND shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. FRIEND’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. FRIEND 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
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dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. FRIEND’s history. 

 
8. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. FRIEND initiating drug screening, MS. 

FRIEND shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. FRIEND. 

 
9. After initiating drug screening, MS. FRIEND shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. FRIEND shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. FRIEND shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. FRIEND shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. FRIEND 

 
11. MS. FRIEND shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
12. MS. FRIEND shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
13. MS. FRIEND shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
14. MS. FRIEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
15. MS. FRIEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  
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16. MS. FRIEND shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office.  

 
17. MS. FRIEND shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. FRIEND 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
FRIEND has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. FRIEND is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
FRIEND and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. FRIEND’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. FRIEND shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. FRIEND shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. FRIEND shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
FRIEND’s history.  MS. FRIEND shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. FRIEND shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. FRIEND shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. FRIEND shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. FRIEND’s history. 
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6. MS. FRIEND shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 
support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. FRIEND shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

FRIEND shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. FRIEND shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. FRIEND shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. FRIEND 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. FRIEND shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. FRIEND shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. FRIEND is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. FRIEND shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. FRIEND shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. MS. FRIEND shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. FRIEND 
 

13. MS. FRIEND shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. FRIEND shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. FRIEND shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. FRIEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. FRIEND shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. FRIEND shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. FRIEND shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. FRIEND shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. FRIEND’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. FRIEND’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. FRIEND shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. FRIEND shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. FRIEND shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
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MS. FRIEND to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. FRIEND shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. FRIEND’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. FRIEND’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. FRIEND has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. FRIEND via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. FRIEND 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. FRIEND has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. FRIEND is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. FRIEND and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. FRIEND does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining.  J. Jane McFee was not present for the vote.  
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Mathews, Tracy, R.N. 348053 (CASE #13-4354) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against TRACY LANETT MATHEWS in the 
July 25, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. MATHEWS has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. MATHEWS’s license to practice nursing 
as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less 
than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. MATHEWS’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 198 
 
including the Temporary Narcotic and Temporary Practice Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. MATHEWS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. MATHEWS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MATHEWS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. MATHEWS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. MATHEWS’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MATHEWS shall 

pay the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by certified check, cashier 
check, or money order, made payable to the “Treasurer, State of Ohio,” to 
the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the attention of the Compliance 
Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, 
OH 43215-7410. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MATHEWS shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Legal Aspects of Charting; five (5) 
hours of Drug Prevention; five (5) hours of Drugs and Nursing; and two (2) 
hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. MATHEWS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
MATHEWS’s history.  MS. MATHEWS shall self-administer the 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. MATHEWS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. MATHEWS shall, 
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at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. MATHEWS shall provide the chemical dependency professional with 
a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MS. MATHEWS shall execute releases to permit the chemical 
dependency professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate 
and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions 
that should be placed on MS. MATHEWS's license, and a statement as to 
whether MS. MATHEWS is capable of practicing nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. MATHEWS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation 

of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. MATHEWS’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MATHEWS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
MATHEWS’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. MATHEWS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. MATHEWS’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. MATHEWS initiating drug screening, 

MS. MATHEWS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. MATHEWS. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. MATHEWS shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
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by another practitioner.  Further, MS. MATHEWS shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. MATHEWS shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. MATHEWS 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MATHEWS 

 
14. MS. MATHEWS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. MATHEWS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. MATHEWS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. MATHEWS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. MATHEWS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. MATHEWS shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. MATHEWS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
MATHEWS submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. MATHEWS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MS. MATHEWS is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. MATHEWS and review of the documentation specified in this 
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Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
MATHEWS’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. MATHEWS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. MATHEWS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. MATHEWS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
MATHEWS’s history.  MS. MATHEWS shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. MATHEWS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. MATHEWS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. MATHEWS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. MATHEWS’s history. 

 
6. MS. MATHEWS shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. MATHEWS shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

MATHEWS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. MATHEWS shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
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treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. MATHEWS shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
MATHEWS throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. MATHEWS shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. MATHEWS shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. MATHEWS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. MATHEWS shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. MATHEWS shall have her employer(s) send documentation 
to the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of 
this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. MATHEWS shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. MATHEWS 

 
13. MS. MATHEWS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. MATHEWS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. MATHEWS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
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Board or to employers or potential employers. 
 

16. MS. MATHEWS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 
this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. MATHEWS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. MATHEWS shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. MATHEWS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. MATHEWS shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. MATHEWS’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. MATHEWS’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. MATHEWS shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. MATHEWS shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. MATHEWS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. MATHEWS to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. MATHEWS shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
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FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. MATHEWS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. MATHEWS’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. MATHEWS has violated or breached any 
terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board 
shall notify MS. MATHEWS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges 
and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. 
MATHEWS may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. MATHEWS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. MATHEWS is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. MATHEWS and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
MATHEWS does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Logan, Brandy, R.N. 364960 (Case #14-2972) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against BRANDY NICOLE LOGAN in the 
September 19, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board find that MS. LOGAN has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. LOGAN’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than 
two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. LOGAN’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, 
including the Temporary Narcotic and Temporary Practice Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. LOGAN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
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2. MS. LOGAN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. LOGAN shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. LOGAN, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. LOGAN’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
Educational Needs Assessment and Learning Plan 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. LOGAN shall 

establish contact with a nursing educator approved by the Board who has 
no less than a master’s degree and who is affiliated with a nursing 
educational program and MS. LOGAN shall have the educator provide the 
Board with a written report of an assessment of MS. LOGAN, which 
identifies MS. LOGAN’s knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial 
educational needs.  Prior to the assessment, MS. LOGAN shall provide 
the nursing educator with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing and shall submit to any nursing skills or 
knowledge assessments required by the educator.  MS. LOGAN shall also 
execute releases prior to the assessment to permit the educator to obtain 
any information deemed appropriate and necessary for the assessment 
including information from MS. LOGAN’s employer(s), former employers, 
and Board staff. Following the assessment, MS. LOGAN shall have the 
educator provide the Board with a copy of a learning plan developed by 
the educator for MS. LOGAN and shall obtain approval of the learning 
plan by the Board or its designee.  The learning plan shall identify specific 
remediation that MS. LOGAN shall complete to address any 
knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial educational needs identified 
by the educator and shall identify the time frame during which MS. 
LOGAN shall complete such learning plan.  Prior to requesting 
reinstatement by the Board, MS. LOGAN shall successfully complete 
and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion of the 
learning plan within the time frame specified in the learning plan.  After 
MS. LOGAN has successfully completed the learning plan and prior to 
requesting reinstatement by the Board, the educator shall provide the 
Board with an assessment and any recommendations for additional 
remedial education and/or restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
LOGAN’s license to practice.  Furthermore, the educator shall provide to 
the Board a written opinion stating whether MS. LOGAN is capable of 
practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of 
safe nursing care.  MS. LOGAN shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with meeting this requirement. 
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5. The Board may utilize the educator's recommendations and conclusions 
from the assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on 
MS. LOGAN’s license.   

 
6. In the event that the educator’s recommendations require MS. LOGAN to 

have an active nursing license, the Board, prior to reinstatement of her 
license, may issue MS. LOGAN a license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse that is restricted to the limited use and sole purpose of 
completing the educator’s recommendations.  For all other uses and 
purposes, MS. LOGAN’s license shall remain suspended.  Upon 
successful completion of the educator’s recommendations and upon 
written notification to the Board or its designee, the limitations on MS. 
LOGAN’s license shall be terminated.  MS. LOGAN shall not gain or 
attempt to gain employment as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio until 
she has completed the requirements and conditions for reinstatement, set 
forth in this Order, and the Board has reinstated her license. 

 
Monitoring  

 
7. MS. LOGAN shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. LOGAN’s 
history.  MS. LOGAN shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. LOGAN shall, at 

her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. LOGAN shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
LOGAN shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. LOGAN's license, and a statement as to whether MS. LOGAN is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. LOGAN shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. LOGAN’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of six (6) months immediately 
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prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. LOGAN shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. LOGAN’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
LOGAN shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. LOGAN’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. LOGAN initiating drug screening, MS. 

LOGAN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. LOGAN. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. LOGAN shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. LOGAN shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of six (6) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. LOGAN shall attend a minimum 
of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved 
in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. LOGAN 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. LOGAN 

 
14. MS. LOGAN shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. LOGAN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. LOGAN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
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misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. LOGAN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. LOGAN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. LOGAN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. LOGAN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. LOGAN 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
LOGAN has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. LOGAN is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
LOGAN and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. LOGAN’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. LOGAN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. LOGAN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. LOGAN shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. LOGAN’s 
history.  MS. LOGAN shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. During the probationary period, MS. LOGAN shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
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failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. LOGAN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. LOGAN’s history. 

 
5. MS. LOGAN shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. LOGAN shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
6. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

LOGAN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. LOGAN shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
7. MS. LOGAN shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. LOGAN 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
8. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. LOGAN shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
9. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. LOGAN shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

10. MS. LOGAN is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. LOGAN shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. LOGAN shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
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were received. 
 

11. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. LOGAN shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. LOGAN 

 
12. MS. LOGAN shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
13. MS. LOGAN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
14. MS. LOGAN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
15. MS. LOGAN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
16. MS. LOGAN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
17. MS. LOGAN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

18. MS. LOGAN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. LOGAN shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. LOGAN’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. LOGAN’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. LOGAN shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. LOGAN shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
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Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. LOGAN shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. LOGAN to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. LOGAN shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. LOGAN’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. LOGAN’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. LOGAN has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. LOGAN via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. LOGAN 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. LOGAN has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. LOGAN is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. LOGAN and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. LOGAN does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Frame, Joann, R.N, 213869, P.N. 070357 (CASE #14-6340) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JOANN MARIE FRAME in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
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charges, the Board find that MS. FRAME has committed acts in violation of the 
Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. FRAME’s licenses to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse and licensed practical nurse be PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Keklak, Katherine, R.N. 358845 (CASE #14-1499) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against KATHERINE ELIZABETH KEKLAK 
in the July 25, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board find that MS. KEKLAK has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. KEKLAK’s license to practice nursing 
as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the 
conditions for reinstatement set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. KEKLAK shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. KEKLAK shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. KEKLAK shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. KEKLAK, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. KEKLAK’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. KEKLAK shall 

submit documentation of her successful completion of all terms of the 
Decision and Order and Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order 
issued by the Board of Registered Nursing, Department of Consumer 
Affairs, State of California, effective on or about March 28, 2014, and that 
her California license is fully reinstated and unencumbered.    
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Reporting Requirements of MS. KEKLAK 
 

5. MS. KEKLAK shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MS. KEKLAK shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MS. KEKLAK shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MS. KEKLAK shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MS. KEKLAK shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MS. KEKLAK shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MS. KEKLAK shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. KEKLAK 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
KEKLAK has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. KEKLAK is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
KEKLAK and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Williams, Crystal, R.N. 279667 (CASE #14-4083) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against CRYSTAL LYNN WILLIAMS in 
the January 23, 2015 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. 
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WILLIAMS has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio 
Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension 
and Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. WILLIAMS’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but 
not less than one (1) year with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, 
and that following reinstatement, MS. WILLIAMS’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and Temporary Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. WILLIAMS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. WILLIAMS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. WILLIAMS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. WILLIAMS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. WILLIAMS’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MS. WILLIAMS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
WILLIAMS’s history.  MS. WILLIAMS shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
5. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 

reinstatement by the Board, MS. WILLIAMS shall, at her expense, 
obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. WILLIAMS 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. WILLIAMS shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
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diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. WILLIAMS's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. WILLIAMS is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
6. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. WILLIAMS shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
WILLIAMS’s license. 

 
7. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. WILLIAMS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
WILLIAMS’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. WILLIAMS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. WILLIAMS’s history. 

 
8. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. WILLIAMS initiating drug screening, 

MS. WILLIAMS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. WILLIAMS. 

 
9. After initiating drug screening, MS. WILLIAMS shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. WILLIAMS shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
10. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 

reinstatement by the Board, MS. WILLIAMS shall, at her expense, 
obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of such evaluation.  
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Prior to the evaluation, MS. WILLIAMS shall provide the psychiatrist with 
a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the 
psychiatrist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
WILLIAMS's license, and a statement as to whether MS. WILLIAMS is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
11. If a psychiatric evaluation is requested, MS. WILLIAMS shall provide the 

Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all aspects of 
the treatment plan developed by the psychiatrist described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. WILLIAMS’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. WILLIAMS 

 
12. MS. WILLIAMS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. WILLIAMS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. WILLIAMS shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. WILLIAMS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
WILLIAMS submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. WILLIAMS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MS. WILLIAMS is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. WILLIAMS and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
WILLIAMS’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. WILLIAMS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. WILLIAMS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within ninety (90) 

days of the request, MS. WILLIAMS shall, at her expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. WILLIAMS 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. WILLIAMS shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. WILLIAMS's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. WILLIAMS is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
4. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. WILLIAMS shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
WILLIAMS’s license. 
 

5. MS. WILLIAMS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
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possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
WILLIAMS’s history.  MS. WILLIAMS shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. During the probationary period, MS. WILLIAMS shall submit, at her 

expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or 
in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of 
a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. WILLIAMS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. WILLIAMS’s history. 

 
7. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within ninety (90) 

days of the request, MS. WILLIAMS shall, at her expense, obtain a 
psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and shall 
provide the Board with complete documentation of such evaluation.  Prior 
to the evaluation, MS. WILLIAMS shall provide the psychiatrist with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the 
psychiatrist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
WILLIAMS's license, and a statement as to whether MS. WILLIAMS is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. If a psychiatric evaluation is requested, MS. WILLIAMS shall provide the 

Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all aspects of 
the treatment plan developed by the psychiatrist described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. WILLIAMS’s license. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
9. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

WILLIAMS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. WILLIAMS shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
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treated by another practitioner. 
 

10. MS. WILLIAMS shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 
medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
WILLIAMS throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
11. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. WILLIAMS shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
12. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. WILLIAMS shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

13. MS. WILLIAMS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
WILLIAMS shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. WILLIAMS shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

14. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. WILLIAMS shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. WILLIAMS 

 
15. MS. WILLIAMS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 
 

16. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
17. MS. WILLIAMS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 
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18. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 
this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
19. MS. WILLIAMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
20. MS. WILLIAMS shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

21. MS. WILLIAMS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. WILLIAMS shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. WILLIAMS’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. WILLIAMS’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. WILLIAMS shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. WILLIAMS shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. WILLIAMS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. WILLIAMS to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. WILLIAMS shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. WILLIAMS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. WILLIAMS’s 
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license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. WILLIAMS has violated or breached any 
terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board 
shall notify MS. WILLIAMS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges 
and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. 
WILLIAMS may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. WILLIAMS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. WILLIAMS is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. WILLIAMS and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
WILLIAMS does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Oglesby, Christy, P.N. 088043 (CASE #14-4648) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against CHRISTY L. OGLESBY in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. 
OGLESBY has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio 
Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Temporary Suspension 
and Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. OGLESBY’s license to practice 
nursing as a licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than three (3) years with the conditions for reinstatement set 
forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. OGLESBY’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of three (3) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. OGLESBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. OGLESBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
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designee. 
 

3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. OGLESBY shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. OGLESBY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. OGLESBY’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. OGLESBY shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Patient's Rights; five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and Legal 
Liability for Nurses; five (5) hours of Veracity in Nursing; and two (2) hours 
of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. OGLESBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
OGLESBY’s history.  MS. OGLESBY shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. OGLESBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. OGLESBY shall, 
at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. OGLESBY shall provide the chemical dependency professional with 
a copy of this Order and the Notice of Temporary Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. OGLESBY shall execute releases 
to permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. OGLESBY's license, 
and a statement as to whether MS. OGLESBY is capable of practicing 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 
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8. MS. OGLESBY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 
compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. OGLESBY’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. OGLESBY shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
OGLESBY’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. OGLESBY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. OGLESBY’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. OGLESBY initiating drug screening, 

MS. OGLESBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. OGLESBY. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. OGLESBY shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. OGLESBY shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. OGLESBY shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. OGLESBY 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. OGLESBY 

 
13. MS. OGLESBY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
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professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. OGLESBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. OGLESBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. OGLESBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. OGLESBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. OGLESBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. OGLESBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
OGLESBY submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. OGLESBY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 
the Board determines that MS. OGLESBY is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. OGLESBY and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
OGLESBY’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. OGLESBY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. OGLESBY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 
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Monitoring  
 

3. MS. OGLESBY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
OGLESBY’s history.  MS. OGLESBY shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 
 

4. MS. OGLESBY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
5. During the probationary period, MS. OGLESBY shall submit, at her 

expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. OGLESBY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. OGLESBY’s history. 

 
6. MS. OGLESBY shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. OGLESBY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

OGLESBY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. OGLESBY shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. OGLESBY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
OGLESBY throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. OGLESBY shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 
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Employment Conditions 
 

10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. OGLESBY shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
11. MS. OGLESBY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 

and the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
OGLESBY shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. OGLESBY shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. OGLESBY shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. OGLESBY 

 
13. MS. OGLESBY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. OGLESBY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. OGLESBY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. OGLESBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. OGLESBY shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. OGLESBY shall verify that the reports and documentation required 
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by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. OGLESBY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. OGLESBY shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. OGLESBY’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. OGLESBY’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. OGLESBY shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. OGLESBY shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. OGLESBY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. OGLESBY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. OGLESBY shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. OGLESBY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. OGLESBY’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. OGLESBY has violated or 
breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MS. OGLESBY via certified mail of the 
specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon 
receipt of this notice, MS. OGLESBY may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. OGLESBY has complied with all aspects of this 
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Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. OGLESBY is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. OGLESBY and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
OGLESBY does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Heist, Allison, R.N. 287006, NP 10203, CTP 10203 (CASE #14-2162) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against ALLISON RENEE HEIST in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. HEIST has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. HEIST’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse and her certificates of authority are suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth 
below, and that following reinstatement, MS. HEIST’s license to practice nursing 
as a registered nurse and certificates of authority shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and 
Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. HEIST shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. HEIST shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HEIST shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. HEIST, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. HEIST’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HEIST shall, in 
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addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  five (5) hours of Disciplinary Actions; five (5) hours of 
Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses; and two (2) 
hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. HEIST shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. HEIST’s 
history.  MS. HEIST shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. HEIST shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. HEIST shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. HEIST shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Temporary Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. HEIST shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. HEIST's license and 
certificates, and a statement as to whether MS. HEIST is capable of 
practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of 
safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. HEIST shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. HEIST’s license and certificates. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. HEIST shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. HEIST’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
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may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. HEIST shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
HEIST’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. HEIST initiating drug screening, MS. 

HEIST shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. HEIST. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. HEIST shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. HEIST shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. HEIST shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. HEIST shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. HEIST 

 
13. MS. HEIST shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. HEIST shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. HEIST shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. HEIST shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  
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17. MS. HEIST shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. HEIST shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. HEIST shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. HEIST 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
HEIST has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. HEIST is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
HEIST and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. HEIST’s 
license and certificates shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. HEIST shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. HEIST shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. HEIST shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. HEIST’s 
history.  MS. HEIST shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. HEIST shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. HEIST shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
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This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. HEIST shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. HEIST’s history. 

 
6. MS. HEIST shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. HEIST shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

HEIST shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. HEIST shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. HEIST shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. HEIST 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. HEIST shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. HEIST shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. HEIST is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. HEIST 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing and/or certificate of authority are required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within 
thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. HEIST shall 
have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the 
first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
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12. MS. HEIST shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing and/or certificates of authority are required, 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse 
refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the 
Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. HEIST 

 
13. MS. HEIST shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. HEIST shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. HEIST shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. HEIST shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. HEIST shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. HEIST shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. HEIST shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. HEIST shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. HEIST’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. HEIST’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, or 
mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. HEIST shall not count narcotics or possess 
or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. HEIST shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
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Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. HEIST shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse and/or certified nurse 
practitioner with prescriptive authority (1) for agencies providing home care in the 
patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs providing hospice care in the 
patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or pools; (4) as an independent 
provider where the nurse provides nursing care and is reimbursed for services by 
the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an 
individual or group of individuals who directly engage MS. HEIST to provide 
nursing services for fees, compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. HEIST shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. HEIST’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. HEIST’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse and certificates of authority will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. HEIST has violated 
or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MS. HEIST via certified mail of the specific 
nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license and certificates.  
Upon receipt of this notice, MS. HEIST may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. HEIST has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. HEIST is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. HEIST and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. HEIST does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Unger, Amy, R.N. 253177 (CASE #14-5351) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against AMY LYNN UNGER in the 
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November 21, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. UNGER has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. UNGER’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. UNGER’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of four (4) years, including the Temporary Practice 
Restrictions, unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee, set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. UNGER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. UNGER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. UNGER shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. UNGER, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. UNGER’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. If MS. UNGER applies for a nursing license in another state, along 

with her application for licensure for that state, MS. UNGER shall also 
provide a copy of this Order and attachments.  MS. UNGER shall cause 
the state in which she applies for licensure as a nurse to submit 
satisfactory documentation to this Board indicating receipt of this Order 
and attachments, and the date they were received. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. UNGER shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. UNGER’s 
history.  MS. UNGER shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. UNGER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
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7. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 
reinstatement by the Board, MS. UNGER shall, at her expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. UNGER 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. UNGER shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. UNGER's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. UNGER is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. UNGER shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
UNGER’s license. 

 
9. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. UNGER shall begin submitting, 

at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by 
the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
UNGER’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. UNGER shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. UNGER’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. UNGER initiating drug screening, MS. 

UNGER shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. UNGER. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. UNGER shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
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additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. UNGER shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. UNGER shall attend a minimum 

of one (1) per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. UNGER shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
13. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to requesting 

reinstatement by the Board, MS. UNGER shall, at her expense, obtain a 
psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and shall 
provide the Board with complete documentation of such evaluation.  Prior 
to the evaluation, MS. UNGER shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of 
this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. UNGER's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. UNGER is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
14. If a psychiatriac evaluation is requested, MS. UNGER shall provide the 

Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all aspects of 
the treatment plan developed by the psychiatrist described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. UNGER’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. UNGER 

 
15. MS. UNGER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
16. MS. UNGER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
17. MS. UNGER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
18. MS. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
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Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
19. MS. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
20. MS. UNGER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

21. MS. UNGER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. UNGER 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
UNGER has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. UNGER is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
UNGER and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. UNGER’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of four (4) years. 
 

1. MS. UNGER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. UNGER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

3. If MS. UNGER applies for a nursing license in another state, along 
with her application for licensure for that state, MS. UNGER shall also 
provide a copy of this Order and attachments.  MS. UNGER shall cause 
the state in which she applies for licensure as a nurse to submit 
satisfactory documentation to this Board indicating receipt of this Order 
and attachments, and the date they were received. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within ninety (90) 

days of the request, MS. UNGER shall, at her expense, obtain a 
chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical 
dependency professional and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. UNGER 
shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
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Hearing.  Further, MS. UNGER shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. UNGER's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. UNGER is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
5. If a chemical dependency evaluation is requested, MS. UNGER shall 

provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all 
aspects of the treatment plan developed by the chemical dependency 
professional described above until released.  Further, the Board may 
utilize the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the 
evaluation as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
UNGER’s license. 

 
6. MS. UNGER shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. UNGER’s 
history.  MS. UNGER shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. UNGER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

8. During the probationary period, MS. UNGER shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. UNGER shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. UNGER’s history. 

 
9. MS. UNGER shall attend a minimum of one (1) per week of a support or 

peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step 
program, and MS. UNGER shall provide satisfactory documentation of 
such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
10. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, and within ninety (90) 

days of the request, MS. UNGER shall, at her expense, obtain a 
psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved psychiatrist and shall 
provide the Board with complete documentation of such evaluation.  Prior 
to the evaluation, MS. UNGER shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of 
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this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. UNGER's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. UNGER is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
11. If a psychiatriac evaluation is requested, MS. UNGER shall provide the 

Board with satisfactory documentation of compliance with all aspects of 
the treatment plan developed by the psychiatrist described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. UNGER’s license. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
12. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

UNGER shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. UNGER shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
13. MS. UNGER shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. UNGER 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
14. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. UNGER shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
15. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. UNGER shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

16. MS. UNGER is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. UNGER 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 241 
 

accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. UNGER shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

17. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. UNGER shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. UNGER 

 
18. MS. UNGER shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
19. MS. UNGER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
20. MS. UNGER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
21. MS. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
22. MS. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
23. MS. UNGER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

24. MS. UNGER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MS. 
UNGER shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
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pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. UNGER to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MS. 
UNGER shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. UNGER’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. UNGER’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. UNGER has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. UNGER via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. UNGER 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. UNGER has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. UNGER is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. UNGER and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. UNGER does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Sharpe, Cathy, R.N. 327843, P.N. 107708 (CASE #14-2680) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against CATHY DENISE SHARPE in the 
July 25, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing and 
evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. SHARPE has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
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for Hearing, and that MS. SHARPE’s licenses to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse and licensed practical nurse are PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Moore, Terry, R.N. 382383 (CASE #14-5200) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against TERRY ALLAN MOORE in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MR. MOORE has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MR. MOORE’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MR. MOORE’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary Practice 
Restrictions, unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee, set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. MOORE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. MOORE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. MOORE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. MOORE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. MOORE’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 
 

4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. MOORE shall, in 
addition to the requirements of licensure renewal, successfully complete 
and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion of the 
following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective date of 
this Order:  ten (10) hours of Chemical Dependency; and two (2) hours of 
Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 
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Monitoring  
 

5. MR. MOORE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
MOORE’s history.  MR. MOORE shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MR. MOORE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. MOORE shall, at 
his expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MR. MOORE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MR. MOORE shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MR. MOORE's license, 
and a statement as to whether MR. MOORE is capable of practicing 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 

 
8. MR. MOORE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MR. MOORE’s license. 

 
9. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MR. MOORE shall begin submitting, 

at his expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by 
the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. 
MOORE’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. MOORE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. MOORE’s history. 
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10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. MOORE initiating drug screening, MR. 
MOORE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. MOORE. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MR. MOORE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. MOORE shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. MOORE 

 
12. MR. MOORE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MR. MOORE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MR. MOORE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MR. MOORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MR. MOORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MR. MOORE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MR. MOORE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. MOORE 
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submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
MOORE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. MOORE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MR. 
MOORE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. MOORE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MR. MOORE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. MOORE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MR. MOORE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
MOORE’s history.  MR. MOORE shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MR. MOORE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MR. MOORE shall submit, at his expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. MOORE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. MOORE’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
6. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

MOORE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. MOORE shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
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treated by another practitioner. 
 

7. MR. MOORE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 
medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. 
MOORE throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
8. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. MOORE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
9. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MR. MOORE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

10. MR. MOORE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. 
MOORE shall have his employer(s), if working in a position where a 
license to practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. MOORE shall have his 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

11. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, prior to working in a 
position where a license to practice nursing is required, complete and 
submit satisfactory documentation of completion of a nurse refresher 
course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. MOORE 

 
12. MR. MOORE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 
 

13. MR. MOORE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
14. MR. MOORE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 
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15. MR. MOORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
16. MR. MOORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
17. MR. MOORE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

18. MR. MOORE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
MOORE shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MR. MOORE to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Board or its designee, MR. 
MOORE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. MOORE’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. MOORE’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MR. MOORE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MR. MOORE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of his license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. MOORE 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
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the Board determines that MR. MOORE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. MOORE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. MOORE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. MOORE does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Ramey, Doralee, P.N. 107389 (CASE #14-4101) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against DORALEE ADDISON RAMEY in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board find that MS. RAMEY has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. RAMEY’s license to practice nursing as 
a licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not 
less than two (2) years, retroactive to September 1, 2014, with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. RAMEY’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a 
stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below 
for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. RAMEY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. RAMEY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAMEY shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. RAMEY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. RAMEY’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAMEY shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
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imposed by the Ashtabula County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Numbers 2014 CRB 443, 2014 CRB 444, and 2014 CRB 445. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. RAMEY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. RAMEY’s 
history.  MS. RAMEY shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. RAMEY shall, at 

her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. RAMEY shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
RAMEY shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. RAMEY's license, and a statement as to whether MS. RAMEY is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. RAMEY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. RAMEY’s license. 

 
8. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. RAMEY 

shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any products 
containing alcohol.  

 
9. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, prior to 

requesting reinstatement, MS. RAMEY shall begin submitting, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. RAMEY’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
RAMEY shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
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administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. RAMEY’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. RAMEY initiating drug screening, MS. 

RAMEY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. RAMEY. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. RAMEY shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. RAMEY shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. RAMEY shall attend a minimum 

of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved 
in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. RAMEY 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RAMEY 

 
13. MS. RAMEY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. RAMEY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. RAMEY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. RAMEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. RAMEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  
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18. MS. RAMEY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office.  

 
19. MS. RAMEY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. RAMEY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
RAMEY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. RAMEY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
RAMEY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. RAMEY’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. RAMEY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. RAMEY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. RAMEY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. RAMEY’s 
history.  MS. RAMEY shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. RAMEY 

shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any products 
containing alcohol. 

 
5. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, during the 

probationary period, MS. RAMEY shall submit, at her expense and on the 
day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug and/or 
alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such times as 
the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
RAMEY shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
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has full knowledge of MS. RAMEY’s history. 
 

6. MS. RAMEY shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 
support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. RAMEY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

RAMEY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. RAMEY shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. RAMEY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. RAMEY 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. RAMEY shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. RAMEY shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. RAMEY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. RAMEY shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. RAMEY shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. RAMEY shall, 
prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
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advance by the Board or its designee. 
 
Reporting Requirements of MS. RAMEY 

 
13. MS. RAMEY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. RAMEY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. RAMEY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. RAMEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. RAMEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. RAMEY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. RAMEY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. RAMEY shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. RAMEY’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. RAMEY’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. RAMEY shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. RAMEY shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. RAMEY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
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nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. RAMEY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. RAMEY shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  
Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. RAMEY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. RAMEY’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. RAMEY has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. RAMEY via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. RAMEY 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. RAMEY has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. RAMEY is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. RAMEY and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. RAMEY does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Huls, Joni, R.N. 208188 (CASE #14-1177) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JONI LYNN HULS in the January 23, 
2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the 
Board find that MS. HULLS has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice 
Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing, and that MS. HULLS’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse 
be suspended and that the suspension is stayed subject to the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of one (1) year, 
including the Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
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MS. HULLS’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be 
subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. HULLS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. HULLS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 

3. MS. HULLS shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification 
and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. 
HULLS, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 
records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. HULLS’s criminal records 
check reports to the Board.  MS. HULLS’s completed criminal records 
check, including the FBI check, must be received by the Board within 
six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 

 
Educational Needs Assessment and Learning Plan 

 
4. Within ninety (90) days of effective date of this Order, MS. HULLS 

shall establish contact with a nursing educator approved by the Board who 
has no less than a master’s degree and who is affiliated with a nursing 
educational program and MS. HULLS shall have the educator provide the 
Board with a written report of an assessment of MS. HULLS, which 
identifies MS. HULLS’s knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial 
educational needs.  Prior to the assessment, MS. HULLS shall provide the 
nursing educator with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity 
for Hearing and shall submit to any nursing skills or knowledge 
assessments required by the educator.  MS. HULLS shall also execute 
releases prior to the assessment to permit the educator to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the assessment 
including information from MS. HULLS’s employer(s), former employers, 
and Board staff. Following the assessment, MS. HULLS shall have the 
educator provide the Board with a copy of a learning plan developed by 
the educator for MS. HULLS and shall obtain approval of the learning plan 
by the Board or its designee.  The learning plan shall identify specific 
remediation that MS. HULLS shall complete to address any 
knowledge/practice deficiencies and remedial educational needs identified 
by the educator and shall identify the time frame during which MS. HULLS 
shall complete such learning plan.  MS. HULLS shall successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the learning plan within the time frame specified in the learning plan.  
After MS. HULLS has successfully completed the learning plan, the 
educator shall provide the Board with an assessment and any 
recommendations for additional remedial education and/or restrictions that 
should be placed on MS. HULLS’s license to practice.  Furthermore, the 
educator shall provide to the Board a written opinion stating whether MS. 
HULLS is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
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prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  MS. HULLS shall be 
responsible for all costs associated with meeting this requirement. 

 
5. The Board may utilize the educator's recommendations and conclusions 

from the assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on 
MS. HULLS’s license.   

 
Monitoring  

 
6. Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Order, MS. HULLS 

shall, at her expense, obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board 
approved psychiatrist and shall provide the Board with complete 
documentation of such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. HULLS 
shall provide the psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the 
psychiatrist to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
HULLS's license, and a statement as to whether MS. HULLS is capable 
of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of 
safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. HULLS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. HULLS’s license. 
 

Employment Conditions 
 
8. MS. HULLS shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and address of 

any current employer within thirty (30) days following the effective 
date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting employment 
as a nurse. 

 
9. MS. HULLS, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this Order, 

if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is required, 
shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. HULLS is under a continuing duty 
to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing 
to any new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. 
HULLS shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a 
nursing license is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
the effective date of this Order or beginning within thirty (30) days of 
working in a position as a nurse.  MS. HULLS shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
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employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were received.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. HULLS 
 
10. MS. HULLS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
11. MS. HULLS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
12. MS. HULLS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
13. MS. HULLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
14. MS. HULLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
15. MS. HULLS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 
16. MS. HULLS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 

of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. HULLS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. HULLS to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. HULLS shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include but are not 
limited to the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
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Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. HULLS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. HULLS’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. HULLS has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. HULLS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. HULLS 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. HULLS has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. HULLS is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. HULLS and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. HULLS does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Copley, Sarah, P.N. 120022 (CASE #14-3738) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against SARAH ELIZABETH COPLEY 
in the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence 
supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. COPLEY has committed acts in 
violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated 
in the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. COPLEY’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time but not less than three (3) years with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. COPLEY’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a 
stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below 
for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. COPLEY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
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2. MS. COPLEY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COPLEY shall 
submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. COPLEY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. COPLEY’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COPLEY shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Professionalism; and one (1) hour of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. COPLEY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
COPLEY’s history.  MS. COPLEY shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. COPLEY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. COPLEY shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. COPLEY shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
COPLEY shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. COPLEY's license, and a statement as to whether MS. COPLEY 
is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. COPLEY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
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chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. COPLEY’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. COPLEY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. COPLEY’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. COPLEY 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. COPLEY’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. COPLEY initiating drug screening, MS. 

COPLEY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. COPLEY. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. COPLEY shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. COPLEY shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. COPLEY shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. COPLEY shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. COPLEY 

 
13. MS. COPLEY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  
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14. MS. COPLEY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 
request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. COPLEY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. COPLEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. COPLEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. COPLEY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. COPLEY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. COPLEY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
COPLEY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. COPLEY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
COPLEY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
COPLEY’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. COPLEY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. COPLEY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. COPLEY shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
COPLEY’s history.  MS. COPLEY shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
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only in the manner prescribed. 
 

4. MS. COPLEY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
5. During the probationary period, MS. COPLEY shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. COPLEY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. COPLEY’s history. 

 
6. MS. COPLEY shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. COPLEY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

COPLEY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. COPLEY shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. COPLEY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
COPLEY throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. COPLEY shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. COPLEY shall notify the Board, in writing. 
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11. MS. COPLEY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. COPLEY shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. COPLEY shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. MS. COPLEY shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. COPLEY 

 
13. MS. COPLEY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. COPLEY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. COPLEY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. COPLEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. COPLEY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. COPLEY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. COPLEY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 
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Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. COPLEY shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. COPLEY’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. COPLEY’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. COPLEY shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. COPLEY shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. COPLEY shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. COPLEY to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. COPLEY shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  
Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. COPLEY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. COPLEY’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. COPLEY has violated or breached 
any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the 
Board shall notify MS. COPLEY via certified mail of the specific nature of the 
charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, 
MS. COPLEY may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. COPLEY has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. COPLEY is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. COPLEY and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. COPLEY 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
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Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Grooms, Jennifer, R.N. 301736 (CASE #14-6208) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against JENNIFER LEIGH GROOMS 
in the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence 
supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. GROOMS has committed acts in 
violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated 
in the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. GROOMS’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of 
time but not less than three (3) years with the conditions for reinstatement set 
forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. GROOMS’s license to practice 
nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three 
(3) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and Permanent Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. GROOMS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. GROOMS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GROOMS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. GROOMS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. GROOMS’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GROOMS shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Patient's Rights; five (5) hours of Professional Accountability and Legal 
Liability for Nurses; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 
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Monitoring  
 

5. MS. GROOMS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
GROOMS’s history.  MS. GROOMS shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. GROOMS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GROOMS shall, 
at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. GROOMS shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
GROOMS shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. GROOMS's license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
GROOMS is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. GROOMS shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. GROOMS’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. GROOMS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. GROOMS’s 
initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to 
submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as 
the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed 
on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening 
shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. 
GROOMS shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, 
administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who 
has full knowledge of MS. GROOMS’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. GROOMS initiating drug screening, 
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MS. GROOMS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. GROOMS. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. GROOMS shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. GROOMS shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. GROOMS shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. GROOMS 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
13. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. GROOMS shall, 

at her expense, obtain a comprehensive physical examination by a Board 
approved physician for the purposes of evaluating MS. GROOMS’s fitness 
for duty and safety to practice nursing as a registered nurse.  This Board 
approved physician shall provide the Board with complete documentation 
of MS. GROOMS’s comprehensive physical examination and with a 
comprehensive assessment regarding MS. GROOMS’s fitness for duty 
and safety to practice nursing as a registered nurse.  Prior to the 
examination, MS. GROOMS shall provide the Board approved physician 
with a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  
Further, MS. GROOMS shall execute releases to permit the Board 
approved physician performing the comprehensive physical examination 
and assessment to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the assessment.  The evaluating physician shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. GROOMS’s license to practice, and stating whether MS. 
GROOMS is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

14. The Board may utilize the Board approved physician's recommendations 
and conclusions from the comprehensive physical examination and 
assessment as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MS. 
GROOMS’s license. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. GROOMS 
 

15. MS. GROOMS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
16. MS. GROOMS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
17. MS. GROOMS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
18. MS. GROOMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
19. MS. GROOMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
20. MS. GROOMS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

21. MS. GROOMS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. GROOMS 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
GROOMS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. GROOMS is able to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. GROOMS and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
GROOMS’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. GROOMS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. GROOMS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
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designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. GROOMS shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
GROOMS’s history.  MS. GROOMS shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. GROOMS shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. GROOMS shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. GROOMS shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. GROOMS’s history. 

 
6. MS. GROOMS shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. GROOMS shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

GROOMS shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. GROOMS shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. GROOMS shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
GROOMS throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 
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treatment, MS. GROOMS shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. GROOMS shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. GROOMS is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. GROOMS shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. GROOMS shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. MS. GROOMS shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. GROOMS 

 
13. MS. GROOMS shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. GROOMS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. GROOMS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. GROOMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. GROOMS shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 
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18. MS. GROOMS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office. 

 
19. MS. GROOMS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. GROOMS shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. GROOMS’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. GROOMS’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. GROOMS shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. GROOMS shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. GROOMS shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. GROOMS to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. GROOMS shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities, or supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant 
Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. GROOMS’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. GROOMS’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MS. GROOMS has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. GROOMS via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. GROOMS 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. GROOMS has complied with all aspects of this 
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Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. GROOMS is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. GROOMS and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. GROOMS 
does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required 
shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Unger, Adam, P.N. 121352 (CASE #14-5424) 
Action:  It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against ADAM LEE UNGER in the May 
16, 2014, and November 21, 2014 Notices of Opportunity for Hearing and 
evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MR. UNGER has committed 
acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as 
stated in the Notices of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MR. UNGER’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed pratical nurse be suspended for an indefinite 
period of time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MR. UNGER’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed pratical nurse shall be subject to a 
stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below 
for a minimum period of one (1) year, including the Temporary Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. UNGER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. UNGER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. UNGER, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. UNGER’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall pay 

the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by certified check, cashier 
check, or money order, made payable to the “Treasurer, State of Ohio,” to 
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the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the attention of the Compliance 
Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, 
OH 43215-7410. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall 

submit documentation of his full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Montgomery County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number 2013 CR 03173. 

 
6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall 

submit documentation of his full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Preble County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
14CR011532. 

 
7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of his license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  two (2) hours of Elder Abuse; two (2) hours of Ethics; 
and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
8. MR. UNGER shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
UNGER’s history.  MR. UNGER shall self-administer the prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
9. MR. UNGER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

10. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. UNGER shall, at 
his expense, obtain a psychiatric evaluation from a Board approved 
psychiatrist and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
such evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MR. UNGER shall provide the 
psychiatrist with a copy of this Order and the Notices of Opportunity for 
Hearing and shall execute releases to permit the psychiatrist to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
psychiatrist shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MR. UNGER's license, and a 
statement as to whether MR. UNGER is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
11. MR. UNGER shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
psychiatrist described above until released.  Further, the Board may utilize 
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the professional's recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation 
as a basis for additional terms and restrictions on MR. UNGER’s license. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. UNGER 

 
12. MR. UNGER shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MR. UNGER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MR. UNGER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MR. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MR. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MR. UNGER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MR. UNGER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. UNGER 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
UNGER has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. UNGER is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MR. 
UNGER and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. UNGER’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of one (1) year. 
 

1. MR. UNGER shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. UNGER shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
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its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MR. UNGER shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
UNGER’s history.  MR. UNGER shall self-administer the prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MR. UNGER shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

Employment Conditions 
 

5. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MR. UNGER shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
6. MR. UNGER is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 

and the Notices of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. UNGER shall have his 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MR. UNGER shall have his employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notices of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

7. MR. UNGER shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. UNGER 

 
8. MR. UNGER shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
9. MR. UNGER shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
10. MR. UNGER shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 
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11. MR. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
12. MR. UNGER shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
13. MR. UNGER shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

14. MR. UNGER shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MR. UNGER shall not practice nursing as a licensed pratical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MR. UNGER to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MR. UNGER shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  
Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. UNGER’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. UNGER’s license 
to practice nursing as a licensed pratical nurse will be automatically suspended if 
it appears to the Board that MR. UNGER has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MR. UNGER via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of his license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. UNGER 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. UNGER has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. UNGER is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
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Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. UNGER and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. UNGER does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Arthur, Deborah, P.N. 111006 (CASE #14-2886) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against DEBORAH S. ARTHUR in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. ARTHUR has committed acts in violation of the 
Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. ARTHUR’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse be PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Johnson, Lisa, P.N. 120066 (CASE #13-1425) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against LISA GAYE JOHNSON in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. JOHNSON has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. JOHNSON’s license to practice nursing 
as a licensed practical nurse be suspended and that the suspension is stayed 
subject to the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum 
period of two (2) years. 
 
MS. JOHNSON’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse 
shall be subject to the following probationary terms and restrictions: 
 

1. MS. JOHNSON shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. JOHNSON shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board. 
 

3. MS. JOHNSON shall submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal 
Identification and Investigation (BCII) to conduct a criminal records check 
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of MS. JOHNSON, including a check of Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to submit MS. JOHNSON’s criminal 
records check reports to the Board.  MS. JOHNSON’s completed criminal 
records check, including the FBI check, must be received by the Board 
within six (6) months of effective date of this Order. 
 

4. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this Order, MS. 
JOHNSON shall pay the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by certified 
check, cashier check, or money order, made payable to the “Treasurer, 
State of Ohio,” to the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the attention of 
the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 
400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Order, MS. 

JOHNSON shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. JOHNSON shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. JOHNSON shall execute releases 
to permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. JOHNSON's license, 
and a statement as to whether MS. JOHNSON is capable of practicing 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 

 
6. MS. JOHNSON shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. JOHNSON’s license. 

 
7. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. JOHNSON 

shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession of drugs, 
except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so 
authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. JOHNSON’s history.  
MS. JOHNSON shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the manner 
prescribed. 

 
8. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. JOHNSON 

shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any products 
containing alcohol. 
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9. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. JOHNSON 

shall submit, at her expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair 
or urine specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site 
specified by the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal 
to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day 
she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall 
constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of 
Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in 
process.  The specimens submitted by MS. JOHNSON shall be negative, 
except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. JOHNSON’s 
history. 

 
10. If recommended in the chemical dependency evaluation, MS. JOHNSON 

shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer 
group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step 
program, and MS. JOHNSON shall provide satisfactory documentation of 
such attendance to the Board every six (6) months, beginning forty-five 
(45) days after the effective date of this Order. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 
 
11. Prior to initiating screens, MS. JOHNSON shall provide a copy of this 

Order to all treating practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all 
treating practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers.  
Further, MS. JOHNSON shall be under a continuing duty to provide a 
copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional treating 
practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with the Board 
within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another practitioner. 

 
12. MS. JOHNSON shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
JOHNSON throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
13. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. JOHNSON shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 
 
14. MS. JOHNSON shall notify the Board, in writing, of the name and address 

of any current employer within thirty (30) days following the effective 
date of this Order, or any new employer prior to accepting employment 
as a nurse. 
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15. MS. JOHNSON, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 
Order, if working in a position in which a license to practice nursing is 
required, shall provide her employer(s) with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. JOHNSON is under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to accepting 
employment as a nurse.  MS. JOHNSON shall have her employer(s), if 
working in a position where a nursing license is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or beginning 
within thirty (30) days of working in a position as a nurse.  MS. 
JOHNSON shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, 
along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were 
received.   

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. JOHNSON 
 
16. MS. JOHNSON shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
17. MS. JOHNSON shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
18. MS. JOHNSON shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
19. MS. JOHNSON shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
20. MS. JOHNSON shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
21. MS. JOHNSON shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 
22. MS. JOHNSON shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 
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FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. JOHNSON’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. 
JOHNSON’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be 
automatically suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. JOHNSON has 
violated or breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the 
automatic suspension, the Board shall notify MS. JOHNSON via certified mail of 
the specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  
Upon receipt of this notice, MS. JOHNSON may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. JOHNSON has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. JOHNSON is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. JOHNSON and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
JOHNSON does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Sizemore, Jennifer, P.N. 120221 (CASE #13-8103) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JENNIFER MAE SIZEMORE in the 
September 25, 2014 Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing, and November 21, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence 
supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. SIZEMORE has committed acts 
in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as 
stated in the Notices, and that MS. SIZEMORE’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less 
than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. SIZEMORE’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and Permanent Practice 
Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. SIZEMORE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
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and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. SIZEMORE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SIZEMORE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. SIZEMORE, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. SIZEMORE’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SIZEMORE shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Butler County Court of Common Pleas in Case Number 
CR 2014 01 0112. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SIZEMORE shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Drug Addiction; five (5) hours of 
Ethics; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. SIZEMORE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
SIZEMORE’s history.  MS. SIZEMORE shall self-administer the 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. SIZEMORE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SIZEMORE shall, 
at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. SIZEMORE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with 
a copy of this Order and the Notices.  Further, MS. SIZEMORE shall 
execute releases to permit the chemical dependency professional to 
obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary for the 
evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a written 
opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 284 
 

treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. SIZEMORE's license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
SIZEMORE is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. SIZEMORE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation 

of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. SIZEMORE’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of nine (9) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. SIZEMORE shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
SIZEMORE’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. SIZEMORE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. SIZEMORE’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. SIZEMORE initiating drug screening, 

MS. SIZEMORE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. SIZEMORE. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. SIZEMORE shall be under a 

continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. SIZEMORE shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of nine (9) months immediately 

prior to requesting reinstatement, MS. SIZEMORE shall attend a 
minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting 
approved in advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. 
SIZEMORE shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance 
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to the Board prior to reinstatement. 
 

Reporting Requirements of MS. SIZEMORE 
 

14. MS. SIZEMORE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. SIZEMORE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. SIZEMORE shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. SIZEMORE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
SIZEMORE submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board 
determines that MS. SIZEMORE has complied with all conditions of 
reinstatement; and (3) the Board determines that MS. SIZEMORE is able to 
practice nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care based upon an interview with MS. SIZEMORE and review of the 
documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
SIZEMORE’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. SIZEMORE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
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2. MS. SIZEMORE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. SIZEMORE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
SIZEMORE’s history.  MS. SIZEMORE shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. SIZEMORE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. SIZEMORE shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. SIZEMORE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. SIZEMORE’s history. 

 
6. MS. SIZEMORE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. SIZEMORE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

SIZEMORE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. SIZEMORE shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. SIZEMORE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
SIZEMORE throughout the duration of this Order. 
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9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 
treatment, MS. SIZEMORE shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. SIZEMORE shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. SIZEMORE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notices to any new employer prior to accepting employment as 
a nurse.  MS. SIZEMORE shall have her employer(s), if working in a 
position where a license to practice nursing is required, submit written 
reports regarding job performance on a quarterly basis beginning within 
thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. SIZEMORE 
shall have her employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with 
the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notices, 
including the date they were received. 
 

12. MS. SIZEMORE shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. SIZEMORE 

 
13. MS. SIZEMORE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. SIZEMORE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. SIZEMORE shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 
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18. MS. SIZEMORE shall verify that the reports and documentation required 
by this Order are received in the Board office. 

 
19. MS. SIZEMORE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. SIZEMORE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. SIZEMORE’s use by another so authorized by law who has 
full knowledge of MS. SIZEMORE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled 
substances, or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. SIZEMORE shall not count 
narcotics or possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, 
cabinets, drawers, or containers. MS. SIZEMORE shall not call in or order 
prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. SIZEMORE shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. SIZEMORE to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. SIZEMORE shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. SIZEMORE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. SIZEMORE’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. SIZEMORE has violated or 
breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MS. SIZEMORE via certified mail of the 
specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon 
receipt of this notice, MS. SIZEMORE may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. SIZEMORE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. SIZEMORE is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. SIZEMORE and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
SIZEMORE does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Burga, Tracy, R.N. 316982 (CASE #14-2325) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against TRACY DAWN BURGA in the 
September 19, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board find that MS. BURGA has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. BURGA’s license to practice nursing as 
a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than 
two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. BURGA’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, 
including the Permanent Narcotic and Temporary Practice Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. BURGA shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. BURGA shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BURGA shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. BURGA, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. BURGA’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
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received by the Board. 
 

4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BURGA shall, in 
addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses; five (5) hours of 
Disciplinary Actions; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. BURGA shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
BURGA’s history.  MS. BURGA shall self-administer the prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. BURGA shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BURGA shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. BURGA shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. 
BURGA shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. BURGA's license, and a statement as to whether MS. BURGA is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. BURGA shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. BURGA’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. BURGA shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. BURGA’s initiation 
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of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. BURGA 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. BURGA’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. BURGA initiating drug screening, MS. 

BURGA shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. BURGA. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. BURGA shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. BURGA shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. BURGA shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. BURGA shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BURGA 

 
13. MS. BURGA shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. BURGA shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. BURGA shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. BURGA shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
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Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. BURGA shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. BURGA shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. BURGA shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. BURGA 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
BURGA has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. BURGA is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
BURGA and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. BURGA’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. BURGA shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. BURGA shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. BURGA shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
BURGA’s history.  MS. BURGA shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. BURGA shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. BURGA shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
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manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. BURGA shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. BURGA’s history. 

 
6. MS. BURGA shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. BURGA shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

BURGA shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. BURGA shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. BURGA shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. BURGA 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. BURGA shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. BURGA shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. BURGA is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BURGA shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. BURGA shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
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12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. BURGA shall, 

prior to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BURGA 

 
13. MS. BURGA shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. BURGA shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. BURGA shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. BURGA shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. BURGA shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. BURGA shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. BURGA shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Permanent Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. BURGA shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. BURGA’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. BURGA’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. BURGA shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. BURGA shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
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Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. BURGA shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. BURGA to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. BURGA shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. BURGA’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. BURGA’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. BURGA has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. BURGA via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. BURGA 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. BURGA has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. BURGA is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. BURGA and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. BURGA does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Brown II, Albert, DTI 04183 (CASE #14-1268) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against ALBERT DARNELL BROWN II in 
the May 16, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
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and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MR. BROWN has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and the Ohio Board of Nursing ORDERS that MR. BROWN’s 
certificate to practice as a dialysis technician intern be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and 
that following reinstatement, MR. BROWN’s certificate to practice as a dialysis 
technician intern shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, 
including the Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. BROWN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of dialysis technicians in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. BROWN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. BROWN shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. BROWN, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. BROWN’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 
 

4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. BROWN shall, in 
addition to the requirements of licensure renewal, successfully complete 
and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion of the 
following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective date of 
this Order:  four (4) hours of Critical Thinking; and five (5) hours of 
Cannabis Use, Abuse and Dependence. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MR. BROWN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
BROWN’s history.  MR. BROWN shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MR. BROWN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. BROWN shall, at 
his expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
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approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MR. BROWN shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MR. BROWN shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MR. BROWN's certificate, 
and a statement as to whether MR. BROWN is capable of practicing as a 
dialysis technician intern according to acceptable and prevailing standards 
of safe care. 

 
8. MR. BROWN shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MR. BROWN’s certificate. 

 
9. Prior to requesting reinstatement, MR. BROWN shall begin submitting, 

at his expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine 
specimens for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by 
the Board at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. 
BROWN’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a certificate for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. BROWN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. BROWN’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. BROWN initiating drug screening, MR. 

BROWN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. BROWN. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MR. BROWN shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. BROWN shall notify the Board of 
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any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. BROWN 

 
12. MR. BROWN shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MR. BROWN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice as a dialysis technician intern 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe practice.  

 
14. MR. BROWN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MR. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MR. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MR. BROWN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MR. BROWN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. BROWN 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
BROWN has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. BROWN is able to practice as a dialysis technician intern 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe care based upon an 
interview with MR. BROWN and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. 
BROWN’s certificate shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MR. BROWN shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of dialysis technicians in Ohio. 
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2. MR. BROWN shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MR. BROWN shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
BROWN’s history.  MR. BROWN shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MR. BROWN shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MR. BROWN shall submit, at his expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a certificate for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. BROWN shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. BROWN’s history. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
6. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

BROWN shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. BROWN shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
7. MR. BROWN shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. 
BROWN throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
8. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. BROWN shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 
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Employment Conditions 
 

9. Prior to accepting employment as a dialysis technician intern, each time 
with every employer, MR. BROWN shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
10. MR. BROWN is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 

and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to 
any new employer prior to accepting employment as a dialysis 
technician intern.  MR. BROWN shall have his employer(s), if working in 
a position where a certificate to practice as a dialysis technician intern is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
dialysis technician intern.  MR. BROWN shall have his employer(s) 
send documentation to the Board, along with the first employer report, of 
receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension 
and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they were received. 
 

11. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MR. BROWN shall, 
prior to working in a position where a certificate to practice as a 
dialysis technician intern is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a dialysis technician intern refresher 
course or an extensive orientation approved in advance by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. BROWN 

 
12. MR. BROWN shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
13. MR. BROWN shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice as a dialysis technician intern 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe practice. 

 
14. MR. BROWN shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
15. MR. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
16. MR. BROWN shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
17. MR. BROWN shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
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this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

18. MR. BROWN shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MR. BROWN shall not practice as a dialysis technician (1) for agencies providing 
home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs providing 
hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or pools; (4) as 
an independent provider where the dialysis technician provides dialysis care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MR. BROWN to provide dialysis services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MR. BROWN shall not function as a supervisor or as a manager while working in 
a position for which a dialysis technician certificate is required. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. BROWN’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. BROWN’s 
certificate to practice as a dialysis technician intern will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MR. BROWN has violated or breached 
any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the 
Board shall notify MR. BROWN via certified mail of the specific nature of the 
charges and automatic suspension of his certificate.  Upon receipt of this notice, 
MR. BROWN may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. BROWN has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. BROWN is able to practice as a 
dialysis technician intern according to acceptable and prevailing standards of 
safe care without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. BROWN 
and review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. 
BROWN does not work in a position for which a certificate to practice as a 
dialysis technician intern is required shall not count toward fulfilling the 
probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 302 
 
Smith, Leigh, P.N. 109451 (CASE #14-1772) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against LEIGH ANN SMITH in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing 
and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. SMITH has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. SMITH’s license to practice nursing as a licensed 
practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than two 
(2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following 
reinstatement, MS. SMITH’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical 
nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years, including the 
Temporary Narcotic and Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. SMITH shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. SMITH shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SMITH shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. SMITH, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. SMITH’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
Monitoring  

 
4. MS. SMITH shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. SMITH’s 
history.  MS. SMITH shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
5. MS. SMITH shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

6. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. SMITH shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. SMITH shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
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copy of this Order and the Notice of Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. SMITH shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. SMITH's license, and 
a statement as to whether MS. SMITH is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
7. MS. SMITH shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. SMITH’s license. 

 
8. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. SMITH shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. SMITH’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. SMITH shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
SMITH’s history. 

 
9. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. SMITH initiating drug screening, MS. 

SMITH shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. SMITH. 

 
10. After initiating drug screening, MS. SMITH shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. SMITH shall notify the Board of any 
and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) 
hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 
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11. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 
to requesting reinstatement, MS. SMITH shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. SMITH shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. SMITH 

 
12. MS. SMITH shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
13. MS. SMITH shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
14. MS. SMITH shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
15. MS. SMITH shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
16. MS. SMITH shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
17. MS. SMITH shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

18. MS. SMITH shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. SMITH 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
SMITH has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. SMITH is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
SMITH and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. SMITH’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
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1. MS. SMITH shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. SMITH shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. SMITH shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. SMITH’s 
history.  MS. SMITH shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. SMITH shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. SMITH shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. SMITH shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. SMITH’s history. 

 
6. MS. SMITH shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. SMITH shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

SMITH shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. SMITH shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. SMITH shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
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substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. SMITH 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. SMITH shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 
or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. SMITH shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. SMITH is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. SMITH 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. SMITH shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Automatic Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. Upon the request of the Board or its designee, MS. SMITH shall, prior 
to working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, complete and submit satisfactory documentation of completion 
of a nurse refresher course or an extensive orientation approved in 
advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. SMITH 

 
13. MS. SMITH shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. SMITH shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. SMITH shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. SMITH shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 
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17. MS. SMITH shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 
Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. SMITH shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. SMITH shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. SMITH shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. SMITH’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. SMITH’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. SMITH shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. SMITH shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. SMITH shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. SMITH to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. SMITH shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities.  Such 
positions include, but are not limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, 
Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. SMITH’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. SMITH’s license to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. SMITH has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. SMITH via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. SMITH 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. SMITH has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. SMITH is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. SMITH and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. SMITH does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
  
Doty, Julie, R.N. 336482 (CASE #14-2351) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against JULIE ANN DOTY in the 
November 21, 2014 Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. DOTY has 
committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code 
Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing, and that MS. DOTY’s license to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than two (2) 
years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following 
reinstatement, MS. DOTY’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse 
shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and 
restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, including the 
Temporary Narcotic and Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. DOTY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. DOTY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DOTY shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. DOTY, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. DOTY’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 
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4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DOTY shall 
submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and conditions 
imposed by the Cuyahoga County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number CR-14-581709-A. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DOTY shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of 
Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses; and two (2) 
hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. DOTY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. DOTY’s 
history.  MS. DOTY shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
7. MS. DOTY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. DOTY shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. DOTY shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. DOTY shall execute releases to 
permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any information 
deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical 
dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that 
includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any 
additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. DOTY's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. DOTY is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MS. DOTY shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. DOTY’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 
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to requesting reinstatement, MS. DOTY shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. DOTY’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. DOTY shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
DOTY’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. DOTY initiating drug screening, MS. 

DOTY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. DOTY. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. DOTY shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. DOTY shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. DOTY shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. DOTY shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DOTY 

 
14. MS. DOTY shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. DOTY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. DOTY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
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misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. DOTY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. DOTY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. DOTY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MS. DOTY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. DOTY 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
DOTY has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. DOTY is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
DOTY and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. DOTY’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. DOTY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. DOTY shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. DOTY shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. DOTY’s 
history.  MS. DOTY shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. DOTY shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. DOTY shall submit, at her expense 
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and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. DOTY shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. DOTY’s history. 

 
6. MS. DOTY shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. DOTY shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

DOTY shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. DOTY shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. DOTY shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. DOTY 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. DOTY shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) or 
prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. DOTY shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. DOTY is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. DOTY 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
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accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. DOTY shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Immediate Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. DOTY shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DOTY 

 
13. MS. DOTY shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. DOTY shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. DOTY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. DOTY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. DOTY shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. DOTY shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. DOTY shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. DOTY shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. DOTY’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. DOTY’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, or 
mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. DOTY shall not count narcotics or possess 
or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
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containers. MS. DOTY shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. DOTY shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. DOTY to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. DOTY shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. DOTY’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. DOTY’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. DOTY has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. DOTY via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. DOTY may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. DOTY has complied with all aspects of this Order; 
and (2) the Board determines that MS. DOTY is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. DOTY and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. DOTY does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
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Stawicki, Amanda, P.N. 150273 (CASE #14-3906) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against AMANDA JEAN STAWICKI in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. STAWICKI has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. STAWICKI’s license to practice nursing 
as a licensed practical nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not 
less than two (2) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and 
that following reinstatement, MS. STAWICKI’s license to practice nursing as a 
licensed practical nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the 
probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of two 
(2) years, including the Temporary Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. STAWICKI shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. STAWICKI shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. STAWICKI shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. STAWICKI, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. STAWICKI’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. STAWICKI shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  three (3) hours of Marijuana Abuse; one (1) hour of 
Cocaine Abuse; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. STAWICKI shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
STAWICKI’s history.  MS. STAWICKI shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. STAWICKI shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
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products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. STAWICKI shall, 
at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. STAWICKI shall provide the chemical dependency professional with 
a copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MS. STAWICKI shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary 
for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional shall submit a 
written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for 
treatment and monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed 
on MS. STAWICKI's license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
STAWICKI is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. STAWICKI shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. STAWICKI’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. STAWICKI shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. 
STAWICKI’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. STAWICKI shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. STAWICKI’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. STAWICKI initiating drug screening, 

MS. STAWICKI shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. STAWICKI. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. STAWICKI shall be under a continuing 
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duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. STAWICKI shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. STAWICKI shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. STAWICKI 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. STAWICKI 

 
13. MS. STAWICKI shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
14. MS. STAWICKI shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. STAWICKI shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. STAWICKI shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. STAWICKI shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. STAWICKI shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. STAWICKI shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. 
STAWICKI submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MS. STAWICKI has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 318 
 
the Board determines that MS. STAWICKI is able to practice nursing according 
to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MS. STAWICKI and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. 
STAWICKI’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. STAWICKI shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. STAWICKI shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MS. STAWICKI shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
STAWICKI’s history.  MS. STAWICKI shall self-administer prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. STAWICKI shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. STAWICKI shall submit, at her 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, 
or in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation 
of a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), 
ORC.  This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. STAWICKI shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. STAWICKI’s history. 

 
6. MS. STAWICKI shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. STAWICKI shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

STAWICKI shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
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and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. STAWICKI shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. STAWICKI shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. 
STAWICKI throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. STAWICKI shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. STAWICKI shall notify the Board, in writing. 
 

11. MS. STAWICKI is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. STAWICKI shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. STAWICKI shall have her employer(s) send documentation 
to the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of 
this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. STAWICKI shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. STAWICKI 

 
13. MS. STAWICKI shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. STAWICKI shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 
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15. MS. STAWICKI shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. STAWICKI shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. STAWICKI shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. STAWICKI shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. STAWICKI shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. STAWICKI shall not practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse (1) for 
agencies providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care 
programs providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing 
agencies or pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides 
nursing care and is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State 
agencies or agents of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals 
who directly engage MS. STAWICKI to provide nursing services for fees, 
compensation, or other consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. STAWICKI shall not function in a position or employment where the job 
duties or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing 
responsibilities.  Such positions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Vice 
President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. STAWICKI’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. STAWICKI’s 
license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse will be automatically 
suspended if it appears to the Board that MS. STAWICKI has violated or 
breached any terms or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic 
suspension, the Board shall notify MS. STAWICKI via certified mail of the 
specific nature of the charges and automatic suspension of her license.  Upon 
receipt of this notice, MS. STAWICKI may request a hearing regarding the 
charges. 
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DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. STAWICKI has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. STAWICKI is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. STAWICKI and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. 
STAWICKI does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.    
 
Rajczyk, John, R.N. 378242 (CASE #14-6083) 
Action: It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JOHN ALBERT RAJCZYK in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MR. RAJCZYK has committed acts in violation of 
the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice 
of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MR. RAJCZYK’s license to practice nursing 
as a registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the 
conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, 
MR. RAJCZYK’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be 
subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set 
forth below for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. RAJCZYK shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. RAJCZYK shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. RAJCZYK shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. RAJCZYK, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. RAJCZYK’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
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been received by the Board. 
 

4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. RAJCZYK shall 
submit documentation of his successful completion of all terms of the 
Consent for Entry of Voluntary Surrender Order issued by the Arizona 
State Board of Nursing, dated January 15, 2015, and that his Arizona 
license is fully reinstated and unencumbered. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. RAJCZYK shall, 

in addition to the requirements for renewal of his license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Substance Abuse; ten (10) hours of 
Drugs and the Registered Nurse; two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and 
Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MR. RAJCZYK shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
RAJCZYK’s history.  MR. RAJCZYK shall self-administer the prescribed 
drugs only in the manner prescribed. 

 
7. MR. RAJCZYK shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

8. Within ninety (90) days prior to requesting reinstatement by the 
Board, MR. RAJCZYK shall, at his expense, obtain a chemical 
dependency evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency 
professional and shall provide the Board with complete documentation of 
this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MR. RAJCZYK shall provide the 
chemical dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MR. RAJCZYK shall execute 
releases to permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
chemical dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MR. 
RAJCZYK's license, and a statement as to whether MR. RAJCZYK is 
capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable and prevailing 
standards of safe nursing care. 

 
9. MR. RAJCZYK shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
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restrictions on MR. RAJCZYK’s license. 
 

10. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 
to requesting reinstatement, MR. RAJCZYK shall submit, at his 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MR. 
RAJCZYK’s initiation of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, 
or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. RAJCZYK shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. RAJCZYK’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MR. RAJCZYK initiating drug screening, 

MR. RAJCZYK shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating 
practitioners and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating 
practitioners, including addresses and telephone numbers and cause all 
treating practitioners to complete a medication prescription report that is to 
be mailed by the practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report 
is to be completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MR. RAJCZYK. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MR. RAJCZYK shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MR. RAJCZYK shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of two (2) years immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MR. RAJCZYK shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MR. RAJCZYK 
shall provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. RAJCZYK 

 
14. MR. RAJCZYK shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
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and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  
 

16. MR. RAJCZYK shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MR. RAJCZYK shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

20. MR. RAJCZYK shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. 
RAJCZYK submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines 
that MR. RAJCZYK has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the 
Board determines that MR. RAJCZYK is able to practice nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an 
interview with MR. RAJCZYK and review of the documentation specified in this 
Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MR. 
RAJCZYK’s license shall be subject to the following probationary terms 
and restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MR. RAJCZYK shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MR. RAJCZYK shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 

or its designated representative as requested by the Board or its 
designee. 

 
Monitoring  

 
3. MR. RAJCZYK shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to him by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MR. 
RAJCZYK’s history.  MR. RAJCZYK shall self-administer prescribed 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 325 
 

drugs only in the manner prescribed. 
 

4. MR. RAJCZYK shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MR. RAJCZYK shall submit, at his 
expense and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens 
for drug and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board 
at such times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such 
specimen, or failure to submit such specimen on the day he is selected, or 
in such a manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of 
a restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MR. RAJCZYK shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to him by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MR. RAJCZYK’s history. 

 
6. MR. RAJCZYK shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MR. RAJCZYK shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MR. 

RAJCZYK shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners 
and shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MR. RAJCZYK shall be 
under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MR. RAJCZYK shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MR. 
RAJCZYK throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MR. RAJCZYK shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MR. RAJCZYK shall notify the Board, in writing. 
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11. MR. RAJCZYK is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 
and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MR. RAJCZYK shall have his 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MR. RAJCZYK shall have his employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. MR. RAJCZYK shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. RAJCZYK 

 
13. MR. RAJCZYK shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MR. RAJCZYK shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance 
Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MR. RAJCZYK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention 
of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, 
Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MR. RAJCZYK shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MR. RAJCZYK shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 
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FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MR. RAJCZYK’s suspension shall be lifted and MR. RAJCZYK’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended 
if it appears to the Board that MR. RAJCZYK has violated or breached any terms 
or conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MR. RAJCZYK via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of his license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MR. RAJCZYK 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MR. RAJCZYK has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MR. RAJCZYK is able to practice 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care 
without Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MR. RAJCZYK and 
review of the reports as required herein.  Any period during which MR. 
RAJCZYK does not work in a position for which a license to practice nursing is 
required shall not count toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this 
Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.   
 
Owens, Larry, R.N. 314543 (CASE #14-6145) 
Action: It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against LARRY WAYNE OWENS in the 
January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MR. OWENS has committed acts in violation of the 
Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and that MR. OWENS’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time with the conditions 
for reinstatement set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MR. OWENS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. OWENS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. OWENS shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
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(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MR. OWENS, including a 
check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MR. OWENS’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MR. OWENS shall 

submit documentation of his successful completion of all terms of his 
Arkansas Board Order of Reinstatement, effective April 6, 2015, and that 
his Arkansas license is fully reinstated and unencumbered. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. OWENS 

 
5. MR. OWENS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. OWENS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MR. OWENS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. OWENS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MR. OWENS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. OWENS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. OWENS shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MR. OWENS 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MR. 
OWENS has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MR. OWENS is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MR. 
OWENS and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
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Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Hofmeister, Judith, R.N. 307608 (CASE #13-6468) 
Action:  It was moved J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against JUDITH ESTHER HOFMEISTER in 
the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting 
the charges, the Board find that MS. HOFMEISTER has committed acts in 
violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated 
in the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. HOFMEISTER’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse be Reprimanded and Fined, and that 
MS. HOFMEISTER is required to complete the following: 
 

1. Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Order, MS. 
HOFMEISTER shall, at her expense, obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation by a Board approved chemical dependency professional and 
shall provide the Board with complete documentation of this evaluation.  
Prior to the evaluation, MS. HOFMEISTER shall provide the chemical 
dependency professional with a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, MS. HOFMEISTER shall execute 
releases to permit the chemical dependency professional to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
chemical dependency professional shall submit a written opinion to the 
Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, any additional restrictions that should be placed on MS. 
HOFMEISTER’s license, and a statement as to whether MS. 
HOFMEISTER is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
2. MS. HOFMEISTER shall provide the Board with satisfactory 

documentation of compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan 
developed by the chemical dependency professional described above until 
released.  Further, the Board may utilize the professional's 
recommendations and conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for 
additional terms and restrictions on MS. HOFMEISTER’s license. 

 
3. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this order, MS. 

HOFMEISTER shall pay the fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00), by 
certified check, cashier check, or money order, made payable to the 
“Treasurer, State of Ohio,” to the Board.  Payment shall be mailed to the 
attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High 
Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
4. Within six (6) months of the effective date of this order, MS. 
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HOFMEISTER shall, in addition to the requirements for renewal of her 
license, successfully complete and submit satisfactory documentation of 
successful completion of the following continuing education taken 
subsequent to the effective date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Marijuana 
Use; five (5) hours of Critical Thinking; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing 
Law and Rules. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
  
Gard, Heidi, R.N. 334272 (CASE #14-5573) 
Action: It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against HEIDI L. GARD in the January 23, 
2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the 
Board find that MS. GARD has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice 
Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing, and that MS. GARD’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse 
be PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Bull, Mona R.N. 138867 (CASE #14-6278) 
Action:  It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that upon 
consideration of the charges stated against MONA KAY BULL in the January 23, 
2015 Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing and evidence 
supporting the charges, the Board find that MS. BULL has committed acts in 
violation of the Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated 
in the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, and that 
MS. BULL’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse be suspended for 
an indefinite period of time but not less than two (2) years with the conditions for 
reinstatement set forth below, and that following reinstatement, MS. BULL’s 
license to practice nursing as a registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed 
suspension under the probationary terms and restrictions set forth below for a 
minimum period of two (2) years, including the Temporary Narcotic and 
Permanent Practice Restrictions set forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. BULL shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
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2. MS. BULL shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 

 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BULL shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. BULL, including a check 
of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause BCII to 
submit MS. BULL’s criminal records check reports to the Board.  
A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board until the 
completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has been 
received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BULL shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Drug Addiction; five (5) hours of 
Ethics; five (5) hours of Critical Thinking; and two (2) hours of Ohio 
Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
5. MS. BULL shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 

of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. BULL’s 
history.  MS. BULL shall self-administer the prescribed drugs only in the 
manner prescribed. 

 
6. MS. BULL shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol.  
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. BULL shall, at her 
expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board approved 
chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board with 
complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, MS. 
BULL shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a copy of 
this Order and the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing.  Further, MS. BULL shall execute releases to permit the 
chemical dependency professional to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency 
professional shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. BULL's license, and a statement 
as to whether MS. BULL is capable of practicing nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 

 
8. MS. BULL shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
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chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. BULL’s license. 

 
9. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. BULL shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. BULL’s initiation of 
drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit such 
specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the Board 
may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a license 
for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall require a 
daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. BULL shall be 
negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to 
her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
BULL’s history. 

 
10. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. BULL initiating drug screening, MS. 

BULL shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. BULL. 

 
11. After initiating drug screening, MS. BULL shall be under a continuing duty 

to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to additional 
treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating practitioners with 
the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated by another 
practitioner.  Further, MS. BULL shall notify the Board of any and all 
medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four (24) hours of 
release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
12. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. BULL shall attend a minimum of one 
(1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. BULL shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BULL 

 
13. MS. BULL shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  
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14. MS. BULL shall submit any and all information that the Board may request 
regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
15. MS. BULL shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
16. MS. BULL shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
17. MS. BULL shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
18. MS. BULL shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

19. MS. BULL shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. BULL 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
BULL has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. BULL is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
BULL and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. BULL’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

1. MS. BULL shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. BULL shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 

designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 

Monitoring  
 

3. MS. BULL shall abstain completely from the personal use or possession 
of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by 
another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. BULL’s 
history.  MS. BULL shall self-administer prescribed drugs only in the 
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manner prescribed. 
 

4. MS. BULL shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 
products containing alcohol. 

 
5. During the probationary period, MS. BULL shall submit, at her expense 

and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. BULL shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. BULL’s history. 

 
6. MS. BULL shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. BULL shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

BULL shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. BULL shall be under a 
continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, 
to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. BULL shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a medication 

prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner directly to the 
Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any and all 
substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. BULL 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. BULL shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) or 
prescription(s) received. 

 
Employment Conditions 

 
10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 

MS. BULL shall notify the Board, in writing. 
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11. MS. BULL is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order and 
the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing to any 
new employer prior to accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BULL 
shall have her employer(s), if working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, submit written reports regarding job 
performance on a quarterly basis beginning within thirty (30) days of 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. BULL shall have her 
employer(s) send documentation to the Board, along with the first 
employer report, of receipt of a copy of this Order and the Notice of 
Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing, including the date 
they were received. 
 

12. MS. BULL shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. BULL 

 
13. MS. BULL shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. BULL shall submit any and all information that the Board may request 

regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. BULL shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. BULL shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. BULL shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. BULL shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office. 
 

19. MS. BULL shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in writing, 
of any change in employment status or of any change in residential or 
home address or telephone number. 
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Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. BULL shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. BULL’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. BULL’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, or 
mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. BULL shall not count narcotics or possess 
or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. BULL shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. BULL shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. BULL to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. BULL shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties or 
requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. BULL’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. BULL’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. BULL has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. BULL via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. BULL may 
request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. BULL has complied with all aspects of this Order; 
and (2) the Board determines that MS. BULL is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. BULL and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. BULL does not work in 
a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 337 
 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Rafferty, Rachael, P.N. 107703 (CASE #13-7207) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against RACHAEL CATHERINE 
RAFFERTY in the November 14, 2014 Order of Summary Suspension and 
Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the charges, the 
Board find that MS. RAFFERTY has committed acts in violation of the Nurse 
Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Order of 
Summary Suspension and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. 
RAFFERTY’s license to practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse be 
PERMANENTLY REVOKED. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
Pirkle, Trisha, R.N. 272728 (CASE #14-1975) 
Action:  It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that 
upon consideration of the charges stated against TRISHA SUE PIRKLE in the 
March 13, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing and evidence supporting the 
charges, the Board find that MS. PIRKLE has committed acts in violation of the 
Nurse Practice Act, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 4723, as stated in the Notice of 
Opportunity for Hearing, and that MS. PIRKLE’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse be suspended for an indefinite period of time but not less than 
three (3) years with the conditions for reinstatement set forth below, and that 
following reinstatement, MS. PIRKLE’s license to practice nursing as a 
registered nurse shall be subject to a stayed suspension under the probationary 
terms and restrictions set forth below for a minimum period of three (3) years, 
including the Temporary Narcotic and Permanent Practice Restrictions set 
forth below. 
 
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT  
 

1. MS. PIRKLE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. PIRKLE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
 
3. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. PIRKLE shall 

submit a request to the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check of MS. PIRKLE, including a 
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check of Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) records, and shall cause 
BCII to submit MS. PIRKLE’s criminal records check reports to the 
Board.  A request for reinstatement will not be considered by the Board 
until the completed criminal records check, including the FBI check, has 
been received by the Board. 

 
4. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. PIRKLE shall 

submit documentation of her full compliance with the terms and 
conditions imposed by the Lucas County Court of Common Pleas in Case 
Number CR 0201401474. 

 
5. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. PIRKLE shall, in 

addition to the requirements for renewal of her license, successfully 
complete and submit satisfactory documentation of successful completion 
of the following continuing education taken subsequent to the effective 
date of this Order:  ten (10) hours of Medication Administration; ten (10) 
hours of Substance Abuse; five (5) hours of Ethics; five (5) hours of 
Patient's Rights; and two (2) hours of Ohio Nursing Law and Rules. 

 
Monitoring  

 
6. MS. PIRKLE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 

possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. PIRKLE’s history.  MS. PIRKLE shall self-administer the 
prescribed drugs only in the manner prescribed. 
 

7. Prior to requesting reinstatement by the Board, MS. PIRKLE shall, at 
her expense, obtain a chemical dependency evaluation by a Board 
approved chemical dependency professional and shall provide the Board 
with complete documentation of this evaluation.  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. PIRKLE shall provide the chemical dependency professional with a 
copy of this Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.  Further, 
MS. PIRKLE shall execute releases to permit the chemical dependency 
professional to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the evaluation.  The chemical dependency professional 
shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, 
recommendations for treatment and monitoring, any additional 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. PIRKLE's license, and a 
statement as to whether MS. PIRKLE is capable of practicing nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care.  
The chemical dependency professional shall make a specific 
recommendation as to whether MS. PIRKLE should be required to 
abstain from the use of alcohol or any products containing alcohol. 

 
8. MS. PIRKLE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the chemical dependency 
evaluation. 
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9. MS. PIRKLE shall provide the Board with satisfactory documentation of 

compliance with all aspects of the treatment plan developed by the 
chemical dependency professional described above until released.  
Further, the Board may utilize the professional's recommendations and 
conclusions from the evaluation as a basis for additional terms and 
restrictions on MS. PIRKLE’s license. 

 
10. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. PIRKLE shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Upon and after MS. PIRKLE’s initiation 
of drug screening, refusal to submit such specimen, or failure to submit 
such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a manner as the 
Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a restriction placed on a 
license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  This screening shall 
require a daily call-in process.  The specimens submitted by MS. PIRKLE 
shall be negative, except for substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge 
of MS. PIRKLE’s history. 

 
11. Within thirty (30) days prior to MS. PIRKLE initiating drug screening, MS. 

PIRKLE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers and cause all treating practitioners to 
complete a medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the 
practitioner directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be 
completed for any and all substances prescribed, administered, or 
dispensed to MS. PIRKLE. 

 
12. After initiating drug screening, MS. PIRKLE shall be under a continuing 

duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating treatment, to 
additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of treating 
practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being treated 
by another practitioner.  Further, MS. PIRKLE shall notify the Board of 
any and all medication(s) or prescription(s) received within twenty-four 
(24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical treatment. 

 
13. For a minimum, continuous period of one (1) year immediately prior 

to requesting reinstatement, MS. PIRKLE shall attend a minimum of 
one (1) meeting per week of a support or peer group meeting approved in 
advance by the Board, or a Twelve Step program, and MS. PIRKLE shall 
provide satisfactory documentation of such attendance to the Board prior 
to reinstatement. 
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Reporting Requirements of MS. PIRKLE 
 

14. MS. PIRKLE shall sign release of information forms allowing health 
professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
15. MS. PIRKLE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
16. MS. PIRKLE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
17. MS. PIRKLE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board.  

 
18. MS. PIRKLE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
19. MS. PIRKLE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 
20. MS. PIRKLE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 

writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the indefinite suspension imposed if: (1) MS. PIRKLE 
submits a written request for reinstatement; (2) the Board determines that MS. 
PIRKLE has complied with all conditions of reinstatement; and (3) the Board 
determines that MS. PIRKLE is able to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care based upon an interview with MS. 
PIRKLE and review of the documentation specified in this Order. 
 
Following reinstatement, the suspension shall be stayed and MS. PIRKLE’s 
license shall be subject to the following probationary terms and 
restrictions for a minimum period of three (3) years. 
 

1. MS. PIRKLE shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 

 
2. MS. PIRKLE shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 

its designated representative as requested by the Board or its designee. 
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Monitoring  
 

3. MS. PIRKLE shall abstain completely from the personal use or 
possession of drugs, except those prescribed, administered, or dispensed 
to her by another so authorized by law who has full knowledge of MS. 
PIRKLE’s history.  MS. PIRKLE shall self-administer prescribed drugs 
only in the manner prescribed. 

 
4. MS. PIRKLE shall abstain completely from the use of alcohol or any 

products containing alcohol if recommended by the chemical dependency 
evaluation. 
 

5. During the probationary period, MS. PIRKLE shall submit, at her expense 
and on the day selected, blood, breath, hair or urine specimens for drug 
and/or alcohol analysis at a collection site specified by the Board at such 
times as the Board may request.  Refusal to submit such specimen, or 
failure to submit such specimen on the day she is selected, or in such a 
manner as the Board may request, shall constitute a violation of a 
restriction placed on a license for purposes of Section 4723.28(B), ORC.  
This screening shall require a daily call-in process.  The specimens 
submitted by MS. PIRKLE shall be negative, except for substances 
prescribed, administered, or dispensed to her by another so authorized by 
law who has full knowledge of MS. PIRKLE’s history. 

 
6. MS. PIRKLE shall attend a minimum of one (1) meeting per week of a 

support or peer group meeting approved in advance by the Board, or a 
Twelve Step program, and MS. PIRKLE shall provide satisfactory 
documentation of such attendance to the Board every six (6) months. 

 
Treating Practitioners and Reporting 

 
7. Within sixty (60) days of the execution of the probationary period, MS. 

PIRKLE shall provide a copy of this Order to all treating practitioners and 
shall provide to the Board a list of all treating practitioners, including 
addresses and telephone numbers.  Further, MS. PIRKLE shall be under 
a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order, prior to initiating 
treatment, to additional treating practitioners, and to update the list of 
treating practitioners with the Board within forty-eight (48) hours of being 
treated by another practitioner. 

 
8. MS. PIRKLE shall cause all treating practitioners to complete a 

medication prescription report that is to be mailed by the practitioner 
directly to the Board.  The medication report is to be completed for any 
and all substances prescribed, administered, or dispensed to MS. PIRKLE 
throughout the duration of this Order. 

 
9. Within twenty-four (24) hours of release from hospitalization or medical 

treatment, MS. PIRKLE shall notify the Board of any and all medication(s) 



Ohio Board of Nursing 
Minutes of July 30-31, 2015 Meeting 
Page 342 
 

or prescription(s) received. 
 

Employment Conditions 
 

10. Prior to accepting employment as a nurse, each time with every employer, 
MS. PIRKLE shall notify the Board, in writing. 

 
11. MS. PIRKLE is under a continuing duty to provide a copy of this Order 

and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing to any new employer prior to 
accepting employment as a nurse.  MS. PIRKLE shall have her 
employer(s), if working in a position where a license to practice nursing is 
required, submit written reports regarding job performance on a quarterly 
basis beginning within thirty (30) days of accepting employment as a 
nurse.  MS. PIRKLE shall have her employer(s) send documentation to 
the Board, along with the first employer report, of receipt of a copy of this 
Order and the Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, including the date they 
were received. 
 

12. MS. PIRKLE shall, prior to working in a position where a license to 
practice nursing is required, complete and submit satisfactory 
documentation of completion of a nurse refresher course or an extensive 
orientation approved in advance by the Board or its designee. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. PIRKLE 

 
13. MS. PIRKLE shall sign releases of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit the requested 
documentation directly to the Board. 

 
14. MS. PIRKLE shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing practice. 

 
15. MS. PIRKLE shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers. 

 
16. MS. PIRKLE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Compliance Unit of the Board. 

 
17. MS. PIRKLE shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order or any other documents required by the Board to the attention of the 
Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, 
Columbus, OH 43215-7410. 

 
18. MS. PIRKLE shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office. 
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19. MS. PIRKLE shall inform the Board within five (5) business days, in 
writing, of any change in employment status or of any change in 
residential or home address or telephone number. 

 
Temporary Narcotic Restriction 
 
MS. PIRKLE shall not administer, have access to, or possess (except as 
prescribed for MS. PIRKLE’s use by another so authorized by law who has full 
knowledge of MS. PIRKLE’s history) any narcotics, other controlled substances, 
or mood altering drugs. In addition, MS. PIRKLE shall not count narcotics or 
possess or carry any work keys for locked medication carts, cabinets, drawers, or 
containers. MS. PIRKLE shall not call in or order prescriptions or prescription 
refills. 
 
Permanent Practice Restrictions 
 
MS. PIRKLE shall not practice nursing as a registered nurse (1) for agencies 
providing home care in the patient’s residence; (2) for hospice care programs 
providing hospice care in the patient’s residence; (3) for staffing agencies or 
pools; (4) as an independent provider where the nurse provides nursing care and 
is reimbursed for services by the State of Ohio through State agencies or agents 
of the State; or (5) for an individual or group of individuals who directly engage 
MS. PIRKLE to provide nursing services for fees, compensation, or other 
consideration or as a volunteer.   
 
MS. PIRKLE shall not function in a position or employment where the job duties 
or requirements involve management of nursing and nursing responsibilities, or 
supervising and evaluating nursing practice.  Such positions include, but are not 
limited to, the following: Director of Nursing, Assistant Director of Nursing, Nurse 
Manager, Vice President of Nursing. 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY 
 
The stay of MS. PIRKLE’s suspension shall be lifted and MS. PIRKLE’s license 
to practice nursing as a registered nurse will be automatically suspended if it 
appears to the Board that MS. PIRKLE has violated or breached any terms or 
conditions of this Order.  Following the automatic suspension, the Board shall 
notify MS. PIRKLE via certified mail of the specific nature of the charges and 
automatic suspension of her license.  Upon receipt of this notice, MS. PIRKLE 
may request a hearing regarding the charges. 
 
DURATION 
 
The Board may only alter the probationary period imposed by this Order if: (1) 
the Board determines that MS. PIRKLE has complied with all aspects of this 
Order; and (2) the Board determines that MS. PIRKLE is able to practice nursing 
according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care without 
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Board monitoring, based upon an interview with MS. PIRKLE and review of the 
reports as required herein.  Any period during which MS. PIRKLE does not work 
in a position for which a license to practice nursing is required shall not count 
toward fulfilling the probationary period imposed by this Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Lisa Klenke and 
Judith Church abstaining. 
 
This ORDER shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015.     
 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 
Miller, Wendy Sue, P.N. 089764 (CASE #14-3388) 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board withdraw the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing that 
was issued to Miller, Wendy Sue, P.N. 089764 (CASE #14-3388), based on 
additional information received in accordance with Section 2953.32 and/or 
2953.52 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Winsett, Nicolle, P.N. 142717 (CASE #14-2739) 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Lauralee Krabill, that 
the Board withdraw the November 21, 2014 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing 
that was issued to Winsett, Nicolle, P.N. 142717 (CASE #14-2739), as Ms. 
Winsett is deceased. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Jenkins, Alvinetta, R.N. 336115 (CASE #14-1977) 
Action:  It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board withdraw the May 15, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing that was 
issued to Jenkins, Alvinetta, R.N. 336115 (CASE #14-1977), as the Notice 
contained a typographical error. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Dryer, Jennifer, R.N. 362981 (CASE #14-2137) 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by Janet Arwood, that the 
Board ratify the June 19, 2015 Notice of Lift of Immediate Suspension that was 
issued to Dryer, Jennifer, R.N. 362981 (CASE #14-2137), for the reasons stated 
in the Notice of Lift of Immediate Suspension. 
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Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Kubincanek, Troy, R.N. 347868 (CASE #14-0103, 14-3466) 
Action:  It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board ratify the July 16, 2015 Notice of Life of Immediate Suspension that was 
issued to Kubincanek, Troy, R.N. (CASE #14-0103, 14-3466), for the reasons 
stated in the Notice of Lift of Immediate Suspension. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Vitucci, Amber, R.N. 385490, P.N. 122546 (CASE #14-0358) 
Action: It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board withdraw the March 13, 2015 Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing that was issued to Vitucci, Amber, R.N. 385490, P.N. 
122546 (CASE #14-0358), as Ms. Vittucci is deceased.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Rainey, Ruth, R.N. 387696 (CASE #14-5792) 
Action:  It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board withdraw the January 23, 2015 Notice of Opportunity for Hearing that was 
issued to Rainey, Ruth, R.N. (CASE #14-5792), as the Board has determined it 
will enter into a consent agreement to resolve this case which does not 
incorporate the January 2015 Notice. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Murrell, Melissa, P.N. 130061 (CASE #13-7526) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Lisa Klenke, that the 
Board withdraw the November 21, 2014 Notice of Immediate Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing that was issued to Murrell, Melissa, P.N. 130061 (CASE 
#13-7526), as the case referenced in Notice was dismissed. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
 
NOTICE OF TEMPORARY SUSPENSION AND OPPORTUNITY FOR 
HEARING 
Action:  It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that the 
Board issue a Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for Hearing for 
violations of Chapter 4723, ORC for the following case(s): 
 
Verhoff, Lauren, R.N. 304339 (CASE #15-2653). 
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Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Complete copies of the Notice of Temporary Suspension and Opportunity for 
Hearing shall be maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 Board Meeting. 
 
 
NOTICE OF IMMEDIATE AND AUTOMATIC SUSPENSION AND 
OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 
Action:  It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded Patricia Sharpnack, that the 
Board issue a Notice of Immediate and Automatic Suspension and Opportunity 
for Hearing for violations of Chapter 4723, Ohio Revised for the following case(s): 
 
Menasian, Carey, R.N. 253056 (CASE #15-1958). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Complete copies of the Notice of Immediate and Automatic Suspension and 
Opportunity for Hearing shall be maintained in the exhibit book for the July 2015 
Board Meeting. 
 
 
DEFAULT ORDERS 
Keith, Eileen, R.N. 364056, P.N. 118457 (CASE #14-4519) 
Action:  It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board find that MS. KEITH has committed acts in violation of the Nurse Practice 
Act as set forth in the May 15, 2015 Default Order, and that MS. KEITH did not 
timely request a hearing regarding the May 15, 2015 Default Order, and it was 
further moved that MS. KEITH’s licenses to practice nursing as a registered 
nurse, and as a licensed practical nurse, be suspended, effective May 15, 2015, 
for an indefinite period of time, with conditions for reinstatement set forth in the 
May 2015 Default Order.  
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st of July, 2015. 
 
Desatnik, Kevin, R.N. 366202 (CASE #11-2148) 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board find that MR. DESATNIK failed to submit to an examination when directed, 
that the failure to submit was not due to circumstances beyond his control, and 
that in accordance with Section 4723.28(G), ORC, MR. DESATNIK has admitted 
the truth of the allegations set forth in the examination order, and MR. 
DESATNIK is impaired.  It was further moved that MR. DESATNIK’s license to 
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practice nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time with conditions for reinstatement set forth below:  
 
CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT 
 

1. MR. DESATNIK shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. DESATNIK shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board and prior to 
reinstatement. 

 
3. MR. DESATNIK shall, at his own expense, submit to a chemical 

dependency examination, specifically addressing his capacity to function 
in a clinical nursing capacity, by Dr. Richard Whitney, Shepherd Hill 
Addiction Services, 200 Messimer Dr., Newark, Ohio 43055, or another 
examiner approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its designee 
(hereinafter “Examiner”).  Prior to the evaluation, MR. DESATNIK shall 
provide the Examiner with a copy of this Order and the September 28, 
2011 Examination Order, and shall execute releases to permit the 
Examiner to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary for 
the evaluation.  The Examiner shall submit a written opinion to the Board 
that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, 
and any restrictions that should be placed on MR. DESATNIK’s practice.  
The Examiner shall provide an opinion to the Board regarding whether 
MR. DESATNIK is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

4. MR. DESATNIK shall enter into a Consent Agreement with the Board for 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board for a minimum period of time determined by the Board.  The 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board shall include, but not be limited to, completion or continuation of 
treatment recommended and/or restrictions specified by the Examiner, as 
set forth in paragraph 3., above.  If the Board and MR. DESATNIK are 
unable to agree to terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions in a 
Consent Agreement, the terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions 
shall be determined after a hearing is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of Licensee 

 
5. MR. DESATNIK shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. DESATNIK shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  
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7. MR. DESATNIK shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. DESATNIK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring 
Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MR. DESATNIK shall submit the reports and documentation required by 

this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 
17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. DESATNIK shall verify that the reports and documentation required 

by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. DESATNIK shall inform the Board within three (3) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Rupert, Deborah, R.N. 325010 (CASE #14-3811) 
Action:  It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board find MS. RUPERT failed to submit to an examination when directed, and 
that the failure was not due to circumstances beyond MS. RUPERT’s control, 
and that in accordance with Section 4723.28(B)(16) and Section 4723.28(G) 
ORC, MS. RUPERT has admitted the truth of the allegations set forth in the 
January 27, 2015 Examination Order issued to MS. RUPERT and that MS. 
RUPERT ability to safely provide nursing is impaired. It was moved that MS. 
RUPERT’s license to practice nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio 
be suspended for an indefinite period of time with conditions for reinstatement set 
forth below:  
 
CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT 
 

1. MS. RUPERT shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. RUPERT shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or 
its designated representative as requested by the Board and prior to 
reinstatement. 
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3. MS. RUPERT shall, at her own expense, submit to a mental health 
examination, specifically addressing her capacity to function in a clinical 
nursing capacity, by OSU Harding Hospital, 1670 Upham Dr., Columbus, 
Ohio, 43210, or another examiner approved in advance, in writing, by the 
Board or its designee (hereinafter “Examiner”).  Prior to the evaluation, 
MS. RUPERT shall provide the Examiner with a copy of this Order and the 
January 27, 2015 Examination Order, and shall execute releases to permit 
the Examiner to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the evaluation.  The Examiner shall submit a written opinion 
to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, and any restrictions that should be placed on MS. RUPERT’s 
practice.  The Examiner shall provide an opinion to the Board regarding 
whether MS. RUPERT is capable of practicing nursing according to 
acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

4. MS. RUPERT shall enter into a Consent Agreement with the Board for 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board for a minimum period of time determined by the Board.  The 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board shall include, but not be limited to, completion or continuation of 
treatment recommended and/or restrictions specified by the Examiner, as 
set forth in paragraph 3., above.  If the Board and MS. RUPERT are 
unable to agree to terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions in a 
Consent Agreement, the terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions 
shall be determined after a hearing is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of Licensee 

 
5. MS. RUPERT shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MS. RUPERT shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MS. RUPERT shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MS. RUPERT shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MS. RUPERT shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  
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10. MS. RUPERT shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 
this Order are received in the Board office.  

 
11. MS. RUPERT shall inform the Board within three (3) business days, in 

writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Frankovich, Michael, R.N. Applicant (CASE #15-0916) 
Action:  It was moved by Sandra Ranck, and seconded by Brenda Boggs, that 
that Board find that MR. FRANKOVICH has failed to submit to an examination 
when directed, that the failure was not due to circumstances beyond his control.  
In accordance with Section 4723.28(B)(16) and Section 4723.28(G) ORC, the 
Board find that MR. FRANKOVICH has admitted the truth of the allegations set 
forth in the April 1, 2015 Examination Order issued to MR. FRANKOVICH and 
that MR. FRANKOVICH is impaired, and the Board ordered that MR. 
FRANKOVICH’s application be denied, with conditions for reapplication for initial 
licensure set forth below:  
 
CONDITIONS FOR REAPPLICATION FOR LICENSURE 
 

1. MR. FRANKOVICH shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. FRANKOVICH shall appear in person for interviews before the full 
Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board and 
prior to reinstatement. 

 
3. MR. FRANKOVICH shall, at his own expense, submit to a chemical 

dependency examination, specifically addressing his capacity to function 
in a clinical nursing capacity, by Summa Physicians, 444 N. Main St., 6th 
floor, Akron, Ohio 44310, or another examiner approved in advance, in 
writing, by the Board or its designee (hereinafter “Examiner”).  Prior to the 
evaluation, MR. FRANKOVICH shall provide the Examiner with a copy of 
this Order and the April 1, 2015 Examination Order, and shall execute 
releases to permit the Examiner to obtain any information deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The Examiner shall submit 
a written opinion to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations 
for treatment and monitoring, and any restrictions that should be placed on 
MR. FRANKOVICH’s practice.  The Examiner shall provide an opinion to 
the Board regarding whether MR. FRANKOVICH is capable of practicing 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 
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4. MR. FRANKOVICH may submit a new application for licensure to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse by endorsement following the 
Board’s receipt of the Examiner’s written opinion.  Prior to receiving a 
license by endorsement, MR. FRANKOVICH shall enter into a Consent 
Agreement with the Board for probationary terms, conditions, limitations, 
and restrictions determined by the Board for a minimum period of time 
determined by the Board.  The probationary terms, conditions, limitations, 
and restrictions determined by the Board shall include, but not be limited 
to, completion or continuation of treatment recommended and/or 
restrictions specified by the Examiner, as set forth in paragraph 3., above.  
If the Board and MR. FRANKOVICH are unable to agree to terms, 
conditions, limitations, and restrictions in a Consent Agreement, the terms, 
conditions, limitations, and restrictions shall be determined after a hearing 
is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. FRANKOVICH 

 
5. MR. FRANKOVICH shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. FRANKOVICH shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding his ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MR. FRANKOVICH shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. FRANKOVICH shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring 
Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MR. FRANKOVICH shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of 
Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. FRANKOVICH shall verify that the reports and documentation 

required by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. FRANKOVICH shall inform the Board within three (3) business days, 
in writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
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This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Kennon, Timothy, R.N. 373020 (CASE #13-2609) 
Action:  It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
that Board find that MR. KENNON has failed to submit to an examination and 
that the failure to submit to an examination was not due to circumstances beyond 
his control. It was further moved that the Board find that MR. KENNON has 
admitted the truth of the allegations set forth in the examination order, and that 
MR. KENNON is impaired.  The Board ordered that MR. KENNON’s license to 
practice nursing as a registered nurse in the State of Ohio be suspended for an 
indefinite period of time with conditions for reinstatement set forth below:  
 
CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT 
 

1. MR. KENNON shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws 
and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. KENNON shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board 
or its designated representative as requested by the Board and prior to 
reinstatement. 

 
3. MR. KENNON shall, at his own expense, submit to a mental health 

evaluation specifically addressing his ability to safely function in a clinical 
nursing capacity, by Dr. Bresler, The University of Cincinnati Physicians 
Company (“UC”), 260 Stetson Street, Suite 3200, Cincinnati, Ohio 45219, 
or another examiner approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its 
designee (hereinafter “Examiner”). Prior to the evaluation, MR. KENNON 
shall provide the Examiner with a copy of this Order and the March 13, 
2015 Examination Order, and shall execute releases to permit the 
Examiner to obtain any information deemed appropriate and necessary for 
the evaluation.  The Examiner shall submit a written opinion to the Board 
that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, 
and any restrictions that should be placed on MR. KENNON’s practice.  
The Examiner shall provide an opinion to the Board regarding whether 
MR. KENNON is capable of practicing nursing according to acceptable 
and prevailing standards of safe nursing care. 
 

4. MR. KENNON shall enter into a Consent Agreement with the Board for 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board for a minimum period of time determined by the Board.  The 
probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by 
the Board shall include, but not be limited to, completion or continuation of 
mental health and/or chemical dependency treatment, or other treatment 
recommended, and/or restrictions specified by the Examiner, as set forth 
in paragraph 3., above.  If the Board and MR. KENNON are unable to 
agree to terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions in a Consent 
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Agreement, the terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions shall be 
determined after a hearing is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of Licensee 

 
5. MR. KENNON shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. KENNON shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding his ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MR. KENNON shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. KENNON shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MR. KENNON shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. KENNON shall verify that the reports and documentation required by 

this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. KENNON shall inform the Board within three (3) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Dills, Barbara, CHW Applicant (CASE #15-1078) 
Action:  It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that 
the Baord find that MS. DILLS has failed to submit to an examination and that 
the failure to submit to an examination was not due to circumstances beyond her 
control, and that in accordance with Section 4723.28(B)(16) and Rule 4723-26-
11(H), OAC, MS. DILLS has admitted the truth of the allegations set forth in the 
examination order, and that MS. DILLS is impaired.  It was further moved that 
MS. DILLS’s Application for a Certificate to Practice as a Certified Health Work 
in Ohio be denied, with conditions for reapplication for initial certification set forth 
below:  
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CONDITIONS FOR REAPPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION 
 

1. MS. DILLS shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all laws and 
rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MS. DILLS shall appear in person for interviews before the full Board or its 
designated representative as requested by the Board and prior to 
reapplication. 

 
3. MS. DILLS shall, at her own expense, submit to a chemical dependency 

examination, specifically addressing her capacity to function in a clinical 
nursing capacity, by Dr. Richard Whitney, Shepherd Hill Addiction 
Services, located at 200 Messimer Drive, Newark, Ohio 43055, or another 
examiner approved in advance, in writing, by the Board or its designee 
(hereinafter “Examiner”).  Prior to the evaluation, MS. DILLS shall provide 
the Examiner with a copy of this Order and the April 13, 2015 Examination 
Order, and shall execute releases to permit the Examiner to obtain any 
information deemed appropriate and necessary for the evaluation.  The 
Examiner shall submit a written opinion to the Board that includes 
diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and monitoring, and any 
restrictions that should be placed on MS. DILLS’s practice.  The Examiner 
shall provide an opinion to the Board regarding whether MS. DILLS is 
capable of practicing safely as a community health worker. 
 

4. MS. DILLS may submit a new application for a certificate to practice 
as a Certified Community Health Worker following the Board’s 
receipt of the Examiner’s written opinion.  Prior to receiving a 
certificate, MS. DILLS shall enter into a Consent Agreement with the 
Board for probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions 
determined by the Board for a minimum period of time determined by the 
Board.  The probationary terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions 
determined by the Board shall include, but not be limited to, completion or 
continuation of treatment recommended and/or restrictions specified by 
the Examiner, as set forth in paragraph 3., above.  If the Board and MS. 
DILLS are unable to agree to terms, conditions, limitations, and 
restrictions in a Consent Agreement, the terms, conditions, limitations, and 
restrictions shall be determined after a hearing is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MS. DILLS 

 
5. MS. DILLS shall sign release of information forms allowing health 

professionals and other organizations to submit requested documentation 
or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MS. DILLS shall submit any and all information that the Board may 

request regarding her ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of community health worker care.  
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7. MS. DILLS shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 
misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MS. DILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and communications 
required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring Unit of the Board.  

 
9. MS. DILLS shall submit the reports and documentation required by this 

Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of Nursing, 17 
South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MS. DILLS shall verify that the reports and documentation required by this 

Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MS. DILLS shall inform the Board within three (3) business days, in 
writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
Montgomery, Ryan, P.N. Applicant (CASE #15-0839) 
Action:  It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board find that MR. MONTGOMERY has failed to submit to an examination 
when directed, and that the failure was not due to circumstances beyond his 
control, and that MR. MONTGOMERY has admitted the truth of the allegations 
set forth in the examination order issued to MR. MONTGOMERY and that MR. 
MONTGOMERY’s ability to safely practice nursing is impaired. It was further 
moved that MR. MONTGOMERY’s Application for Licensure by Examination to 
Practice Nursing in the State of Ohio as a licensed practical nurse be denied, 
with conditions for reapplication for initial licensure set forth below:  
 
CONDITIONS FOR REAPPLICATION FOR LICENSURE 
 

1. MR. MONTGOMERY shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all 
laws and rules governing the practice of nursing in Ohio. 
 

2. MR. MONTGOMERY shall appear in person for interviews before the full 
Board or its designated representative as requested by the Board and 
prior to reapplication. 

 
3. MR. MONTGOMERY shall, at his own expense, submit to a psychiatric 

examination, specifically addressing his capacity to function in a clinical 
nursing capacity, by Dr. Richard Friedell, Comprehensive Psychiatric 
Services, Inc., located at 24400 Highpoint Road, Suite 6, Beachwood, 
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Ohio 44122, or another examiner approved in advance, in writing, by the 
Board or its designee (hereinafter “Examiner”).  Prior to the evaluation, 
MR. MONTGOMERY shall provide the Examiner with a copy of this Order 
and the April 10, 2015 Examination Order, and shall execute releases to 
permit the Examiner to obtain any information deemed appropriate and 
necessary for the evaluation.  The Examiner shall submit a written opinion 
to the Board that includes diagnoses, recommendations for treatment and 
monitoring, and any restrictions that should be placed on MR. 
MONTGOMERY’s practice.  The Examiner shall provide an opinion to the 
Board regarding whether MR. MONTGOMERY is capable of practicing 
nursing according to acceptable and prevailing standards of safe nursing 
care. 
 

4. MR. MONTGOMERY may submit a new application for licensure to 
practice nursing as a licensed practical nurse by examination 
following the Board’s receipt of the Examiner’s written opinion.  Prior 
to receiving a license by examination, MR. MONTGOMERY shall enter 
into a Consent Agreement with the Board for probationary terms, 
conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by the Board for a 
minimum period of time determined by the Board.  The probationary 
terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions determined by the Board 
shall include, but not be limited to, completion or continuation of treatment 
recommended and/or restrictions specified by the Examiner, as set forth in 
paragraph 3., above.  If the Board and MR. MONTGOMERY are unable to 
agree to terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions in a Consent 
Agreement, the terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions shall be 
determined after a hearing is held. 

 
Reporting Requirements of MR. MONTGOMERY 

 
5. MR. MONTGOMERY shall sign release of information forms allowing 

health professionals and other organizations to submit requested 
documentation or information directly to the Board.  

 
6. MR. MONTGOMERY shall submit any and all information that the Board 

may request regarding his ability to practice according to acceptable and 
prevailing standards of safe nursing practice.  

 
7. MR. MONTGOMERY shall not submit or cause to be submitted any false, 

misleading, or deceptive statements, information, or documentation to the 
Board or to employers or potential employers.  

 
8. MR. MONTGOMERY shall submit the reports and documentation required 

by this Order on forms specified by the Board. All reporting and 
communications required by this Order shall be made to the Monitoring 
Unit of the Board.  
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9. MR. MONTGOMERY shall submit the reports and documentation required 
by this Order to the attention of the Compliance Unit, Ohio Board of 
Nursing, 17 South High Street, Suite 400, Columbus, OH 43215-7410.  

 
10. MR. MONTGOMERY shall verify that the reports and documentation 

required by this Order are received in the Board office.  
 

11. MR. MONTGOMERY shall inform the Board within three (3) business 
days, in writing, of any change in address and/or telephone number. 

 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
This Order shall become effective immediately and is hereby entered upon the 
Journal of the Board for the 31st day of July, 2015. 
 
 
VOLUNTARY RETIREMENTS 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board accept the Permanent Voluntary Retirement from the practice of nursing 
for the following case(s): 
 
Reichardt, Jeffrey, R.N. 212453, NP 10079, CTP 10079 (CASE #15-2379); 
Miller, Kelly, R.N. 350048 (CASE #15-2227); Dunn, Karrissa, R.N. 350733 
(CASE #12-0665); Spangler, Kimberly, P.N. 062220 (CASE #14-2385). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
SUMMARY SUSPENSION AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 
Thrasher, Michele, P.N.153378 (CASE #15-2510) 
Action:  It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board summarily suspend the license of Thrasher, Michelle, PN. 153378 (CASE 
#15-2510), and issue a Notice of Opportunity for Hearing for violations of Chapter 
4723, ORC, retroactive to the date it was issued on June 8, 2015, due to the fact 
that there is clear and convincing evidence that continued practice by Ms. 
Thrasher presents a danger of immediate and serious harm to the public. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
MONITORING 
 
RELEASE FROM SUSPENSION/PROBATION 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member for 
Disciplinary Matters, be released from their respective Consent Agreements or 
Adjudication Orders: 
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Marshall, Angela, P.N. 153567 (CASE #13-1805); Bowman, Michelle, P.N. 
156021 (CASE #13-7382); Peoples, Lisa, R.N. 307465 (CASE #11-5050); Lax, 
Natalie, P.N. 116267 (CASE #11-0594); Walberry, Jennifer, R.N. 297424 (CASE 
#11-1731); Albarran, Amanda, R.N. 269011 (CASE #14-5114); Gates, Kimberly, 
P.N. 132053 (CASE #13-0628); Lett, Pamela, P.N. 122750 (CASE #13-1154); 
Mboob, Fatou, R.N. 356004, P.N. 098216 (CASE #09-4804); Walker, Gale, R.N. 
231742, COA 05258 (CASE #10-1052); Talley, Myesha, P.N. 156019 (CASE 
#13-7953); Owens, Garnetta, R.N. 267323 (CASE #09-4705); Costello, Mary, 
R.N. 359661 (CASE #14-1710); Jackson, Vanessa, P.N. 141760 (CASE #10-
3351). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
RELEASE FROM SUSPENSION/PROBATION – EARLY RELEASE 
Action:  It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member for 
Disciplinary Matters, be released early from their respective Consent Agreement 
or Adjudication Order(s): 
 
Cain, Charles, P.N. 148033 (CASE #10-3210); King, Jacqueline, R.N. 330473 
(CASE #06-3503); Colyer, Michelle, P.N. 123249 (CASE #12-6404); Day, 
Pamela, P.N. 149814 (CASE #12-0476); Clark, Ryan, CHW 00121 (CASE #10-
4216). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
RELEASE FROM SUSPENSION/PROBATION - EARLY RELEASE -
PERMANENT PRACTICE RESTRICTIONS REMAIN 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member for 
Disciplinary Matters, be released from their Consent Agreement or Adjudication 
Order(s) with the exception of the permanent practice restriction(s) that will 
remain in effect: 
 
Casey, Michael, R.N. 320744 (CASE #10-5535). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
RELEASE FROM SUSPENSION/PROBATION – PERMANENT PRACTICE 
RESTRICTIONS REMAIN 
Action: It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member for 
Disciplinary Matters, be released from their Consent Agreement or Adjudication 
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Order(s) with the exception of the permanent practice restriction(s) that will 
remain in effect: 
 
Murray, Cheryl, R.N. 230169 (CASE #11-2749). 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
RELEASE FROM SUSPENSION/PROBATION - TEMPORARY PRACTICE 
RESTRICTIONS REMAIN 
Action: It was moved by Nancy Fellows, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member 
for Disciplinary Matters, be released from their Consent Agreement or 
Adjudication Order(s) with the exception of the temporary practice restriction(s) 
that will remain in effect: 
 
Whitsel, Danielle, R.N. 308707, NP 12409, CTP 12409 (CASE #11-3185).  
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
RELEASE FROM TEMPORARY NARCOTIC RESTRICTION 
Action: It was moved by Patricia Sharpnack, seconded by Nancy Fellows, that 
the following, with the recommendation by Judith Church, Supervising Member 
for Disciplinary Matters, be released from their temporary narcotic restriction 
within their Consent Agreement(s).  
 
Chwojdak, Gregory, R.N. 350207 (CASE #14-1062); Leskovac, John, R.N. 
281961, COA 07151, NA 07151 (CASE #11-5145); Testa, David, R.N. 254128 
(CASE #13-1237); Mazey, Kent, R.N. 247892, NA 06707 (CASE #13-6810);  
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
REINSTATEMENT REQUEST PER CONDITIONS OF ADJUDICATION ORDER 
Nichols, Susan, R.N. 380089 (CASE #14-0370) 
Action: It was moved by Lauralee Krabill, seconded by Patricia Sharpnack, that 
the Board reinstate Nichols, Susan, R.N. 380089 (CASE #14-0370) subject to the 
probationary terms of the November 2014 Adjudication Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Stephenson, Kimberlee, R.N. 277061 (CASE #12-1272) 
Action:  It was moved by Maryam Lyon, seconded by J. Jane McFee, that the 
Board reinstate Stephenson, Kimberlee, R.N. 277061 (CASE #12-1272) subject 
to the probationary terms of the July 2013 Adjudication Order. 
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Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
Pawlaczyk, Lisa, R.N. 339744 (CASE #12-5983) 
Action:  It was moved by Janet Arwood, seconded by Maryam Lyon, that the 
Board reinstate Pawlaczyk, Lisa, R.N. 339744 (CASE #12-5983) subject to the 
probationary terms of the July 2014 Adjudication Order. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
REINSTATEMENT REQUEST PER CONDITIONS OF CONSENT 
AGREEMENT 
Weaver, Ashley, P.N. 141660 (CASE #14-0292) 
Action:  It was moved by J. Jane McFee, seconded by Brenda Boggs, that the 
Board reinstate Weaver, Ashley, P.N., 141660 (CASE #14-0292) subject to the 
probationary terms of the September 2014 Consent Agreement. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE 
Action:  It was moved by Brenda Boggs, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board accept the following approvals made by Judith Church, Supervising 
Member of Disciplinary Matters: 
 
Storad, John, R.N. 248142 (CASE #13-4166) – Approval to accept employment 
as Director of Nursing at Stonecrossing. 
Taylor, Sanita, R.N. 350112, P.N. 120800 (CASE #14-6659) – Approval to work 
as a nurse. 
Snyder, Jaime, R.N. 380677, NP 15210, CTP 15210 (CASE #13-4768) – 
Approval to accept employment with Ohio Heart Group, Health Wellness Medical 
Center and Med Columbus, LLC as a certified nurse practitioner and in a position 
for which a CTP is required. 
Baumann, Angela, R.N. 301445, P.N. 107589 (CASE #11-2587) - Approval to 
accept employment as Director of Nursing at Covington Care Center. 
Cottrill, Lori, R.N. 239838 (CASE #05-1863) – Approval to accept the Clinic 
Manager position at Pickaway Dialysis Center. 
Leskovac, John, R.N. 281961, NA 07151 (CASE #11-5145) – Approval to accept 
employment as a CRNA at Northside Anesthesia. 
Bjorling, Benjamin, R.N. 412395 (CASE #14-4000)  - Approval to work as a 
nurse. 
Peake, Carol, R.N. 177151, NP 09813, CTP 09813 (CASE #12-0637) – Approval 
of the Standard Care Arrangement. 
Carmichael, Naomi, P.N. 113944 (CASE #13-7727) – Approval to work as a 
nurse. 
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Cuellar, Juan, R.N. 383292 (CASE #13-3784) – Approval of Bonnie Kirkpatrick, 
RN, MS, CNS, to complete the Educational Needs Assessment and Learning 
Plan in May 2015 and the Learning Plan submitted in June 2015. 
Gamble, Myra, R.N. 377392 (CASE #13-3414) – Approval of Bonnie Kirkpatrick, 
RN, MS, CNS, to complete the Educational Needs Assessment and the Learning 
Plan submitted in June 2015. 
 
Motion adopted by a majority of the Board members with Judith Church 
abstaining. 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS MONITORING MOTIONS 
Grabiec, Elizabeth, R.N. 335968 (CASE #13-0678) 
Action: It was moved by Sandra Ranck, seconded by Lisa Klenke, that the board 
release Grabiec, Elizabeth, R.N. 335968 (CASE #13-0678), from individual 
aftercare counseling as required in paragraph eight of the May 2013 Consent 
Agreement. 
 
Motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board members. 
 
Darus, Lisa, R.N. 223582 (CASE #13-1159) 
Action:  It was moved by Lisa Klenke, seconded by Sandra Ranck, that the 
Board approve the educational needs assessment and learning plan submitted 
by Bonnie Kirkpatrick, RN, MS, CNS, retired Nursing Educator, for Darus, Lisa, 
R.N. 225852 (CASE #13-1159). 
 
 
REPORTS TO THE BOARD 
 
Open Forum – Friday, July 31, 2015 at 10:20 a.m. 
There were no participants for Open Forum. 
 
Other Reports 
 

Committee on Prescriptive Governance Appointment 
Action: Nancy Fellows moved, seconded by Judith Church, that the Board 
appoint, in accordance with Section 4723.49, ORC, Jeanne Bauer as the 
certified nurse midwife representative to the Committee on Prescriptive 
Governance for a three-year term ending in July 2018. Motion adopted by 
unanimous vote of the Board members. 
 
NEGP Quarterly Report 
L. Emrich provided the quarterly report for the Nurse Education Grant 
Program. 
 
Advisory Group on Dialysis Report 
Maryam Lyon, Chair of the Advisory Group on Dialysis, provided a report to 
the Board regarding the June 9, 2015 Advisory Group meeting and a 
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discussion about dialysis activities that may be performed by individuals 
who complete a dialysis technician training program but who are not yet 
certified as a Dialysis Technician Intern  (DTI). Board staff has received 
questions about this and in response, prepared FAQs for clarification. The 
FAQs state that individuals who are not trainees in a program and are not 
yet certified as a DTI, are not legally authorized to engage in dialysis care 
as a student/trainee or a DTI.  Activities that non-certified individuals may 
perform are limited to nursing tasks that a licensed nurse may delegate to 
an unlicensed person, according to the delegation rules in Chapter 4723-
13, OAC. The Advisory Group discussed following options: 
 

1. Consider legislation to discontinue Board regulation of dialysis 
due to increased federal government oversight in recent years. 
State-based regulation of dialysis may be duplicative. 

 
2. Consider legislation to authorize individuals who have 

completed training but have not been issued a DTI to engage in 
dialysis practice under supervision or delegation. Some 
members of the Advisory Group propose that the individual who 
completes dialysis training but is not yet certified as a DTI be 
permitted to perform dialysis care under the supervision of a 
nurse preceptor.  

 
3. Monitor the number of DTI applicants impacted for future review 

and discussion. 
 
After discussing the options, the Advisory Group asked that the Board 
monitor the number of dialysis facility employees impacted and the length 
of the time between completion of training and issuance of the DTI.  
 
The Board agreed with the Advisory Group recommendation that Board 
staff monitor the number of DTI applicants impacted. The information will 
be reviewed at the next Advisory Group meeting on October 20, 2015. 
Board members suggested that regulation of dialysis be a topic for the 
2016 Retreat. 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION (FYI) 
The Board reviewed the general information items. There were no questions 
about the items. 
 
BOARD GOVERNANCE 
Hotel for 2016 
B. Houchen reported that the Board entered into an agreement with DoubleTree 
Suites for Board meetings in 2016 and information about making reservations will 
be provided to the Board at a later meeting. 
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Board Committee on Practice (LPN IV Therapy)  
The Board agreed to reconvene the Board Committee on Practice on September 
17, 2015 at 12:00 p.m. to discuss LPN IV therapy. Members of the Committee are 
Janet Arwood, Jane McFee, Lisa Klenke, and Sheryl Warner.   
 
EVALUATION OF MEETING AND ADJOURNMENT 
J. Jane McFee stated that the Board conducted a large amount of business very 
efficiently.  She thanked Board members and staff. 
 
On Thursday, July 30, 2015 the meeting adjourned at 2:00 p.m. On Friday, July 
31, 2015, the meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 
 
 
Maryam Lyon, MSN, RN 
President 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
Betsy Houchen, RN, MS, JD 
Executive Director 
 


